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CHAIRMAN’S ADDRESS 
 
 

Dear Shareholders, 

It gives me immense pleasure to welcome you all at the 8th Annual General Meeting of your 

Company and present the Annual Report of your Company for the Financial Year (FY) 

2022-23. The Directors’ Report and Audited financial statements for the year ended March 

31, 2023 have already been provided to all the shareholders. With your permission, I take 

them as read. 

 

I would like to place before you, few highlights of your company for the FY-22-23. 

 

Your Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary company of Ircon International Limited 

(IRCON), Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) incorporated in the year 2015 by IRCON intent to 

execute the project of “Four-laning of Shivpuri Guna section of NH-3 from km 236.00 to km 

332.100 (97.74 Km) in the State of Madhya Pradesh” as a Concessionaire in terms of the 

Concession Agreement entered into with National Highway Authority of India (NHAI). The 

concession period of the project is 20 years commencing from the ‘Appointed Date’ i.e., 

January 25, 2016. The project is being executed in two stages. 

 

The Commercial Operations Date (COD) for Stage-I of the project (85.31 km length) was 

achieved ahead of its ‘Scheduled Date of Completion’ on June 6, 2018, and thereby 

starting the O&M phase of Stage-1 along with revenue collection. The construction of 

Stage-II of the project (12.39 km) has been completed and PCOD has been issued on 

01.06.2023. Revised user fee has been implemented at Toll Plaza.  Also, the major 

maintenance for the Stage-1 which had become due as per Concession Agreement has 

been started by awarding the work on EPC basis to IRCON.  

 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

Your Company has achieved revenue from toll operations of ₹142.31 Crore as against 

₹120.75 Crore for the previous financial year, thus registering an increase of 17.85%. The 

loss before tax was ₹14.34 Crore for the FY 2022-23 as against the loss of ₹12.05 Crore 

for the previous financial year implying a decrease in loss by 19%.  

 

The authorized as well as paid-up equity share capital of the Company stood at Rs.150 

Crore. As on March 28, 2022, your Company, had availed re-financing term loan facility / 

secured loan of ₹501 Cr. from State Bank of India (SBI) supported by Corporate 

Guarantee of IRCON. As on March 31, 2023 an amount of ₹493.06 Cr. was outstanding.  
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COMPLIANCES AND DISCLOSURES  

Corporate Governance: Compliances and disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and 

rules thereunder are being fully adhered to by your Company. Your company is also 

exempt from the compliance with the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) Guidelines 

on Corporate Governance for CPSEs being a wholly-owned subsidiary of IRCON and a 

CPSE constituted as SPV. 

 

MoU: IRCON has granted exemption to the Company from signing of MoU with IRCON for 

the financial year 2022-23 as well as for financial year 2023-24. 

 

JOURNEY AHEAD 

The revenue generated from the toll operations of the project are intended to cover the 

operating cost, repayment of principal amount of debt and financing costs. The toll revenue 

is expected to increase in future years post COD for the Stage-II of the project, when the 

full operation of the project will commence. Further, the initiatives taken by Government of 

India / NHAI for ensuring seamless travel, better infrastructure and connectivity for the 

highway users like ‘Bharat Nirman’ programmes linking all unconnected villages with fair 

weather roads, measures for improving electronic toll collection etc. will further enhance the 

efficiency of toll operations and future growth of the Company. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

On behalf of Board of Directors, I express my heartfelt thanks for the valuable assistance 

and co-operation extended to the Company by the MoRTH and NHAI for their support and 

guidance to the Company. Further, I record my sincere appreciation for the cooperation 

extended by the holding Company, Ircon International Limited, the office of Comptroller & 

Auditor General of India (C&AG), the Auditors, Bankers of the Company and other 

professionals associated with the Company.  

 

I would also like to thank my colleagues on the Board and the Company's employees for 

their unstinting support. I look forward to your continued support in our journey ahead. 

 
For and on behalf of 

Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 
 

         Sd/- 
 (Devendra Kumar Sharma) 

         Chairman               
[DIN:08556821] 

Date:  08.08.2023 
Place: New Delhi 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

  

 
Dear Members, 

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 8th Annual Report and Audited Financial 

Statements of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

 

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 

The key highlights on the financial performance of your company for the Financial Year 

(FY) ended March 31, 2023 with comparative position of previous year’s performance are 

as under:  

               (Amount in ₹ Cr.) 
Sl. No. Financial Parameters Year ended 

31.03.2023 
Year ended 
31.03.2022 

1  Revenue from Toll Operations 142.31 120.75 

2  Construction Contract Revenue 33.07 20.69 

3  Revenue from Construction Services (Change of 
Scope and other works) 

- 2.07 

4  Other Operating Revenue 0.38 0.35 

5  Other Income 1.75 0.21 

6  Total Income [(1) + (2)] 177.51 144.07 

7  Project Expenses 106.78 71.05 

8  Administration Expenses (including finance cost 
and depreciation, amortization & impairment) 

85.00 84.99 

9  Other Expenses 0.07 0.08 

10  Total Expenses [(4) + (5) + (6)] 191.85 156.12 

11  Profit / (Loss) Before Tax [(3) – (7)] (14.34) (12.05) 

12  Profit / (Loss) After Tax (14.34) (12.05) 

 

The financial statements for the FY 2022-23 have been prepared in pursuance of the 

provisions of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in conformity with 

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. 

 

2. OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE: 

Your Company has been incorporated as a public limited company, Special Purpose 

Vehicle (SPV) and wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (IRCON) on 

May 12, 2015, and is a government company in terms of the provisions of section 2(45) of 

the Companies Act, 2013. Your Company is executing the project of National Highways 

Authority of India (NHAI) viz “Four-laning of Shivpuri-Guna Section of NH-3 from 236.00 
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km to 332.100 km on Build Operate and Transfer (BOT) (Toll) basis on Design, Build, 

Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) pattern under NHDP Phase IV” in the State of 

Madhya Pradesh with total length of 97.70 km (“the Project”). The approval for 

commencement of Business has been obtained on May 27, 2015. In terms of the 

concession agreement dated June 15, 2015, NHAI has granted right to construct, operate 

and maintain the Project (the “Concession”) for 20 years (including construction period) 

commencing from the ‘Appointed Date’ i.e. January 25, 2016. The Project is to be 

executed in two stages viz Stage-I having length of 85.31 kms (i.e. stretch from Km 

236.000 to Km 319.700) with execution period of 910 days (30 months) and Stage-II 

having length of 12.39 kms (i.e. stretch from Km 319.700 to Km 332.100) with execution 

period of 12 months.  

 

The total cost approved for the execution of the Project is ₹872.11 Cr., and was allocated 

in the equity share capital of ₹150 Cr. (100% held by IRCON) and debt portion of 

₹722.11 Cr., which was initially approved by IRCON as loan and partially availed by 

IrconSGTL. The details of existing secured loan availed by your Company are detailed in 

para on ‘Secured Loan and Rating’ in the report at para no.5 below. 

 

Stage-I Project: The total cost allocated in the financial model for the Stage-I Project is 

₹759.98 Cr., for which IRCON was engaged as EPC Contractor at original EPC Cost of 

₹642 Cr. The Scheduled Commercial Operation Date (COD) was July 23, 2018 i.e., 

within 910 Days from the ‘Appointed Date’ of January 25, 2016. The COD for Stage-I of 

the project was achieved one and a half month ahead of the schedule i.e., on June 6, 

2018. After completion of the construction of Stage-I Project and provisional completion 

certificate by Independent Engineer, the operation of toll plaza and collection of revenue 

started w.e.f. June 07, 2018. The completion certificate for Stage-I Project was issued by 

NHAI w.e.f. September 27, 2018. The project is presently in Operations & Maintenance 

(O&M) phase with respect to Stage-I project. 

 

During the year under review, the revenue from toll operations has registered an 

increase of 17.85% to ₹142.31 Cr. in FY 2022-23 against ₹120.75 Cr. in FY 2021-22, 

owing to increase in tolling fees and traffic. The total revenue for the FY 2022-23 is 

₹177.51 Cr. as against ₹144.07 Cr. for the previous financial year registering an increase 

of 23.21%. The loss before tax is ₹14.34 Cr. for the FY 2022-23 as against loss of 

₹12.05 Cr. for the previous financial year registering decrease in loss by 19.00%. 
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Stage-II Project: The total cost allocated in the financial model for the Stage-II Project is 

₹112.12 Cr., for which IRCON has been engaged as EPC Contractor on cost plus basis, 

on January 01, 2021. The completion period for the construction of Stage-II project was 

initially 12 months from the letter of award to EPC Contractor or handover of site, 

whichever is later. The Stage-II execution has been completed for 12.39 Km road length 

and PCOD of 10.39 Km was obtained on 17.12.2022. and PCOD was issued by IE for 

balance stretch of 2.0 Lm on 01.06.2023. Thus revenue collection along with the O&M 

phase for the entire project length is going on.  

 

 

3. SHARE CAPITAL: 

The authorized, paid-up and subscribed equity share capital of the Company is ₹150 Cr. 

comprising of 15,00,00,000 equity shares of ₹10/- each as on March 31, 2023. 

 

During the year under review, there was no change in the share capital of your Company, 

and Ircon International Limited continues to hold 100% paid-up share capital of 

IrconSGTL. 

 

 

4. DIVIDEND, RESERVES AND NET WORTH: 

The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend on the equity shares of the 

Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023. 

 

Your Company has a net worth of ₹47.36 Cr., after considering negative balance of 

₹102.64 Cr. in the Reserves as on March 31, 2023. 

 

5. SECURED LOANS AND RATING: 

The financial closure of the project of your Company was achieved by tying up the entire 

debt requirement of ₹722.11 Cr. from the holding company, Ircon International Limited in 

the form of secured loan. As on March 28, 2022, your company, had availed re-financing 

term loan facility / secured loan of ₹501 Cr. from State Bank of India (SBI) supported by 

Corporate Guarantee of IRCON. As on March 31, 2023 an amount of ₹493.06 Cr. was 

outstanding.  

 

During the FY 2022-23, CARE Ratings Limited has reaffirmed ‘CARE AAA (CE)’ 

rating for the long-term bank facilities of ₹493.06 Cr. to your Company.  
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6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 

OF THE COMPANY BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE 

OF THE REPORT: 

No material changes and commitments have occurred which affect the financial position 

of the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of this report. 

 

7. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

The particulars as prescribed under the provisions of section 134(3)(m) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as follows: 

A. Conservation of Energy:  

(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy – NIL 

(ii) the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy – Solar 

powered blinkers were installed at the project stretch at a total cost of 

approx. ₹1 Lakh. 

(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment – NIL 

 
B. Technology Absorption: Not Applicable 

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption; 

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product 

development or import substitution; 

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned 

from the beginning of the financial year) 

(a) the details of technology imported; 

(b) the year of import; 

(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed; 

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the 

reasons thereof; and 

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development. 

 
C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo during the year: Not Applicable 

(i) Foreign Exchange Earned 

(ii) Foreign Exchange Outgo 

 

8. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R&D): 

No R&D activities were carried out during the period under review. 
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9. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP): 

DIRECTORS: 

During the year under review, the holding Company [IRCON] had nominated Shri 

Devendra Kumar Sharma [having DIN: 08556821], Project Director (VME), IRCON, as the 

Chairman (Part-time Nominee) of your Company, vice Shri Ashok Kumar Goyal w.e.f. 

October, 10, 2022. Shri Ashok Kumar Goyal ceased to be the Director of your Company 

consequent to withdrawal of nomination by the holding Company [IRCON] w.e.f. October, 

10, 2022. 

 

Shri Surajit Dutta [having DIN: 06687032] ceased to be Director of the Company w.e.f. 

April 01, 2022 and Shri Mugunthan Boju Gowda [having DIN: 08517013], Executive 

Director (Finance) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), IRCON was nominated as Director 

of your Company w.e.f. April 01, 2022 in terms of letter no. IRCON/SECY/JV/Subs/106 

dated March 10, 2022 issued by the holding Company [IRCON]. Later, Shri Rohit Parmar 

[having DIN: 08190141], Chief General Manager (CGM), IRCON, was nominated as 

Director in place of Shri Mugunthan Boju Gowda, who ceased to be the Director of your 

Company w.e.f. June 01, 2022 in terms of letter no. IRCON/SECY/JV/Subs/106 dated 

26.05.2022 issued by the holding company [IRCON]. 

 

The holding company has also withdrawal the nomination of Shri Parag Verma [having 

DIN: 05272169] as Part-time Director of your Company w.e.f. September 19, 2022. 

 

Further, the holding company has nominated Ms. Rachna Tomar, Joint General Manager 

(Finance), IRCON as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of your Company w.e.f. April 01, 2022 

vice Shri Vinay Kumar Ahuja consequent to his relieving from the post of CFO and KMP 

of your Company.  

 

Also, Shri Atul Kumar relinquished the charge of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) w.e.f. 

December 28, 2022 and holding Company has nominated Shri Jitender Kumar Maurya, 

Additional General Manager (Mechanical), IrconSGTL as Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 

of your Company w.e.f. December 28, 2022.  

 

Ms. Iti Matta, Company Secretary, IrconSGTL has resigned from the post of Company 

Secretary, IrconSGTL w.e.f. February 17, 2023.  

 
The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2023, was as 

follows: 
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S. No. Name  Designation 

1.  Shri Devendra Kumar Sharma 

[DIN: 08556821] 

Chairman 

2.  Shri Rohit Parmar 

[DIN: 08190141] 

Director 

3.  Shri Masood Ahmad 

[DIN: 09008553] 

Director 

4.  Ms. Ritu Arora 

[DIN: 00002455] 

Director 

  
None of the Directors are related to each other.  
 

In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Ritu Arora, [having DIN: 

00002455], Director shall retire by rotation at this Annual General Meeting of your 

Company and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors 

recommends her re-appointment as Director and her brief resume is annexed to the 

Notice of the ensuing 8th Annual General Meeting. 

 
After the closure of the year, the holding company has nominated Shri Suresh Parappa 

Yadappanayar, Additional General Manager (Civil), IRCON as Chief Executive Officer 

(CEO), vice Shri Jitender Kumar Maurya w.e.f. June 06, 2023.  

 
Shri Devendra Kumar Sharma was appointed as additional director. His appointment is 

proposed to be regularized at the ensuing 8th AGM of the Company and has been 

included in the notice of ensuing AGM. 

 
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 203 of the Companies Act 2013, the following were 

the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company as on March 31, 2023: 

S. No. Name Designation 

1. Shri Jitender Kumar Maurya* Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 

2. Ms. Rachna Tomar Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 

 
* Shri Jitender Kumar Maurya ceased to be CEO of the Company w.e.f. June 06, 2023 
and the holding company has nominated Shri Suresh Parappa Yadappanayar, 
Additional General Manager (Civil), IRCON as Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the 
Company, w.e.f. June 06, 2023 
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10. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AGM AND ATTENDANCE OF 

DIRECTORS: 

During the financial year 2022-23, five (5) Board Meetings were held i.e. on May 17, 

2022; August 04, 2022; November 03, 2022, December 28, 2022, and 31st January, 2023. 

The Meetings of the Board are held at regular intervals with a time gap of not more than 

120 days between two consecutive Meetings. All the Board meetings were held through 

physical mode, except one meeting held on August 04, 2022 which was held through 

Video Conferencing mode. All the meetings of the Board of Directors and Annual General 

Meeting were held at the registered office of the Company. 

 
The attendance details of the Board Meetings is as follows: 

S. No. Date of the Meting Board Strength No. of Directors 

Present 

1. 17.05.2022 5 5 

2. 04.08.2022 5 5 

3. 03.11.2022 4 4 

4. 28.12.2022 4 4 

5. 31.01.2023 4 4 

 

The details of Director’s attendance at Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting held 

during FY 2022-23 are tabled below:  

Board 
Meeting / 

AGM 
Held on  

Attendance of Directors 
Shri Ashok 

Kumar Goyal 
(upto 

10.10.2022) 

Shri 
Devendra 

Kumar 
Sharma 

(w.e.f. 
10.10.2022) 

Shri 
Surajit 
Dutta  
(upto 

01.04.2
022) 

Shri 
Mugunthan 

Boju 
Gowda  

(upto 
01.06.2022) 

Shri 
Rohit 

Parmar 
(w.e.f. 
01.06.2022)

 

Shri 
Parag 
Verma 
(upto 

19.09.2
022) 

Shri 
Masood 
Ahmad  

Ms. 
Ritu 

Arora 

17.05.2022  N.A. N.A.      

04.08.2022  N.A. N.A. N.A.     

03.11.2022 N.A.  N.A. N.A.  N.A.   

28.12.2022 N.A.  N.A. N.A.  N.A.   

31.01.2023 N.A.  N.A. N.A.  N.A.   

AGM -

23.08.2022 

 N.A. N.A. N.A.     

N.A. - Not appointed as director on said date. 
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11. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS, COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AND 

EXEMPTIONS THERETO: 

In terms of provisions of section 149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 4 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, unlisted public 

companies, which are wholly owned subsidiaries are exempted from the requirement of 

appointing Independent Directors on their Board. Also, read with the provisions of section 

177(1), 178(1) and rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 

2014, the requirement of constitution of 'Audit Committee' and 'Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee', is not applicable on such companies. 

 

Further, in terms of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) OM dated July 8-10, 2014 

read with OM dated July 11, 2019, the CPSE’s constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle 

(SPV) are exempted from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance 

for CPSEs.  

 

Accordingly, IrconSGTL, an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary 

company of IRCON, is not required to appoint Independent Directors on its Board, and 

the declaration by the Independent Directors is also not applicable. Further, the 

constitution of Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board 

is also not applicable.  

 

12. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION: 

In terms of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notification no. GSR 463(E) dated June 05, 

2015, the provisions of section 134(3)(p) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with sub-rule 4 

of rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule 2014 and section 178(2) of the Companies 

Act, 2013, regarding annual evaluation of the Board, its Committees and of the individual 

directors, is not applicable to the Government Companies, in case the Directors are 

evaluated by the Ministry which is administrative in-charge of the Company as per its own 

evaluation methodology. 

 

IrconSGTL is a Government Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of IRCON. All the 

Directors of your company are nominated by the holding company, who are subject to 

evaluation by the holding company as per its pre-defined criteria in line with the guidelines 

of the Government of India. 
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13. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, relating to Corporate Social 

Responsibility (CSR) were not applicable to the Company during the period under review.  

 

14. RISK MANAGEMENT: 

In the opinion of the Board, presently the Company does not foresee any major threat / 

risk to the business of the Company. 

 

15. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

Adequate internal financial controls are exercised in the Company, keeping in view the 

size of operations of the Company. The Company is following all the applicable 

Accounting Standards for properly maintaining the books of account and reporting in the 

financial statements. 

 

The Company has appointed an independent firm of Chartered Accountants as Internal 

Auditors to ensure that the Company’s systems and practices are designed with adequate 

internal controls to match the size and nature of operations of the Company. The Internal 

Auditors conduct a half yearly audit and review, covering all areas of operation. The 

Reports of the Auditors along with the management’s responses are placed before the 

Board of Directors for discussion and necessary action. 

 

16. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

As on March 31, 2023, the Company has 8 employees, which included 3 employees 

deputed by the holding company which are on regular basis, and 5 employees appointed 

by your Company on contract basis. 

 

The provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to managerial 

remuneration and requirements of disclosures in the Board’s Report as specified under 

section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the related rules thereto are not 

applicable on the Government companies in terms of notification no. GSR 463(E) dated 

June 5, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Accordingly, such 

particulars are not included as part of Directors’ Report.  

 

No remuneration is being paid to the Directors of the Company.  
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17. VIGIL MECHANISM: 

In compliance with the provisions of section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, with respect 

to establishment of vigil mechanism, the Board of Directors have approved vigil 

mechanism for employees and directors to report concerns about unethical behaviour, 

actual or suspected frauds and to provide safeguard against victimization of employees 

and Directors who avail the mechanism.  

 

The requirement of appointment of Independent Directors and constitution of Audit 

Committee is not applicable on the Company. Thus, the Board of Directors have 

nominated a director for the purpose of vigil mechanism to whom other directors and 

employees may report their concerns. 

 

Under the vigil mechanism adopted by your Company, the complaints of  

(a) nominated / deputed employees from the holding company shall be addressed as per 

the ‘Whistle blower policy’ of IRCON (Holding Company), which is available at the 

website of the IRCON at the link 

https://www.ircon.org/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=212&Itemid=6

06&lang=en along with the names and other details of the officials to whom the 

complaints are to be addressed. 

(b) for other persons in the employment of the Company, the Complaints shall be 

addressed to: 

Shri Masood Ahmad, Director,  

Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited (IrconSGTL) 

Address: C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi – 110017 

Phone No.: +91-011-26545410 

Email id: masood.ahmad@ircon.org  

 

 No complaints were received during the FY 2022-23 and no person have been denied 

access to the aforementioned designated officials / vigil mechanism adopted by the 

Company. 

18. PROTECTION OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE: 

There were no complaints of sexual harassment pending at the beginning or received by 

the Company during the year under review.  

 

Your Company has adopted the ‘Policy for Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of 

Sexual Harassment at Workplace’ (POSH Policy) formulated by the holding company, 

16



 

 

 
 

 

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2022-23 
 

IRCON, which is available at the website of the holding company at link 

https://www.ircon.org/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=212&Itemid=606&l

ang=en. The Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) of IRCON formed at the Corporate 

Office as well as its nearest project office shall be the ICC of IrconSGTL, for dealing with 

matters under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal) Act, 2013.  

 

 

19. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING: 

Your Company has requested IRCON to grant it exemption from compliance of Annual 

MoU exercise for the financial year 2022-23 and 2023-24, in line with the Memorandum of 

Understanding (MoU) Guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) dated 

10th March, 2023 and IRCON vide its letters dated 07th November, 2022 and 

06th February, 2023 has granted exemption to the Company from compliance of Annual 
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(b) that the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them 

consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so 

as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the 

financial year and loss of the company for that period; 

(c) that the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 

other irregularities; 

(d) that the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

(e) that the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the 

provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and 

operating effectively. 

 
22. AUDITOR: 

STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) appointed M/s P.R. Kumar & Co., 

Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 003186N) as the Statutory Auditors of your 

Company for the FY 2022-23, in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The Statutory Auditors of your Company have given report on the financial statements for 

the FY 2022-23 drawing attention under ‘Report on Internal Financial Controls’. The 

observations and the management's reply thereto is as under -: 

Observation of Statutory 

Auditors for FY ending 

31.03.2023 

Management Reply 

The company has independent 
software, namely "Comvision 
Tollway Management System" 
for the operation of Tollway 
Plaza and we have noticed that 
the company should have more 
robust controls so that the 
company will not lose the 
revenue in relation to overweight 
charges; 
 

Following steps have been taken to improve the 
overall internal financial control & prevent revenue 
losses on account of Toll management system 
(TMS): 

1. Issue of showing standard weight as "zero" 
has been resolved by upgrading the software 
and rectifying the bug. ISGTL is closely 
monitoring the system to ensure no revenue 
loss on this account. 

2. Timely calibration of WIM and SWB from the 
weight & measure department of Madhya 
Pradesh government department is being 
done. IE/NHAI also verifies weight at WIM & 
SWB to ensure proper collection of 
overweight charges. 

3. Internet speed has been increased from 
4mbps to 10mbps resulting in improvement in 
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efficiency of RFID readers thus resulting in 
reduced black listed Tags. 

4. Day to day audit of ETC (Electronic toll 
collection) transactions is being done to 
ensure all the transactions are uploaded on 
ETC portal. 

5. Software ICD 2.5 has been implemented to 
reduce blacklisting of tags and to increase 
efficiency of RFID. 

6. Repositioning of RFID readers in the lanes 
has resulted in an increase in efficiency of 
Tag reading and reduced cross reading 
cases. 

7. TMS has been integrated with TMCC (Toll 
Monitoring & Control Centre) portal of 
IHMCL, New Delhi for real time monitoring of 
transactions and physical fitness of hardware 
and software. 

8. New network video recorder (NVR) with Audit 
cameras is installed to improve the 
surveillance and audit transactions. 

9. Boom barriers with magnetic technology 
have been installed for smooth operation of 
each lane in place of motor-based 

 
 

COST AUDITOR: 

In accordance with the provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 

the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company has maintained cost 

accounts and records. M/s Ravi Sahni & Co., Cost Accountants were appointed as the 

Cost Auditors of the Company for FY 2022-23, in terms of the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013.  

 

INTERNAL AUDITOR: 

Your Company had appointed M/s Ravi Ranjan Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants as the 

Internal Auditors of the Company for FY 2022-23, in terms of the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013. During the year under review, M/s Ravi Ranjan Co. LLP had 

conducted internal audit on half-yearly basis and submitted their report to the Board of 

Directors.  

 

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR: 

Pursuant to provision of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, your Company 

has appointed M/s Vasisht & Associates, Company Secretary in practice (CP No. 21476), 

as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the FY 2022-23. The Secretarial Audit 
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Report for FY 2022-23 do not contain any adverse observations and forms part of this 

Report. 

 

23. C&AG REVIEW:  

The comments of Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) of India on the Financial 

Statements for the year ending March 31, 2023, have been received and are enclosed 

with the Annual Report.   

 

 

24. ANNEXURES TO THE REPORT: 

The following certificate / reports etc. are annexed and forms an integral part of this 

report: 

 

A. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED 

PARTIES: During FY 2022-23 the related party transactions were with the holding 

company, IRCON and were approved in terms of the Companies Act, 2013. These 

transactions were at arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the 

Company. The details of Related Party Transactions in form AOC-2 is enclosed to this 

report as ‘Appendix-A’.  

 

B. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT: The Secretarial Audit Report by M/s Vasisht & 

Associates is enclosed to this report as ‘Appendix-B’. 

 

25. OTHER DISCLOSURES: 

(i) Your Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by 

the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) relating to ‘Meetings of the 

Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’ during the FY 2022-23. 

(ii) Your Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the financial 

year.  

(iii) Your Company does not have Subsidiary / Associate / Joint Venture Company. 

(iv) There was no change in the nature of business of your company during the year 

ended March 31, 2023. 

(v) No application under Right to Information Act, 2005 has been received by your 

company during the FY 2022-23, however, RTI applications transferred from DPE 

were duly replied during the FY 2022-23.  

(vi) There were no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which 

would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 
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Further, there were no instances of fraud reported by the Auditors vide their Report 

for the FY 2022-23. 

(vii) There are no proceeding initiated/ pending against the Company under the 

Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the 

Company.The Company has not given any loans or guarantees or made any 

investment covered under the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 

2013. 

(viii) All Directors had disclosed his nature of their interest / concern in the company or 

companies or bodies corporate, firms, or other association of individuals as required 

under the Companies Act, 2013 from time to time.  

(ix) The Annual Report and the Annual Public Procurement Policy of your company are 

placed at the website of the holding company at link 

https://www.ircon.org/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=58&Itemid=6

11&lang=en.  
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Your Board of Directors place on record appreciation for the support extended by the 

holding company, Ircon International Limited, Ministry of Road Transport and Highways 
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support and contribution from all the employees of the Company. Your Board of Directors 

also takes this opportunity to convey their gratitude and sincere thanks for the cooperation 

and assistance received from the Shareholders during the period under report. The Board 

of Directors acknowledges your confidence and continued support and looks forward for 

the same in the future as well. 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
 

                                                                                                                  Sd/- 
 (Devendra Kumar Sharma) 

         Chairman 
               [DIN: 08556821] 

Date: 08.08.2023  
Place: New Delhi 
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‘Appendix-A’  

FORM NO. AOC-2 
 
DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS / ARRANGEMENTS ENTERED INTO 
BY THE COMPANY WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF 
SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 INCLUDING CERTAIN ARM’S LENGTH 
TRANSACTIONS UNDER FOURTH PROVISO THERETO, FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 
2022-23 

 
[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014] 
 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis : NIL 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis: As 

follows: 

Name of the 
related party 
and nature 

of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts / 

arrangements / 
transactions 

Duration of 
contracts / 

arrangements 
/ transactions 

Salient terms 
of contracts / 

arrangements / 
transactions, 
including the 
value, if any 

Date of 
approval 

by the 
BoD, if 

any 

Amount 
received / 

paid as 
advances 

by 
IrconSGTL, 

if any 
(₹ in Cr.) 

Ircon 
International 
Limited 
(IRCON),                 
Holding 
Company 

1. EPC 
Agreement  
 
(For appointing 
IRCON as 
EPC 
Contractor) 
 
 
  

Date: EPC 
Agreement 
executed on 
20.01.2021. 
 
Duration: 12 
months from 
letter of award 
dated 
01.01.2021 or 
handover of 
site, whichever 
is later.  

Execution of 
complete scope 
of work of 
Stage-II of the 
project ‘Four 
laning of 
Shivpuri to 
Guna from Km 
319.700 to Km 
332.100 in the 
State of Madhya 
Pradesh. 

26.11.20
20 

₹13.37 Cr. 
paid as 

recoupable 
advance 

2. Lease 
Agreement 
 
(To take on 
lease premises 
of IRCON as 
the Registered 
Office 
Premises of 
IrconSGTL)  
  

Date: Lease 
Agreement 
executed on 
02.06.2021 
 
Duration: 
01.07.2021 to 
31.03.2023 

Rent: @ 
₹21,236/- p.m. 
plus GST for an 
area of 65 sqm. 

22.06.20
21 

NIL 

3. Civil 
Construction 
and Electrical 
works for 
proposed 

Date: Letter of 
award dated 
26.07.2021 
 
Duration: 30 

Civil 
construction and 
electrical works 
for proposed 
two numbers of 

08.10.20
21 

NIL 
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Oxygen 
Generation 
Plants in the 
State of 
Madhya 
Pradesh 
 
(For appointing 
IRCON as 
agency for the 
works) 

days from 
issue of LOA 

oxygen plants in 
the State of 
Madhya 
Pradesh at two 
locations i.e. (i) 
District Hospital, 
Guna [1000 
LPM (DRDO)] 
and (ii) Civil 
HospitaI, Aron 
Distt., Guna 
[500 LPM 
(DRDO)], on 
reimbursement 
basis. 
 

 4. EPC 
Agreement  
 
(For appointing 
IRCON as 
EPC 
Contractor) 
 

Date: 
22.06.2023 
 
 
Duration: 12 
months for 
major 
maintenance 
and 3 years 
for Routine 
maintenance 

Appointment of 
EPC Contractor 
for execution of 
Major 
Maintenance 
(Bituminous 
Overlay) and 
three years 
Routine 
Maintenance of 
Project Highway   
 

12.05.20
23 

 

 

 

Note:  
1. Apart from the above transactions, the holding company has also deputed its employees to 

IrconSGTL, which is on actual cost (CTC) basis. The salary benefits paid to such deputed 
employees is as per IRCON’s policy and are being reimbursed by IrconSGTL on actual 
basis.  
 

2. The details of “Related Party Disclosures” as per accounting standards are being disclosed 
in Notes to the accounts in the Financial Statements. 

 
                                                                  For and on behalf of Board of Directors  

                                                                                                                    Sd/- 
(Devendra Kumar Sharma) 

         Chairman 
               [DIN: 08556821] 

Date: 08.08.2023 
Place: New Delhi 
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To. 

FQRM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPOI;tT FOR THE R NANOAL VEAR 2022-23 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Compilnies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managenal Personnel) Rules. 2014) 

The Members, 

IRCON SHIVPURJ GUNA TOLLWAY UMITED 

ON: U45400DL2015GOI280017 

(-4, District Centre, Saket, South Delh i, Delhi-110017, India 

I, Shobhit Vasisht. Proprietor of Vasisht & Associates, have conducted the Secretarial Audit of 

the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 9000 corporate 
practices by IReON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY UMITED (hereinafter called ' the Company). 

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided a reasonable basis fo r evaluating 

the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on the verification of the Com pany's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 

filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the informatio n provided by the 

Compa ny, its officers. agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 

audi t, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering 

the financial year ended on March 31 , 2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed 

hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- processes and compliance­

mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 

1 have examined the books, papers. minute books, fo rms and returns filed and othe r records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 according to the 

provisions of: 

(il The Com panies Act 2013 (the Act) and the ",Ics made thereunder. 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act. 19S6 ('SCRA'} and the rules made 

thereunder;(Not Applicable t o the Company); 

x.\& Ass·e · 
~" I~t'! 

,;.'" t.- ~'" Regd Office: 441, Sector-2, Farldabad-121004 
Branch Office: A·3S, LGF, Defence Colony, New 0eIhl-l 10024 

Emall; csOvaslshtassodates.com. Web: www.vaslshtassoclates.com 
Contact No : +91·9953259389, +91-7838940145 

1r C.PNo: 11.'0 
f CS: 11511 
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(i iij The Depositories Act 1996 and the Regulations and Bye·laws framed thereunder ;(Not 

Applicable to the Company) 

(Iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act. 1999 and the rules made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment.. Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowings ;(Not Applicable to the Company) 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India Act. 1992 ('SEBI Act'):· 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations. 2015; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(e) The Securities and Exchange board of India (Share 8ased Employee Benefits and 

Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Boa rd of India (Issue and listing of Debt securities) 

Regulations, 2008; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 and amendments thereof regard ing the 

Companies Act and dealing with client (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity shares) 

Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of securities) Regulations, 

2018; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(vij I further report that the system and processes of the Company are in place to ensure 

the compliance with general laws like labour Laws, The India n Contract Act The Sexual 

Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 

etc. For the purpose of examining adequacy of compliance with other applicable laws 

including industry / sector specific laws, under both Central and State legislation. 

reliance has been placed on the representation made by the Company and its officers 

for systems and mechanism formed by the Company for the compliance under these 

laws. 
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I have also examined compliance with the applicable provisions of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with 

respect to Board and General Meeting; 

(ii) Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises (CPSEs) 

issued by the Department of Public Enterprises vide their OM No. 18(8)/200S-GM dated 

14th May, 2010. 

(However, it is understood that as the Company is constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV), 

and such companies have got an exemption for appointment of independent directors, 

submitting Quarterly report and other Compliances of Corporate Governance Guidelines issued 

by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), vide its a .M. dated July 11, 2019 and July 8, 2014.) 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act. 

Rules. Regulations, Standards and Guidelines etc. mentioned above. 

I further report that 

• The Board of Directors of the Company has been duly constituted with Non-Executive 

Directors (including Women Director) as nominated by its Holding Company nrcon 

Intemational Limited,,), as per the Articles of Association of the Company. The changes in 

the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review 

were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

• Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 

detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, except for meetings of 

the Board of Directors, where consent for shorter notice was obtained. System exists for 

seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 

meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

• All decisions at the Boa~d Meetings. as represented by the management. were taken 

unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors. 

• As per the explanations given to me and the representations made by the Management 

and relied upon by me, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines 
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During the period under review. as explained and represented by the management there 

were no specific events/actions in pursuance of the above referred laws. rules. regulations, 

guidelines, standards etc., having a major bearing on the Company's affairs. 

Date: April 26,2023 

Place: Faridabad 

For VASISHT & ASSOCATES; 

(Company Secretaries) 

~ J<l>"~ , 
CS SHOBHIT VASISHT 

UDIN, F011517EOOO195362 

PR No, 235512022 

FCS No: 11517 

C P No: 21476 

Note: This report is to be read with the letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A 

and forms an integral part of this report. 
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To, 

The Members, 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY UMITEO 

C1N: U4S4QODL2015G0I280017 

C-4, District Centre, Saket. South DeihL Oelhi- l10017. India 

This report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on the audit 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification 

was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I 
believe that the processes and practices, j followed provide a reasonable basis for my 

opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company. 

4. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules. regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the 

verification of procedures on test basis. 

S. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an a's'surance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs 

of the Company. 

Date: ApriI26,2023 

Place: Faridabad 

FOR VASISHT & ASSOCATES; 

(Company Secretaries) 

".,u.j {.,..I# 
~'V? vo __ • 

CS SHOBHIT VASISHT 

UDIN, FOl1 517EOOO195382 

PR No: 2355/2022 

FCS No: 1151 7 

C P No: 21476 
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To, 

The Members, 

IRCON SHIVPURl GUNA TOLLWAY UMITED 

ON: U454QOD12015GDI280017 

C-4, District Centre, Saket. South Delh~ Oelhi-110017. India 

This report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

Annexun!-A 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsi bility of the management of the Company. 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on the audit 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verifteation 

was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I 

believe that the processes and practices, i followed provide a reasonable basis for my 

opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company. 
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5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an as"surance as to the fu ture viability of the Company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs 

of the Company. 

Date: April 26, 2023 

Place: Faridabad 

FOR VASISHT &. ASSOOATES; 

(Company Secretaries) 

n. tVt.J 1",.'$oJ-
~'V/ VO '-' 

CS SHOBHIT VASlSHT 

UDIN: FOl1 517EOOO195382 

PR No: 2355/2022 

FCS No: 11517 

C P No: 21476 
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C-2/4 Safdarjung Development Area , Main Aurobindo Marg, New Delhi- 110016, India 

Tel. : +91 (11) 47118888 I E-mail : prkumar@prkumar.in 

I NDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To THE MEMBERS OF 
IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Mis IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA 
TOLLWAY LIMITED (a wholly owned subsidiary of Mis IRCON International Limited 
(" th e parent Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the 
Sta tement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, 
the statement of Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the 
year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our op ini on and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information identified above when it becomes available and in doing so 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 

When we read the report mentioned above, if we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged 
with governance. As the other information is not made available to us as at the date of 
this auditor's report, we have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 
(5) of the Company's Act ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial pOSition, financial 
performance including Other Comprehensive Income, cash flows and changes in equity 
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as 
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
erro r, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial 
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any Significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
au dit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Other Matters 

We draw attention to Note No. 37(ii) of Financial statements which describe the 
management's assessment of financial impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-
19) pandemic situation, for which a definitive assessment of the impact in the 
subsequent period is dependent on the circumstances as they evolve. 
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Our opinion is not modified in this respect. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") 
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 
section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure-I a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable, 

2. We are enclosing our report in terms of Section 143(5) of the Act, on the basis 
of such ch ecks of the books and records of the company as we considered 
app ropri ate and according to the information and explanations given to us, in 
the Annexure-II on the directions and sub-directions issued by the 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India. 

3. (A) As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, 
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purpose of our audit, 

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been 
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books, 

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement 
of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and 
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account, 

d. the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended; 

e. Being a Government Company, pursuant to the Notification No. GSR 
463(E) dated 5th June 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
Government of India, provisions of sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to the Company; 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls, refer to Annexure III; 

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report 
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
th e explanations given to us : 

a. The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its 
financial position in the financial statements. Refer Note No. 32 to the 
financial statements. 

b. The company did not have long term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; 
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c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

d. (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in Note No. 37 (v) 
to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in 
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities 
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf 
of the Company or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(ii) The Management has represented that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note No 37(vi) to the 
financial statement , no funds have been received by the 
Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities 
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of 
the Funding Parties or provide any guarantee, security or the like 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been 
considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that 
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule l1(e) 
contain any material mis-statement. 

e. The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the year. 

f. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for 
maintaining books of account using accounting software which 
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable 
to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, 
reporting under Rule l1(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 
31, 2023. 

(C) Being a Government Company, pursuant to the Notification No. GSR 
463(E) dated 5th June 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
Government of India, provisions of sub-section (16) of Section 197 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to the Company; 

PLACE: NEW DELHI 
DATE: 12th MAY, 2023 

UDIN : 23501615BGYFT09133 

For P. R. Kumar & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
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Annexure-I 

ANNEXURE OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(Referred to paragraph (1) under the heading of "Report on Other Legal an.d 
Regulatory Requirements" of our report of even date) 

(i) 

(i i) 

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars 
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and 
equipment. 

(6) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars 
of intangible assets. 

(b) The Company has conducted physical verification of the property, plant 
and equipment during the financial year under audit, and no 
discrepancies observed related to fixed assets appearing under Fixed 
Assets Register. 

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than 
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements 
are duly executed in favor of the lessee), consequently clause 3(i)(c) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company 
has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of 
use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, there are no 
proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any 
benami property under the Prohibition of 6enami Property Transactions 
Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

(a) The company does not have any inventory and consequently, clause 
3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company 
has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore 
rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of 
the security of current assets at any point of time during the year. 
Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(iii) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has 
not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted 
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to 
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties, 
consequently, clause 3(iii)(a)(b)(c)(d)(e)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

(iv) The Company has not given any loan, guarantee, security or made investment 
as stipulated under Sections 185 & 186 of the Companies Act, consequently, 
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to 
be deposits from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not 
applicable. 
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(vi) The Company has maintained cost records as required under section 148(1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. However, we are neither required to carry out, nor 
have carried out any detailed examination of such accounts and records. 

(vii) (a) The company has been regular in depositing with appropriate authorities 
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident 
fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales- tax, service tax, 
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other 
material statutory dues as applicable to it. Being a wholly owned 
subsidiary of Mis IRCON International Limited (the parent company), 
majority of the employees are on standby deputation basis, therefore, 
statutory dues related to such employees, such as Provident Fund, 
Employees State Insurance Company, Professional Tax, as applicable, 
are being deducted and deposited by the parent company. However, 
Employees who are on the payroll of the company, all the employees 
related statutory dues, such as Provident Fund, Professional Tax as 
applicable, are being deducted and deposited by company on regular 
basis. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, 
employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales- tax, service tax, duty of 
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory 
dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of records of the Company, there are no 
statutory dues relating to Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, 
employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales- tax, service tax, duty of 
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory 
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not 
surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in 
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 
as income during the year. 

( ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company 
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings or in the 
payment of interest thereon to any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company 
has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or government authority. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 
to us by the management, term loans were applied for the purpose for 
which the loans were obtained. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an 
overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that 
no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term 
purposes by the Company. 
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basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company 
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings or in the 
payment of interest thereon to any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company 
has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or government authority. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 
to us by the management, term loans were applied for the purpose for 
which the loans were obtained. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an 
overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that 
no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term 
purposes by the Company. 
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(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an 
overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we 
report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or 
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, as 
defined in the Act. The Company does not hold any investment in any 
associate or joint venture (as defined in the Act) during the year ended 
31 March 2023. 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and 
procedures performed by us, we report that the Company has not raised 
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries 
(as defined under the Act). 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company 
has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer (including debt 
instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company 
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly 
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, considering 
the principles of materiality outlined in the Standard of Auditing, we 
report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been 
noticed or reported during the course of the audit. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report 
under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the 
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received 
by the Company during the year while determining the nature, timing 
and extent of our audit procedures. 

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not 
a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the transactions with related party is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of 
the Act, where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have 
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable 
accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit 
procedures, in our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till 
date for the period under audit. 

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or 
persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the 
Act are not applicable to the Company. 
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(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) and 
3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the 
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly clause 
3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(d) According to information and explanations provided to us during the 
course of audit, the Group does not have any CICs. 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the 
immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. 
Accordingly clause 3(xviii) of the Order not applicable. 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets 
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the 
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management 
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the 
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor 
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall 
due. 

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
there is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act 
pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the 
Order are not applicable. 

(xxi) The company has not prepared consolidated financial statement. Therefore, 
reporting under clause xxi of the order is not applicable. 

PLACE: NEW DELHI 
DATE: 12th MAY, 2023 

UDIN : 23501615BGYFT09133 

(Oeepak Srivastava) 
Partner 
M. No.: 501615 
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Annexure-II 

ANNEXURE OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(Referred to paragraph (2) under the heading of "Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements" of our report of even date) 

Si.No. Query Response 

1. Whether the Company has system in The company has separate software 
place to process all the accounting for managing the Operations at Toll 
transactions through IT System? If yes, Plaza, named as "Comvision Toll 
the implications of processing of Management System" and 
accounting transactions outside IT Accounting Records are being 
System on the integrity of the accounts maintained under "SAP 5/4 Hana 
along with the financial implications, if System" and both the software's are 
any, may be stated. not integrated. 

2. Whether there is any restructuring of an There were no cases of waiver / 
existing loan or cases of waiver / write off write-off of debts/loans/interest. 
of debts / loans / interest etc. made by a 
lender to the company due to the 
company's inability to repay the loan? If 
yes, the financial impact may be stated. 
Whether such cases are properly 
accounted for? (In case, lender is a 
Government company, then this direction 
is also applicable for statutory auditor of 
lender company). 

3. Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) There were no funds which have 
received / receivable for specific schemes been received / receivable for specific 
from Central/State Government or its schemes from Central/State 
agencies were properly accounted for / agencies. 
util ized as per its term and conditions? 
List the cases of deviation. 

PLACE: NEW DELHI 
DATE : 12th MAY, 2023 

UDIN : 23501615BGYFT09133 

For P. R. Kumar & Co. 
Chartered Accountants _ 

FirmNJg. No.: 003186N~_~!.f.~<f .. 

~
. : .. ~ 

, / *( New Delhi J* / '.} " : ", 

';>....... .. ,/~ 
~~ ........... ""~~ 

'f:OAr c o0 
(Deepak Srivastava) , 
Partner 
M. No.: 501615 
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Annexure - III 

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

(Referred to paragraph {3(f)} under the heading of "Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements" of our report of even date) 

[Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")] 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Mis IRCON 
SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in 
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company conSidering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy 
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our audit, the 
following material weakness has been identified as at March 31, 2023: 

The company has independent software, namely "Comvision Tollway 
Management System" for the operation of Tollway Plaza and we have noticed 
that the company should have more robust controls so that the company will 
not lose the revenue in relation to overweight charges; 

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
financial control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
a material misstatement of the company's annual financial statements will not be 
prevented or detected on a timely basis. 

In our opinion, except for the effects/possible effects of the material weakness/es 
described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the 
Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting 
were operating effectively as of March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. 
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We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in 
determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 
March 31, 2023 financial statements of the Company, and the material weakness does 
not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

PLACE: NEW DELHI 
DATE: 12th MAY, 2023 

UOIN : 23501615BGYFT09133 

For P. R. Kumar & Co. 

(Oeepak Srivastava) 
Partner 
M. No.: 501615 
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Annexure-II 

Compliance Certificate 

We have conducted the audit of annual accounts of IRCON Shivpuri Guna Tollway 

Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2023 in accordance with the directions/sub­

directions issued by the C & AG of India under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 

2013 and certify that we have complied with all the Directions/Sub-directions issued to 

us. 

PLACE: NEW DELHI 
DATE: 12th MAY, 2023 

UDIN : 23501615BGYFT09133 

For P. R. Kumar & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm R g. No.: 003186N 

(Oeepak Srivastava) 
Partner 
M. No.: 501615 
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mCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
(CIN. U45400DL2015G01280017) 
BALANCE SHEET as :It 31st March 2023 

Particulars 

l. ASSETS 
Non-current assets 

(:1) Property, Plant and equipment 
(b) Intangible Assets 

(c) lm:lllgibic assets under dC\'c!opmcm 
Cd) Financial ,\ssctS 

(i) Other Pinanci:t l Assets 
(c) Deferred tnx assets (Net) 

(t) Othe r non-current a%cts 
Total Non-current assets 

2 Currcl11 assets 

(:\) Fin:1nci:1\ /\:;sets 
(i) Trade Receivablt:s 
(ii) C<lsh nnd cash Ct]llivtl lems 

(iii) Other Financial Assets 

(b) Currcll( T:l.x Assets (Net) 
(c) Other current aSSets 

Total Current assets 

11. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
1 Equity 

(a) E'luit)" Share Capital 

(b) Other Elluiry 
Total Equiry 

2 Liabilities 
(i) Non-current li;abilitics 

(a) rinanci:tll.iabilitics 
(i) Borrowings 

(ii) Trade Payables 

Total Assets 

- DlIe~ of Micro Enrerprist:s alld Small 
Enrt:rpriscs 

. Toral o urslanuing dut:s other than of 
Micro Enrcrpriscs and Small EIl[{!rpriscs 

(iii) Orher financial Ii<lbiliu{!s 
(I» Provisions 
(c) Deferred Tax Liflbiliries Ncr 
(d) Other Non-Currcnl Liabiliries 

TotO'll Non-current liabilities 

(ii) Current liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabiliries 
(i) Burrowings 
(ii) Trade payables 

- Ducs o f Micro ElUcrpriscs and 
Smail Emcrpris{!s 

- TOlal uutsl:lOding dues Othcr 
than of J.\Iicro Enu:rprise s and S111:lU 
Enrcrpriscs 

(iii) Other fin:tncialliabitidt:s 
(b) Odlcr current Li abilities 
(c) Provisiuns 

(eI) Currelll TlX liabili ty (Net) 
Toml Current liabilities 

Tot: .. 1 Equiry ~lOd Lhlbilirics 

Ill . Summar I o f Significant Accountinl! policies 

IV. Narcs forming p:lrl of tinanci:li StatCIllL'IlI S 

Note No. 
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6 
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8.2 
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9 

10 

" 12 

13 

13.1 

13.2 
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6 

15 

15.1 

15.2 

15.3 

16 
14 

1·2 

}·4U 
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0.37 
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7.8 1 
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.l.21l 

0.55 

60.7.1 

1.42 

0.30 

0.24 

150.00 

(102.6-1) 

488.78 

0.0.1 

4.28 

.1 2.1 I 

7.01 

0 . .18 
65.50 

5H2.1 1 

6.1.24 

645.45 

47 . .1(1 
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As per our Report of even dmc atwched For and on behalf of [rcon Shivpuri GUlla Tollway imited 

P:u[ncr 
M. No. 501615 

Pbce : Ne\\" Delhi 
Dare: 12/05/2023 

i1J~~' 
/ / I~~cnder Klimar Malll)'a) 

Chief I ~xcc uri\'c Officer 

UD IN: 2-?Sb( (; rr-f3, ~ 'i /!-T ocr I J j 

Ao) 
(R;1Chn:l fOIll:tr) 

Chief Fin;1ncial Ofticcr 
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(ii) Trade payables 

. Dues o f Micro Enterprises and 
Smail Emcrrriscs 

. Tmal outsl:lOding dues O ther 
than of Micro Enu:rpriscs and S111:l11 
Emcrpriscs 

(iii) Otht:r tin:lncialli:1bitidt:s 

(b) Odler current Li abili ties 
(c) Provisiuns 

(eI> Currem TlX liability (Net) 

Tonti Current liabilities 

Tot •. 1 Equiry ~tnd Lhlbilirics 

Ill. Summar I of Significant AccOUnlinl.! )olicics 

IV. Narcs formintl:lf( of tin:1l1ci:l1 SI:llCIllL'I1I S 

Note No. 

8.1 
8.2 
H.4 

10 

II 

12 

13 

13.1 

13.2 
I~ 

6 

15 
15.1 
15.2 

15.3 
16 
14 

1-2 

3-40 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

U.37 
570.70 

7.8 1 

O. D 

.1.21) 
5M2.1 1 

0.55 
60.73 

1.42 
lUO 

0.24 
63.24 

645.45 

150.01) 
(102.M) 

47 .. 16 

488.78 

0.0.1 

~SS.S I 

4.28 

.12.11 

7.01 
0 . .1 8 

65.50 

109.28 

645.45 

iliillllG!tl 
(in Rs. erore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.46 
567.20 
20.69 

0.14 

lJ..l7 

fl. 52 
1.59 

n.lo 
11..15 

150.00 
(HK .. 10) 

493.06 

n.O.1 
2.1.1'1 

6.RO 

6AI 

11.86 
1.42 

601.86 

2.56 

604.42 

61.7() 

516.23 

26.49 

(,04.42 

As per our Report of even date attl.lchcd For and on behalf of Ircon Shivpuri Guna ToUway imited 

P:urncr 

M. No. 501615 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 12/05/ 2023 

;ij~~' 
/ / I~~cndel' KumaI' Mocu)'a) 

Chicf I ~xccuri\'c Officer 

UDIN: L?SO(Grr-f3, ~'f /3-ToCfIJJ 

)0) 
(Raellna f umar) 

Chief Financia l Officer 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

(CIN- U45400DL20t5G0I280017) 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2023 

Particulars 

I. Revenue: 

Revenue from operations 

II. Other inco me 

Ill. Total Income (I + II) 

IV. Expenses: 

Project Expenses 

Employee benefits expenses 

Finance costs 

Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairmen t 

Other Expenses 

Total Expenses (IV). 

V. Loss Before exceptional items and Tax (III - IV) 
VI. Exceptional items 
VII. Loss before tax (V + V I) 

VIII. Tax expenses: 

(I) Currcnt tax 

- For the Period 

. For earlier years (nct) 

(2) Defcrred ta, (net) 

Total Tax Expense 

IX Loss for the period from continuing operation (VII - VIII) 

X Other ComI"ehensive Income 

Xl 
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX +X) (Comprising 
profit/CLoss) and other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax) 

XII Earnings Per Equity Share: 

(For Continlling O peration) 

(I) !lasic ( Absolute Vaillc in INR) 
(2) Diluted ( Absolute Vaille in INR) 
Face Value Per E'luity Share 

As per our Report of even date attached 

For P . R. Kumar & Co. 

Chartered Accounmms 

(CI\ Dttpak SrivaStava ) 

Parmer 
M. No. 501615 

Place: New Delhi 

Dale : 12/05/2023 

(in Rs . crore) 

Note No. 
For the year ended 31st Mar For the year ended 31st 

2023 Mar 2022 

17 175.76 143.86 

18 1.75 0.21 

177.51 144.07 

I () IO(,.7R 71.05 

20 1.57 1.94 

21 40.87 41.49 

22 42.5(, 41 .56 

19 0.07 0.08 

191.85 156.12 

(14.,"\4) (12.05) 

(14.34) (12.05) 

6 

(14.34) (12.05) 

(14.34) (12.05) 

:10 (0.%) (O.HO) 

."\0 (0.96) (0.80) 

10.00 10.00 

For and on behalf of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

OirC(!,Wf 

DI N.O,)008553 

Oircndcr Kumar ~ Iaurya) 

Chief I ,xceuti"c Officer 

DI N-08190141 

(Raehna Toma r) 
Chief Financial Officer 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

(CIN- U45400DL2015G0I280017) 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2023 

Particulars 

1. Revenue: 

Revenue from operarions 

II. Other income 

Ill. Total Income (I + II) 

IV. Expenses: 

Project Expenses 

Employee benefits expenses 

Finance costs 

Depreciatio n, Amortisation and Impairment 

Other Expenses 

Total Expenses (IV). 

V. Loss Before excep tional items and Tax (Ill - IV) 
VI. Exceptional items 
VII. J.oss before tax (V + V I) 

VIII. Tax expenses: 

(I) Current tox 

- For the Period 

- For earlier ycars (nct) 

(2) Deferred ta, (net) 

Total Tax Expense 

IX Loss for the period from continuing operation (VII - VII I) 

X Other Comprehensive Income 

Xl 
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX +X) (Comprising 
profit/(Loss) and other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax) 

XII l2arnings PCI' I2quit), Share: 

(Fo r Continuing Operation) 

( I ) Ihsic (Absolutc Va ilic in INR) 
(2) Dilutcd ( Absolute Vallie in IN R) 

Face Value Per E'luit)' Share 

As per our Report of even date attached 

For P. R. Kumar & Co. 

Chartered AccoullmO{s 

(CI\ Decpak Sri\'astava ) 

Parmer 
M. No. 501615 

Place : New Ddhi 

Date: 12/05/2023 

(in Rs. crorc) 

Note No. 
For the year ended 31st Mar For the year ended 31st 

2023 Mar 2022 

17 175.76 143.86 

18 1.75 0.21 

177.51 144.07 

19 I (J('.78 71.05 

20 1.57 1.94 

21 40.87 4'1.49 

22 42.5(, 41.56 

19 0.07 0.08 

191.85 156. 12 

(14 .. 14) (12.05) 

(14 .34) (12.05) 

-

6 

(14.34) (12.05) 

-

(14.34) (12.05) 

:10 (0.%) (O.1l0) 

30 (0.%) (0.80) 

10.00 10.00 

For and on behalf o f Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

[)] N-0!)190141 

Oitcnder Kumar ~Iaur)'a) 

Chief I'.xccutive Officer 

.. 0,: 

(Rachna Tomar) 
Chief Financia l Officer 
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mCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
(CIN- U45400DUOISG0I280017) 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" M",ch 2023 

WIlDS!tl 
(in Rs . ecore) 

P:trticul:trs As at 3hn MOlt 2023 ~:II 3bl M~lr 2022 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net Profit befote la.x:Llion 

AdiustmcllI for . 

Unwinding of discount on pro\'isio n:; 
Dcprcci:uion, amo ni z;l lion and impairnlcnt 

Impairment of Im'cstmcflI 

f<immcc Co!'! 

Interest Income 

Operadng- l'rofil before Currclll /Non·CurrcrH Asset!" li nd Linbililics 
Adjustment (or . 

Dt'crl':\sc / (Incn:,lsc) in Tr:IJc Rccci\,;llJlcs/ Fill.Ulc;ai '\SSI.' IS . Loans 

Decrease I (Increase) in Other /\~SC I S & Finallcial ASSC I!' 

(Dcc.:r(';t~c) / Jnt:rc:l~c in Tr:tdc rar .. hk:~ 
(Dc((casc) / Im:rcasc in Other l.iabi lilics, Financiall.iabilitics & Provisions 

Cash gcncr:ucd from opcr:lliolls 

In cum!.! T;I X Paid (net) 

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

rurch:l~c o f Propcn r. Plant :md E(Juipmcm 

Purchase of Inl:lOgiblc .'\s~el~/ Int;!ngiblc .. ~~cl~ under developmcnt 

imerCH Recei ved 

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

I...o:ln From lReON (Hulding Cu.) 

Luan From Sla te Bank or Jndi :l 

Rcparmcn L or Luan 10 IltCON (H'lld in).: CII.) 

lkp:I!'111l:m Dr Loan ILl Sl:IIC Bank uf Indi:l 

Borrowing COS I 

NET CASH FROM FINANC ING ACTIVITIES 

(I) 

(2) 

(1+2) 

(A) 

(Il) 

(C) 

Effect or E>.ch:lngc diffcrc.:nccs o n Ir.lIlsl:lIi\lfl 01 Foreign f:urn:m:y Cash & Cash Etlui\'alcnts (D) 

NET DECREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+D+C+D) 

OPENING CASH ANI) CASH F.OlJIVALF.NTS (E) 

CLOSING CASH ANI) CASH F.OlJIVALF.NTS (F) 

NET INCRE,\SE / (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQU IVALENT (F- E) 

(l0,') 

(fJ.fJ2) 

11.111 

(1. 11) 

.l.l.n4 

67.S1 

33.31 
100.82 

(n.lll) 

100.62 

2.(10 

IJ.IR 

2.78 

(6,HI I) 

(30.46) 

(44.26) 

59.14 

1.59 

60.73 

59.14 

(12.1),) 

[).44 

41.;(, 

·11 .05 

(1). 17) 

(0.U6) 

(11.34) 

(1).41) 

19.91 

70.83 

19.10 
89 .1)3 

(OJI6) 

89.87 

(U.l I(l2) 

(27M) 
O,IH 

(27.5 1) 

502.52 

(526.nn) 

(2.66) 

(41.05) 

(67.19) 

(4.83) 

6,42 

1.59 

(4 .83) 

Note: I . T he: ;lhtH'e (:Ish Il(m ' St:l(etncfll h:l s bCl'n prl'p:tn,;d under Ihe "Imlirl'ct ;\Icdltld"as !il'l 0111 in £Ill' ' ndi:tn Accounling S':lmlard (Iml I\ S) . 7 (III S':lIemelll of C;I:-:h Flows. 

2. R~conciliatioll orCash amI C<l!<ih Eqlli\':d~JlIS anJ Components orC'lsh :1Ilt! C:lsh Equiv:Jl cnts includcJ ill the ahovc St.mJalonc SI:IIClllcnt oJ'Ca:;h FlolVs: 

Particulars 

Cash in hand 

Cheques/drafts in hand 

Remittance in Transit 
Balances with banks: 
- On curront accounts 

- Flexi Accounts 

- Deoosits with oriCJinal maturity of less than 3 months 
Tolal Cllsh :Ind Cash Et uh'alcnls :.IS ler BalaOl,,'e Shcer ,IOd SI:lIldalunc Slalcmcnl fir ClIsh Fluws 

AS:lt Jlst~l:lr2023 

1.00 

59.71 

60.71 

In RsCI'Of'cS 

As :11 31sr M:lr 2022 

o.or. 
1.53 

1.59 
• "fbt Illml 'f "(t/rlllff oJ lv 6(),71 Cmll"I (prf'/'I(J/lJ. r~rJr IV 1,59 OWl'!), prrltllll 10 E.\'CROII ' ,.-1/C 11'1)1(" ,m' rr/rl/lrJ/-/t. J /(//(/ rll Pt'!'fflll(f'wOII '~I!.I 't'ml"1I1 <'IIh'mlWllh NII.-I/' Olllll/llm, Rr 10 (ron'! ( prrrrrlllS 

)"tllr N IL) htls I1ml mrlll(lrkrt/ (II Lim J or 1\-1(961' .\1(/;lIlflUlllfr Irlm'!' 1I((lJIfJI/If.r /1"1' Irm/! ~lIJHJII _- I.~"Uldr.IJIII'/"h SJH. 

). RCC0llcili.uioll between the oJlening :1Ild dosing ha\:lIlccs in lhe Bahlllcc Shect lor liahil itics arising from lin illlcing ac ti vitic!I: 

P:lrliculars 
As at 1st A )ril2021 

(a) CashHows during the yc .. tr 
(b) Non c:Ish changc:; during the year c.lue 10 : 

Trans ition imp;1ct orlnd AS 116 
Intcrest Accnlcd 

As lit 31s1 M:lrch 2022 

(LI) Cnshflows during the YC;1r 
(b) NOll cash chnnges during the year due 10 : 

Interest Accmcd ( Ncl of in Ie res I :lid) 
As at 31st Mllrch 2023 

3. Figu res in br:lckcrs rcpre:;elll Ilurflll\\' nf c:ls h. 

4, r: i~,\lres IIr lhe prCl'inllS p'::lf hal 'C bee II rcgrr'lIpcd / rt:C:I ~!l'd wlll:n.:\'c r IIct:t: s~ :lry, 

As per our Hepon of even d ille ;t((;lched 

For p, R. Kumar & Co. 
Charlercd AccClunl:tntS 

r im ftc].:", Np.: no) 1 B6N 

P:trtncr 
M, No. SUH,I 5 

Pktcc : Ncw Delhi 

Dillc : 12/05/2023 

UDIN 23Sa(blr-~9'1{:T091J.j 

DI N-09008553 

,~~. 
(11H.:ndn KUIll:-.r 1\!.1lI1'} ,1) 

UIIl'f LXeCUIlI'l' O rtiCH I 

l ' 
~ ... ~ 

I -=f: ,r) 
'jo, 

. ~ 

; '0 

Ihln Crurcs 

Bnrrnwin's 
52(,.00 
(26.14) 

499 ,R(i 

(".KII) 

493.06 

(lbchn:t Tom:lr) 

(]lil-f rin;lnci:1! Officer 
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mCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

(CIN- U45400DL2015G0I280017) 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March 2023 

A. Equity Share Capital (For the year ended 31st Mar 2023) 

Particulars 

Balance as at 01 April, 2021 

Changes in equity share capital during the year 
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 

Changes in etluity share capital during the year 
Balance as at 31st March 2023 

B. Other Equity 

For the year ended 31st March 2022 

Reserves & Surplus 

Particulars Capital 
General Retained 

Redemption 
Reserves Earnings 

Reserve 

Balance as at 1 April, 2021 - (76.25) -
Changes in accouncing policy or prior period errors - - -

Balance as at 1 April, 2021 (Restated) - (76.25) -
Profit/ (Loss) for the year - (12.05) -
Other Comprehensive Income 

Total Comprehensive Income for the JJ.eriod - (12.05) -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 - (88.30) -

For the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Reserves & Surplus 

Particulars Capital 
General Retained 

Redemption 
Reserves Earnings 

Reserve 

Balance as at 1 April, 2022 - (88.30) -
Changes in accouncing policy or prior period errors - - -

Balance as at 1 April, 2022 (Restated) - (88.30) -
Profit/ (Loss) for the year - (14.34) -
Other Comprehensive Income 
Total Comprehensive Income for the period - (14.34) -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - (102.64) -

Other Comprehensive 
Income 

Exchange differences on 
translating the financial 
statement of a foreign 

operation 

-
-

-

-
-

Other Comprehensive 
Income 

Exchange differences on 
translating the financial 
statement of a foreign 

operation 

-

-
-

-
-

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For P:. R. Kumar & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

F"mR~; 
(CA Deepak Snvastava ) 

Partner 

M. No. 501615 

Place: New Delhi 

Date : 12/05/2023 

UDIN: '2..~ .ro((;rS'(]~"p.TOCUJ.j 

(~Ahm'd) 
Dir~ctor 

DIN-0~00S553 DIN-OS190141 

(Rs. in crore) 

Amount 
150.00 

-
150.00 

-
150.00 

(Rs. in crore) 

Total 

(76.25) 

-
(76.25) 

(12.05) 

-
(12.05) 

(88.30) 

(Rs. in crore) 

Total 

(88.30) 

-
(88.30) 

(14.34) 

-
(14.34) 

(102.64) 

mCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

(CIN- U45400DL2015G0I280017) 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March 2023 

A. Equity Share Capital (For the year ended 31st Mar 2023) 

Particulars 

Balance as at 01 April, 2021 
Changes in equity share capital during the year 
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 

Changes in etluity share capital during the year 
Balance as at 31st March 2023 

B. Other Equity 

For the year ended 31st March 2022 

Reserves & Surplus 

Particulars Capital 
General Retained 

Redemption 
Reserves Earnings 

Reserve 

Balance as at 1 April, 2021 - (76.25) -
Changes in accouncing policy or prior period errors - -

Balance as at 1 April, 2021 (Restated) - (76.25) -
Profit/ (Loss) for the year - (12.05) -
Other Comprehensive Income 

Total Comprehensive Income for the2.eriod - (12.05) -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 - (88.30) -

For the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Reserves & Surplus 

Particulars Capital 
General Retained 

Redemption 
Reserves Earnings 

Reserve 

Balance as at 1 April, 2022 - (88.30) -
Changes in accouncing policy or prior period errors - - -

Balance as at 1 April, 2022 (Restated) - (88.30) -
Profit/ (Loss) for the rear - (14.34) -
Other Comprehensive Income 
Total Comprehensive Income for the period - (14.34\ -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - (102.64) -

(Rs. in crore) 

Amount 
150.00 

-
150.00 

-
150.00 

(Rs. in crore) 

Other Comprehensive 
Income 

Exchange differences on Total 
translating the financial 
statement of a foreign 

operation 

- (76.25) 

- -
- (76.25) 

(12.05) 

-

- (12.05) 

- (88.30) 

(Rs. in crore) 

Other Comprehensive 
Income 

Exchange differences on Total 
translating the financial 
statement of a foreign 

operation 

- (88.30) 

- -
- (88.30) 
- (14.34) 

-
- (14.34) 

- (102.64) 

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For P:. R. Kumar & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

F"'nR~; 
(CA Deepak Snvastava) 

Partner 

M. No. 501615 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 12/05/2023 

UDIN: '2.2 SO (G,rS'(],~ 'I P-Toq (1 j 

(~Ahm'd) 
Di[~cto[ 

DIN-0~008553 

I!l~~ 
Chief Execucive Officer 

DIN-08190141 

~.6t 
Chief f'inancial Officer 
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• Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

iii. The company classifies all other assets as non-current. 

iv. A liability is current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period 

v. The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

vi. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

vii. The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realization in cash and cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its 
operating cycle .. 

2.3 Statement of Cash Flow 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted 
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of 
the Company are segregated based on the available information. 

2.4. Property, Plant and Equipment 

i. Recognition and initial measurement 

• Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized when it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of each item 
can be measured reliably. Property, Plant and Equipment are initially stated at their 
cost. 

Cost of asset includes 

Purchase price, net of any trade discount and rebates. 

(a) Borrowing cost if capitalization criteria is met. 
(b) Cost directly attributable to the acqUisition of the assets which incurred in bringing 

asset to its working condition for the ~t~ndedys.e. 

~
l2:~"2> )1'~7/';C~~~\ 

to .. ;. ~I 
( f) "'7 
~- ? ~'I 
o..,~,. ,c) I 
. . ' ... , .': '\, ~ 

• Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period , 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

iii. The company classifies all other assets as non-current. 

iv. A liability is current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period 

v. The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

vi. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

vii. The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realization in cash and cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its 
operating cycle .. 

2.3 Statement of Cash Flow 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted 
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of 
the Company are segregated based on the available information . 

2.4. Property, Plant and Equipment 

i. Recognition and initial measurement 

• Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized when it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of each item 
can be measured reliably. Property, Plant and Equipment are initially stated at their 
cost. 

Cost of asset includes 

Purchase price, net of any trade discount and rebates. 

(a) Borrowing cost if capitalization criteria is met. 
(b) Cost directly attributable to the acqUisition of the assets which incurred in bringing 

asset to its working condition for the ~tended .~~e. 

!~~ ~t.·/:l,} I .L 
r l ;("'~DClhi""'~~j 1 

\ ~;"'" .... /iJ 
~ 
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(c) Incidental expenditure during the construction period is capitalized as part of the 
indirect construction cost to the extent the expenditure is directly related to construction 
or is incidental thereto. 

(d) Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items & restoring 
the site on which it is located if recognition criteria are met. 

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. 

ii. Subsequent Measurement 

• Property, Plant and Equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to 
the company and cost of the expenditure can be measured reliably. 

• Cost of replacement, major inspection, repair of significant parts and borrowing costs 
for long-term construction projects are capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. 

• The machinery spares are capitalized if recognition criteria are met. 

iii. Depreciation and Useful lives 

• Depreciation on Property, plant and eqUipment, excluding freehold land and leasehold 
land acquired on perpetual lease is provided on straight line basis over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets as specified in schedule II of the Companies act, 2013. 

However, in case of certain class of assets, the Company uses different useful life than 
those prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. The useful life has been 
assessed based on technical evaluation, taking into account the nature of those 
classes of assets, the estimated usage of the asset on the basis of the management's 
best estimation of getting economic benefits from the asset. The estimated useful life 
as per the technical evaluation viz-a-viz Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 has 
been disclosed in the notes to accounts. 

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during the 
period is charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available 
for use/disposed. 

• Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if the 
cost of part is significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of that 
part is different from the useful life of remaining asset. Leasehold land acquired on 
perpetual lease is not amortized. 

• Property Plant and Equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to 
Rs. 5000/- are fully depreciated, by keeping Re. 1 as token value for identification. 
However, Mobile phones provided to employees are charged to statement of profit and 
loss irrespective of its value. 

• Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial 
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. "Ordinarily, the residual value of 

(c) Incidental expenditure during the construction period is capitalized as part of the 
indirect construction cost to the extent the expenditure is directly related to construction 
or is incidental thereto. 

(d) Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items & restoring 
the site on which it is located if recognition criteria are met. 

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. 

ii. Subsequent Measurement 

• Property, Plant and Equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to 
the company and cost of the expenditure can be measured reliably. 

• Cost of replacement, major inspection, repair of significant parts and borrowing costs 
for long-term construction projects are capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. 

• The machinery spares are capitalized if recognition criteria are met. 

iii. Depreciation and Usefu/lives 

• Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land and leasehold 
land acquired on perpetual lease is provided on straight line basis over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets as specified in schedule II of the Companies act, 2013. 

However, in case of certain class of assets, the Company uses different useful life than 
those prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. The useful life has been 
assessed based on technical evaluation, taking into account the nature of those 
classes of assets, the estimated usage of the asset on the basis of the management's 
best estimation of getting economic benefits from the asset. The estimated useful life 
as per the technical evaluation viz-a-viz Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 has 
been disclosed in the notes to accounts. 

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during the 
period is charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available 
for use/disposed. 

• Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if the 
cost of part is significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of that 
part is different from the useful life of remaining asset. Leasehold land acquired on 
perpetual lease is not amortized. 

• Property Plant and Equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to 
Rs. 5000/- are fully depreciated, by keeping Re. 1 as token value for identification. 
However, Mobile phones provided to employees are charged to statement of profit and 
loss irrespective of its value. 

• Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial 
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. "Ordinarily, the residual value of 
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an asset is up to 5% of the original cost of the asset" as specified in Schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

iv. Derecognition 

• An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any significant part initially recognized 
is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from 
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated 
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset) is 'included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized. 

2.5 Capital work in progress 

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects and are carried 
at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any. 

2.6 Investment Properties 

i. Recognition and Initial Measurement 

• Investment Property is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the property will flow to the company and the cost of property can be 
measured reliably. 

• Investment property comprises completed property, property under construction and 
property held under a lease that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or 
both, rather than for sale in the ordinary course of business or for use in production or 
administrative functions. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including 
transaction costs. 

• Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of other 
consideration given to acquire an asset at the time of its acquisition or construction or, 
where applicable, the amount attributed to that asset when initially recognized in 
accordance with the specific requirements of other Ind AS. 

ii. Subsequent Measurement and Depreciation 

• Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment loss, if any. Subsequent cost is added if recognition criteria 
is met. The company depreciates building component of investment property on 
straight line basis over 60 years from the date of original purchase! completion of 
construction. Freehold land and property under construction is not depreciated . 

• Leasehold land acquired on perpetual lease is not amortized. 

• The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of investment property 
are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
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• Though the company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, 
the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair value determined 
based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent 
valuer applying valuation model acceptable internationally. 

iii. Derecognition 

Investment Properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The 
difference between the net disposal proceeds if any and the carrying amount of the asset is 
recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period of derecognition. 

2.7 Intangible Assets 

i. Recognition and Initial Measurement 

• Intangible Assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits 
that are attributable to the asset will flow to the company and cost of the asset can be 
measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial 
recognition at cost. The cost comprises purchase price. borrowing cost if capitalization 
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working 
condition for the intended use. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised 
development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in the 
statement of profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Intangible 
assets not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed 
as "Intangible assets underdevelopment" 

ii. Subsequent Measurement and Amortization 

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Software cost up to Rs. 1 Lakhs in each case is fully amortized 
in the period of purchase, by keeping Rs. 1 as token value for identification. 

• The cost of capitalized software is amortized over a period 36 months from the date of 
its acquisition. 

• Amortization on additions to/deductions from Intangible Assets during the period is 
charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for 
use/disposed 

• Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial 
year end. 

iii. Derecognition 

• An Intangible Asset shall be derecognized on disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de­
recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 

• Though the company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, 
the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair value determined 
based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent 
valuer applying valuation model acceptable internationally. 
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i. Recognition and Initial Measurement 

• Intangible Assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits 
that are attributable to the asset will flow to the company and cost of the asset can be 
measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial 
recognition at cost. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization 
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working 
condition for the intended use. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised 
development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in the 
statement of profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Intangible 
assets not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed 
as "Intangible assets underdevelopment" 

ii. Subsequent Measurement and Amortization 

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Software cost up to Rs. 1 Lakhs in each case is fully amortized 
in the period of purchase, by keeping Rs. 1 as token value for identification. 

• The cost of capitalized software is amortized over a period 36 months from the date of 
its acquisition. 

• Amortization on additions to/deductions from Intangible Assets during the period is 
charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for 
use/disposed 

• Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial 
year end. 

iii. Derecognition 

• An Intangible Asset shall be derecognized on disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de­
recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 
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disposal proceeds if any and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in 
the statement of profit or loss when the asset is de-recognised. 

iv. Toll Collection Right (Toll Road Service Concession Arrangement) 

a) In respect of Public to Private Arrangements (PPA), on a Built-Operate-Transfer (BOT) 

basis, Intangible Assets i.e. Right to coliect toli/tariff are recognised when the company 

has been granted rights to charge a toli/tariff from the users of such public services 

and such rights do not confer an unconditional right on the Group to receive cash or 

another Financial Asset and when it is probable that future economic benefits 

associated with the rights will flow to the company and the cost of the asset can be 

measured reliably. 

b) The company constructs or upgrades infrastructure (construction or upgrade services) 

used to provide a public service and operates and maintains that infrastructure 

(operation services) for a specified period of time. These arrangements may include 

infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire 

useful life. 

c) Under the Concession Agreements, where the company has received the right to 

charge users of the public service, such rights are recognised and classified as 

"Intangible Assets" in accordance with Appendix C to Ind AS 115 - Service Concession 

Arrangements. 

d) Such right is not an unconditional right to receive consideration because the amounts 

are contingent to the extent that the public uses the service and thus are recognised 

and classified as intangible assets. Such an intangible asset is recognised by the 

company at cost (which is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for 

the construction services delivered) and is capitalized when the project is complete in 

ali respects and when the company receives the completion certificate from the 

authority as specified in the Concession Agreement. 

e) An asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognised on disposal or when 

no future economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal. 

disposal proceeds if any and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in 
the statement of profit or loss when the asset is de-recognised. 

iv. Toll Collection Right (Toll Road Service Concession Arrangement) 

a) In respect of Public to Private Arrangements (PPA), on a Built-Operate-Transfer (BOT) 

basis, Intangible Assets i.e. Right to collect toll/tariff are recognised when the company 

has been granted rights to charge a toll/tariff from the users of such public services 

and such rights do not confer an unconditional right on the Group to receive cash or 

another Financial Asset and when it is probable that future economic benefits 

associated with the rights will flow to the company and the cost of the asset can be 

measured reliably. 

b) The company constructs or upgrades infrastructure (construction or upgrade services) 

used to provide a public service and operates and maintains that infrastructure 

(operation services) for a specified period of time. These arrangements may include 

infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire 

useful life. 

c) Under the Concession Agreements, where the company has received the right to 

charge users of the public service, such rights are recognised and classified as 

"Intangible Assets" in accordance with Appendix C to Ind AS 115 - Service Concession 

Arrangements. 

d) Such right is not an unconditional right to receive consideration because the amounts 

are contingent to the extent that the public uses the service and thus are recognised 

and classified as intangible assets. Such an intangible asset is recognised by the 

company at cost (which is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for 

the construction services delivered) and is capitalized when the project is complete in 

all respects and when the company receives the completion certificate from the 

authority as specified in the Concession Agreement. 

e) An asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognised on disposal or when 

no future economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal. 
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f) Service Concession Arrangements that meet the definition of an Intangible Asset are 

recognised at cumulative construction cost. Till completion of construction of the 

project, such arrangements are recognised as "Intangible Assets Under Development" 

and are recognised at cumulative construction cost. 

g) The estimated useful life of an intangible asset in a service concession arrangement 

is the period from where the company is able to charge the public for use of 

infrastructure to the end of the concession period. 

h) Toll collection right is amortized using straight line method on pro-rata basis from the 

date of addition or from the date when the right brought in to service to the expiry of 

concession period. 

i) Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date, with the 

effect of change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 

j) The carrying value of intangible asset is reviewed for impairment annually or more 

often if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be 

recoverable. 

2.8 Cash and cash Equivalent 

Cash and cash equivalent include cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term deposits with 
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted 
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above as they are considered an integral part of the 
Company's cash management. 

2.9 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities 

i. Provisions 

a) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognized as a 
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f) Service Concession Arrangements that meet the definition of an Intangible Asset are 
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often if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be 

recoverable . 

2.8 Cash and cash Equivalent 

Cash and cash equivalent include cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term deposits with 
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted 
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above as they are considered an integral part of the 
Company's cash management. 

2.9 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities 

i. Provisions 

a) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognized as a 
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provIsion is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period , considering the risk and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. 

b) If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a 
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as a finance cost. 

c) Provisions recognised by the Company include provisions for Maintenance, 
Demobilization, Design Guarantee, Legal Cases, Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR), Onerous Contracts and others. 

ii. Onerous contracts 

a) An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs 
that the company cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations 
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The 
unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, 
which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising 
from failure to fulfil it. If the company has a contract that is onerous, the present 
obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision. However, 
before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the company 
recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract. 

b) These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates. 

iii. Contingent liabilities 

a) Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present 
obligations that may but probably will not, requ ire an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood 
of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or 
disclosure is made. 

b) These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimates. 

iv. Contingent assets 

Contingent assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic 
benefits is probable. 

provIsion is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, considering the risk and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. 

b) If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a 
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as a finance cost. 

c) Provisions recognised by the Company include provisions for Maintenance, 
Demobilization, Design Guarantee, Legal Cases, Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR), Onerous Contracts and others. 

ii. Onerous contracts 

a) An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (Le., the costs 
that the company cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations 
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The 
unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, 
which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising 
from failure to fulfil it. If the company has a contract that is onerous, the present 
obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision. However, 
before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the company 
recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract. 

b) These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates. 

iii. Contingent liabilities 

a) Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present 
obligations that may but probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood 
of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or 
disclosure is made. 

b) These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimates. 

iv. Contingent assets 

Contingent assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic 
benefits is probable. 
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2.10 Revenue Recognition 

i. The Company recognizes and measures revenue from construction in accordance with 

Ind AS -115"Revenue from Contracts with Customers". 

ii. Transaction price (it does not involve significant financing component) is the price which is 

contractually agreed with the customer for provision of services. Revenue is measured at the 

transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation and it excludes amounts 

collected on behalf of third parties i.e GST and is adjusted for variable considerations. 

iii. The nature of Company's contract gives rise to several types of variable consideration 

including escalation and liquidated damages. 

iv. Any subsequent change in the transaction price is then allocated to the performance 

obligations in the contract on the same basis as at contract inception. 

v. The Company recognizes revenue for variable consideration when it is probable that a 

significant reversal in the amount cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The company 

estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable consideration using the 

expected value or most likely amount method whichever is better predict the amount. 

vi. Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied performance obligation are recognised as 

revenue, or as a reduction of revenue, in the period in which the transaction price changes. 

vii. The company satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes the revenue overtime, if any 

of the following criteria is met: 

• The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the 

entity's performance as the entity perform. 

• The entity's performance creates or enhances an asset (for example. work in 

progress) that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced or 

• The entity's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the 

entity and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed 

to date. ' . 

2.10 Revenue Recognition 

i. The Company recognizes and measures revenue from construction in accordance with 

Ind AS -115"Revenue from Contracts with Customers". 

ii. Transaction price (it does not involve significant financing component) is the price which is 

contractually agreed with the customer for provision of services. Revenue is measured at the 

transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation and it excludes amounts 

collected on behalf of third parties i.e GST and is adjusted for variable considerations. 

iii. The nature of Company's contract gives rise to several types of variable consideration 

including escalation and liquidated damages. 

iv. Any subsequent change in the transaction price is then allocated to the performance 

obligations in the contract on the same basis as at contract inception. 

v. The Company recognizes revenue for variable consideration when it is probable that a 

significant reversal in the amount cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The company 

estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable consideration using the 

expected value or most likely amount method whichever is better predict the amount. 

vi. Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied performance obligation are recognised as 

revenue, or as a reduction of revenue, in the period in which the transaction price changes. 

vii. The company satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes the revenue overtime, if any 

of the following criteria is met: 

• The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the 

entity's performance as the entity perform. 

• The entity's performance creates or enhances an asset (for example, work in 

progress) that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced or 

• The entity's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the 

entity and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed 

to date. '. 
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viii. For performance obligation satisfied over time, the revenue recognition is done by measuring 

the progress, using percentage completion method, towards complete satisfaction of 

performance obligation. The progress is measured in terms of a proportion of actual cost 

incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation. 

ix. Performance obligation is measured by applying input method. In the contracts where 

performance obligation cannot be measured by input method, the output method is applied, 

which faithfully depict the Company's performance towards complete satisfaction of the 

performance obligation. 

x. Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved 

either to the contract scope or contract price. 

xi. The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added 

to the existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price. 

Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while 

those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if 

additional services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of existing 

contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price. 

xii. Contract balances 

• Contract assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods 

or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring 

goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before 

payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is 

conditional 

• Trade receivables: A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of 

consideration that is unconditional (i.e ., only the passage of time is required before 

payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets 

in section Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement. 

• Contract liabilities: A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services 
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to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of 

consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before 

the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is 

recognised when the payment is made, orthe payment is due (whichever is earlier). 

Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under 

the contract 

xiii. Revenue from toll collection 

The Company recognizes toil revenue as and when it collects at Transaction Price i.e usage fee. 

Which is exclusive of amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

xiv. Other income 

• Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. 

• Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate method. 

• Miscellaneous income is recognized when performance obligation is satisfied and 

right to receive the income is established as per terms of contract. 

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets 

i. At each reporting date, the company assesses, whether there is an indication that an asset may 

be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, 

the company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the 

higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value 

in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not 

generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. 

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is 

considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss, 

including impairment on inventories are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

ii. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 

and the risks specific to the asset. 
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iii. For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether 

there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have 

decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable 

amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in 

the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss 

was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed 

its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 

depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior period. Such reversal 

is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

2.12 Inventories 

i. Inventories (including scrap) are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost 

includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 

inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on First in First out 

(FIFO) basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 

business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the 

sale. 

ii. Construction work-in-progress is valued at cost till such time the outcome of the job cannot be 

ascertained reliably and at lower of cost or realizable value thereafter. 

iii. The initial contract expenses on new projects for mobilization are recognized as construction 

work-in-progress in the year of incidence, and pro rata charged to statement of profit and loss 

of the project over the period at the same percentage as the stage of completion of the contract 

as at the end of reporting period. Site mobilization expenditure to the extent not written off 

valued at cost. 

iv. In Cost Plus contracts, where the cost of all materials, spares and stores not reimbursable as 

per the terms of the contract is shown as inventory valued as per (a) above. 

v. Loose tools are expensed in the period of purchase. 

2.13 Borrowing Cost 

iii. For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether 
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its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 

depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior period. Such reversal 

is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

2.12 Inventories 

i. Inventories (including scrap) are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost 

includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 

inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on First in First out 

(FIFO) basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 

business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the 

sale. 

ii. Construction work-in-progress is valued at cost till such time the outcome of the job cannot be 

ascertained reliably and at lower of cost or realizable value thereafter. 

iii. The initial contract expenses on new projects for mobilization are recognized as construction 

work-in-progress in the year of incidence, and pro rata charged to statement of profit and loss 

of the project over the period at the same percentage as the stage of completion of the contract 

as at the end of reporting period. Site mobilization expenditure to the extent not written off 

valued at cost. 

iv. In Cost Plus contracts, where the cost of all materials, spares and stores not reimbursable as 

per the terms of the contract is shown as inventory valued as per (a) above. 

v. Loose tools are expensed in the period of purchase. 

2.13 Borrowing Cost 
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Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the company incurs in connection with the 

borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 

of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale 

are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to statement of 

profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded 

as an adjustment to the borrowing costs . 

2.14 Employee Benefits 

i. Short Term Employee Benefits 

Employee benefits such as salaries, short term compensated absences, and Performance Related 

Pay (PRP) falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short­

term employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the statement of 

profit and loss in in the period in which the employee renders the related services. 

ii. Post-employment benefits & other Long Term Employee Benefits 

The post employee benefits & other long term Employee Benefits are provided by Ircon International 

Limited, the Holding Company, as the employees are on the deputation from the Holding Company. 

2.15 Leases 

The company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the 

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for 

consideration. 

i. Company as a lessee 

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short­

term leases and leases of low-value assets. The company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease 

payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the company incurs in connection with the 

borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 

of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale 

are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to statement of 

profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded 

as an adjustment to the borrowing costs . 

2.14 Employee Benefits 

i. Short Term Employee Benefits 

Employee benefits such as salaries, short term compensated absences, and Performance Related 

Pay (PRP) falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short­

term employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the statement of 

profit and loss in in the period in which the employee renders the related services. 

ii. Post-employment benefits & other Long Term Employee Benefits 

The post employee benefits & other long term Employee Benefits are provided by Ircon International 

Limited, the Holding Company, as the employees are on the deputation from the Holding Company. 

2.15 Leases 

The company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the 

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for 

consideration. 

i. Company as a lessee 

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short­

term leases and leases of low-value assets. The company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease 

payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. 
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A. Right-of-use assets 

• The company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease 

(i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are 

measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and 

adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets 

includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and 

lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives 

received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter 

of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold land acquired 

on perpetual lease is not amortized. 

• If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the company at the end of the lease term 
or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using 
the estimated useful life of the asset. 

• The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. 
• on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

• Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates 
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items 

recognised outside profit or loss, in which case is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other 

comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlyi 

B. Lease liabilities 

• At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognizes lease liabilities 

measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The 

lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less 

any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or 

a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease 

payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to 

be exercised by the company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if 

A. Right-at-use assets 

• The company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease 

(i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are 

measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and 

adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets 

includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and 

lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives 

received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter 

of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold land acquired 

on perpetual lease is not amortized. 

• If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the company at the end of the lease term 
or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using 
the estimated useful life of the asset. 

• The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. 
• on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

• Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates 
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items 

recognised outside profit or loss, in which case is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other 

comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlyi 

B. Lease liabilities 

• At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognizes lease liabilities 

measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term . The 

lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less 

any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or 

a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease 

payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to 

be exercised by the company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if 
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the lease term reflects the company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease 

payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless 

they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition 

that triggers the payment occurs. 

• In calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses its incremental 

borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in 

the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of 

lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease 

payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if 

there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments 

(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to 

determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to 

purchase the underlying asset. 

• The company's lease liabilities are included in financial liabilities. 

C. Short term lease and leases of low value assets 

• The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term 

leases contracts including lease of residential premises and offices (i.e., those leases 

that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not 

contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition 

exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. The 

Company furthe also treats those leases as low value, whose lease term may be over 

one year, but whose effect of non categorizing them as right to use assets and charging 

them over the lease term vis-a-vis accounting them as an expense on a year to year 

basis is not material. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value 

assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

• The company has given adjustments for lease accounting in accordance with Ind AS 

116 which came into effect on 1 April 2019, and all the related figures have been 

reclassified/ regrouped to give effect to the requirements of Ind AS 116. 

the lease term reflects the company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease 

payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless 

they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition 

that triggers the payment occurs. 

• In calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses its incremental 

borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in 

the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of 

lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease 

payments made. In addition , the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if 

there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments 

(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to 

determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to 

purchase the underlying asset. 

• The company's lease liabilities are included in financial liabilities. 

C. Short term lease and leases of low value assets 

• The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term 

leases contracts including lease of residential premises and offices (i.e., those leases 

that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not 

contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition 

exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. The 

Company furthe also treats those leases as low value, whose lease term may be over 

one year, but whose effect of non categorizing them as right to use assets and charging 

them over the lease term vis-a-vis accounting them as an expense on a year to year 

basis is not material. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value 

assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

• The company has given adjustments for lease accounting in accordance with Ind AS 

116 which came into effect on 1 April 2019, and all the related figures have been 

reclassified/ regrouped to give effect to the requirements of Ind AS 116. 
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ii. Company as a lessor 

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 

to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted 

for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of 

profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arrang ing 

an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the 

lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in 

the period in which they are earned. 

2.16 Current income tax 

• Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be 

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with relevant tax 

regulations. Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income 

for the period and is computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current 

income tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates 

to items recognised outside profit or loss in which case .it is recognized outside profit 

or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are 

recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to 

situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and 

establishes provisions where appropriate. 

• Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally 

enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the 

asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

2.17 Deferred tax 

• Deferred tax is provided using the liability method ng transaction either in oel or 

directly in equity. 

ii. Company as a lessor 
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profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arrang ing 
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situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and 
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asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

2.17 Deferred tax 

• Deferred tax is provided using the liability method ng transaction either in oel or 

directly in equity. 
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• Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable 

profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the 

carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. 

• The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and 

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised 

deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the 

extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax 

asset to be recovered. 

2.18 Operating Segment 

Operating segments are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reporting provided by the 

chief operating decision maker (CODM). Company has identified only one reportable segment. 

2.19 Earnings per Share 

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity 

shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted 

average number of shares outstanding during the period 

In determining diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity sha reholders and 

weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all 

dilutive potential equity shares. 

2.20 Foreign Currencies 

i. Functional and Presentation Currency 

• Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary 

economic environment in which the entity operates ("the functional currency"). The financial 

statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also the functional and presentation currency 

of the company. 

ii. Transactions and Balances 

• Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable 

profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the 

carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. 

• The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and 

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised 

deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the 

extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax 

asset to be recovered. 

2.18 Operating Segment 

Operating segments are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reporting provided by the 

chief operating decision maker (CODM). Company has identified only one reportable segment. 

2.19 Earnings per Share 

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity 

shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted 

average number of shares outstanding during the period 

In determining diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity sha reholders and 

weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all 

dilutive potential equity shares. 

2.20 Foreign Currencies 

i. Functional and Presentation Currency 

• Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary 

economic environment in which the entity operates (lithe functional currency"). The financial 

statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also the functional and presentation currency 

of the company. 

ii. Transactions and Balances 
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• Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange 

rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 

• Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the reporting date are converted to functional 

currency using the closing rate (Closing selling rates for liabilities and closing buying rate for 

assets). Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost 

are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions. 

• Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items, or restatement as at reporting date, 

at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded , are recognized in the statement 

of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. These exchange differences are presented in 

the statement of profit and loss on net basis. 

2.21 Fair value measurement 

i. The company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period. 

ii. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 

liability takes place either: 

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

the principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company. 

iii. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their 

economic best interest. 

iv. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability 

to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to 

another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

• Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange 

rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 

• Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the reporting date are converted to functional 

currency using the closing rate (Closing selling rates for liabilities and closing buying rate for 

assets) . Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost 

are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions. 

• Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items, or restatement as at reporting date, 

at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement 

of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. These exchange differences are presented in 

the statement of profit and loss on net basis. 

2.21 Fair value measurement 

i. The company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period. 

ii. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 

liability takes place either: 

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

the principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company. 

iii. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their 

economic best interest. 

iv. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability 

to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to 

another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
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v. The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable 

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

vi. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 

are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level 

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

a) Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

b) Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

c) Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable 

vii. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 

Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re­

assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period . 

viii. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, if any. At each 

reporting date, the company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which 

are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the company's accounting policies. 

ix. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and 

liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level 

of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

x. Above is the summary of accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are 

given in the relevant notes. 

2.22 Dividend to equity holders 

v. The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable 

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

vi. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 

are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level 

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

a) Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

b) Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

c) Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable 

vii. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 

Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re­

assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

viii. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, if any. At each 

reporting date, the company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which 

are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the company's accounting policies. 

ix. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and 

liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level 

of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

x. Above is the summary of accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are 

given in the relevant notes. 

2.22 Dividend to equity holders 
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Annual Dividend distribution to the company's equity shareholders is recognized as liability in the 

period in which dividend is approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend is recognized as 

liability on approval by the Board of Directors. Dividend payable and corresponding tax on dividend 

distribution, if any is recognized directly in equity. 

2.23 Financial instruments 

• A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

i. Financial assets 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 

• All Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus or minus transaction cost that 

are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial 

assets at fair value through profit and loss). Transaction costs directly attributable to the 

acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 

recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss. 

b) Subsequent measurement 

• For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

A. Debt instruments at amortised cost 

• A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for 

collecting contractual cash flows, and 

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

• After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised 

cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method., Amortised cost is calculated by taking into 
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Annual Dividend distribution to the company's equity shareholders is recognized as liability in the 

period in which dividend is approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend is recognized as 

liability on approval by the Board of Directors. Dividend payable and corresponding tax on dividend 

distribution, if any is recognized directly in equity. 

2.23 Financial instruments 

• A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

i. Financial assets 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 

• All Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus or minus transaction cost that 

are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial 

assets at fair value through profit and loss). Transaction costs directly attributable to the 

acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 

recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss. 

b) Subsequent measurement 

• For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

A. Debt instruments at amortised cost 

• A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for 

collecting contractual cash flows, and 

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

• After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised 

cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method., Amortised cost is calculated by taking into , 
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account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of 

the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses 

arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies 

to trade and other receivables. 

B. Debt instruments at FVTOCI 

• A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

a. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash 

flows and selling the financial assets, and 

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount 

outstanding. 

• Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at 

each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other 

comprehensive income (OCI). However, the company recognizes interest income, 

impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit 

and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in 

OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest eamed whilst 

holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income in statement of profit and 

loss using the EIR method. 

C. Debt instruments at FVTPL 

a) FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not 

meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at 

FVTPL. 

b) Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all 

changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

D. Equity instruments 

account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of 

the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses 

arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies 

to trade and other receivables. 

B. Debt instruments at FVTOCI 

• A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

a. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash 

flows and selling the financial assets, and 

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount 

outstanding. 

• Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at 

each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other 

comprehensive income (OCI). However, the company recognizes interest income, 

impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit 

and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in 

OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest eamed whilst 

holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income in statement of profit and 

loss using the EIR method. 

C. Debt instruments at FVTPL 

a) FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not 

meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at 

FVTPL. 

b) Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all 

changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

D. Equity instruments 
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• All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity 

instruments which are held for trading classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity 

instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other 

comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The company makes such 

election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 

recognition and is irrevocable. 

• If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value 

changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no 

recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of 

investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

• Equity instruments included within the FVTPl category are measured at fair value with all 

changes recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. 

E. Impairment of financial assets 

• ECl is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in 

accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (Le., 

all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. 

• In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECl) model for 

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and 

credit risk exposure: 

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost 

e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance 

b. Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI 

c. lease receivables under Ind AS 116 

d. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial 

asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115 

e. loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPl 

f. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPl 

• All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity 

instruments which are held for trading classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity 

instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other 

comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The company makes such 

election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 

recognition and is irrevocable. 

• If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value 

changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no 

recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of 

investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

• Equity instruments included within the FVTPl category are measured at fair value with all 

changes recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. 

E. Impairment of financial assets 

• ECl is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in 

accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (Le. , 

all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. 

• In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECl) model for 

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and 

credit risk exposure: 

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost 

e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance 

b. Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI 

c. lease receivables under Ind AS 116 

d. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial 

asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115 

e. loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPl 

f. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPl 
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• The company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance 

on: 

a. Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and 

b. All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116 

• The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in 

credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime Eels at each 

reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

• For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the 

company determines that whether there has been a sig nificant increase in the credit risk 

since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month Eel is used 

to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime 

Eel is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that 

there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity 

reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month EeL. 

• Lifetime Eel are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over 

the expected life of a financial asset. The 12-month Eel is a portion of the lifetime Eel 

which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting 

date 

• Eel impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized 

as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the 

head 'other expenses' in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation 

for various financial instruments is described below: 

• Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and 

lease receivables: Eel is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the 

measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net 

carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not reduce 

impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

• The company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance 

on: 

a. Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and 

b. All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116 

• The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in 

credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime Eels at each 

reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

• For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the 

company determines that whether there has been a sig nificant increase in the credit risk 

since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month Eel is used 

to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime 

Eel is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that 

there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity 

reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month EeL. 

• Lifetime Eel are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over 

the expected life of a financial asset. The 12-month Eel is a portion of the lifetime Eel 

which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting 

date 

• Eel impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized 

as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the 

head 'other expenses' in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation 

for various financial instruments is described below: 

• Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and 

lease receivables: Eel is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the 

measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net 

carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not reduce 

impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 
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• loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECl is presented as a provision in 

the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability. 

• Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVOCI, the 

expected credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which 

remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the 

asset was measured at amortised cost is recognised in other comprehensive income as 

the 'accumulated impairment amount" 

• The company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial 

assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination. 

F. Derecognition of financial assets 

a) A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of 

similar financial assets) is derecognized only when the contractual rights to the cash flows 

from the asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and substantially all risks and 

rewards of the ownership of the asset. 

b) The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received / 

receivable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

ii. Financial liabilities 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 

• All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 

borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

• The company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, 

other financial liabilities etc. 

• loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECl is presented as a provision in 

the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability. 

• Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVOCI, the 

expected credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which 

remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the 

asset was measured at amortised cost is recognised in other comprehensive income as 

the 'accumulated impairment amount" 

• The company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial 

assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination. 

F. Derecognition of financial assets 

a) A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of 

similar financial assets) is derecognized only when the contractual rights to the cash flows 

from the asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and substantially all risks and 

rewards of the ownership of the asset. 

b} The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received / 

receivable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

ii. Financial liabilities 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 

• All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 

borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

• The company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, 

other financial liabilities etc. 
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• The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described 

below: 

a. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 

The company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL. 

b. Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

A. Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities 

• After initial recognition, Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 

recognised in statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well as 

through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 

any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 

EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

B. Derecognition of financial liabilities 

• A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 

cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 

same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 

substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition 

of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 

carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

iii. Financial guarantee contracts 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are those contracts that require a payment 

to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make 

a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee 

contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are 

• The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described 

below: 

a. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 

The company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL. 

b. Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

A. Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities 

• After initial recognition, Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 

recognised in statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well as 

through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 

any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 

EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

B. Derecognition of financial liabilities 

• A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 

cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 

same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 

substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition 

of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 

carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

iii. Financial guarantee contracts 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are those contracts that require a payment 

to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make 

a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee 

contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are 
/..--:-.- -::--" 

~~/~_Y. "~~1 .. 
; /N ~ ~ ..... ~ 
\~... . . ~: .. ~~-

~-?(O~.: .~.:.;: .. ; .. {,?' 
~. 

72



directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the 

higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 

and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. 

iv. Reclassification of financial assets 

The company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After 

initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and 

financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only 

if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business 

model are expected to be infrequent. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in 

the business model occurs when the company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that 

is significant to its operations. If the company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the 

reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately 

next reporting period following the change in business model. The company does not restate any 

previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest. 

v. Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance 

sheet if there is a currently enforceable contractual legal right to offset the recognised amounts and 

there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 

simultaneously. 

2.24 Non - current asset held for sale 

a) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying 

amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly 

probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is 

available for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn, 

and sale is expected within one year from the date of the classification. Disposal groups classified 

as held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. 

Property, plant and equipment, Investment property and intangible assets are not depreciated or 

amortized once classified as held for sale. Assets classified as held for sale/distribution are 

presented separately in the balance sheet. 

directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the 

higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 

and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. 

iv. Reclassification of financial assets 

The company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After 

initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and 

financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only 

if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business 

model are expected to be infrequent. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in 

the business model occurs when the company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that 

is significant to its operations. If the company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the 

reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately 

next reporting period following the change in business model. The company does not restate any 

previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest. 

v. Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance 

sheet if there is a currently enforceable contractual legal right to offset the recognised amounts and 

there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 

simultaneously. 

2.24 Non - current asset held for sale 

a) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying 

amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly 

probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is 

available for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn, 

and sale is expected within one year from the date of the classification. Disposal groups classified 

as held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. 

Property, plant and equipment, Investment property and intangible assets are not depreciated or 

amortized once classified as held for sale. Assets classified as held for sale/distribution are 

presented separately in the balance sheet. 
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b) If the criteria stated by IND AS 105 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale" are no longer met, the 

disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale. Non-current asset that ceases to be 

classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of 

i. its carrying amount before the asset was classified as held for sale, adjusted for 

depreciation that would have been recognized had that asset not been classified as 

held for sale, and 

ii. its recoverable amount at the date when the disposal group ceases to be classified as 

held for sale. 

The depreciation reversal adjustment related property, plant and equipment, Investment property 

and intangible assets is charged to statement of profit and loss in the period when non-current assets 

held for sale criteria are no longer met. 

2.25 Prior Period Adjustment 

Errors/omissions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial and 

adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does not exceed 0.50% 

of total operating revenue as per last audited financial statement of the Company. 

2.26 Significant accounting estimates and judgments 

• The estimates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are continuously evaluated 

by the company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors 

(including expectations of future events), that thecompany believes to be reasonable under the 

existing circumstances. 

• The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that 

occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the 

reporting date. Although the company regularly assesses these estimates, actual results could 

differ materially from these estimates - even if the assumptions underlying such estimates were 

reasonable when made, if these results differ from historical experience or other assumptions do 

not turn out to be substantially accurate. The changes in estimates are recognized in the financial 

statements in the period in which they become known. 

b) If the criteria stated by IND AS 105 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale" are no longer met, the 

disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale. Non-current asset that ceases to be 

classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of 

i. its carrying amount before the asset was classified as held for sale, adjusted for 

depreciation that would have been recognized had that asset not been classified as 

held for sale, and 

ii. its recoverable amount at the date when the disposal group ceases to be classified as 

held for sale. 

The depreciation reversal adjustment related property, plant and equipment, Investment property 

and intangible assets is charged to statement of profit and loss in the period when non-current assets 

held for sale criteria are no longer met. 

2.25 Prior Period Adjustment 

Errors/omissions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial and 

adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does not exceed 0.50% 

of total operating revenue as per last audited financial statement of the Company. 

2.26 Significant accounting estimates and judgments 

• The estimates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are continuously evaluated 

by the company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors 

(including expectations of future events), that thecompany believes to be reasonable under the 

existing circumstances. 

• The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that 

occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the 

reporting date. Although the company regularly assesses these estimates, actual results could 

differ materially from these estimates - even if the assumptions underlying such estimates were 

reasonable when made, if these results differ from historical experience or other assumptions do 

not turn out to be substantially accurate. The changes in estimates are recognized in the financial 

statements in the period in which they become known. 
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• The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 

reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Actual results could 

differ from these estimates. 

i. Allowances for uncollected trade receivables 

• Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by 

appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the receivables 

balances and historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management 

deems not be collectible. 

ii. Contingencies ' 

• In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims 

against the company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based 

on all available facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify reliably 

and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although there can 

be no assurance of the final outcome of legal proceedings in which the company is involved. it is 

not expected that such contingencies s will have material effect on its financial position of 

probability. 

iii. Impairment of financial assets 

• The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and 

expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting 

the inputs to the impairment calculation., based on the company's past history, existing market 

conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 

iv. Taxes 

• Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax 

laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business differences 

arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such 

• The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 

reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Actual results could 

differ from these estimates. 

i. Allowances for uncollected trade receivables 

• Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by 

appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the receivables 

balances and historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management 

deems not be collectible. 

ii. Contingencies ' 

• In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims 

against the company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based 

on all available facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify reliably 

and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although there can 

be no assurance of the final outcome of legal proceedings in which the company is involved. it is 

not expected that such contingencies s will have material effect on its financial position of 

probability. 

iii. Impairment of financial assets 

• The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and 

expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting 

the inputs to the impairment calculation., based on the company's past history, existing market 

conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 

iv. Taxes 

• Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax 

laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business differences 

arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such 
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assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. 

The company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such 

provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing 

interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such 

differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions 

prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies. 

• Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that 

taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management 

judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, 

based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning 

strategies. 

v. Impairment of non-financial assets 

• Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its 

recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. 

The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales 

transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices less 

incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. 

vi. Non-current asset held for sale 

• Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying 

amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly 

probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is available 

for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn, and sale is 

expected within one year from the date of the classification. 

vii. Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate 

• The company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its 

incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that 

the company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds 

assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. 

The company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such 

provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing 

interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such 

differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions 

prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies. 

• Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that 

taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management 

judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, 

based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning 

strategies. 

v. Impairment of non-financial assets 

• Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its 

recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. 

The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales 

transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices less 

incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. 

vi. Non-current asset held for sale 

• Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying 

amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly 

probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is available 

for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn, and sale is 

expected within one year from the date of the classification. 

vii. Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate 

• The company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its 

incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that 

the company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds 
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necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic 

environment. 

viii. Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options - company as 

Lessee 

• The company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with 

any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or 

any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be 

exercised. 

• The company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The company 

applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the 

option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an 

economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement 

date, the company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in 

circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option 

to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant 

customisation to the leased asset). 

ix. Revenue recognition 

• The company's revenue recognition policy, which is set out in Note 2.10, is central to how the 

company values the work it has carried out in each financial year. 

• These policies require forecasts to be made of the outcomes of Contracts, which require 

assessments and judgments to be made on changes in scope of work and claims and variations. 

• Estimates are also required with respect to the determination of stage of completion and estimation 

of project completion date: 

• Determination of stage of completion 

• Estimation of project completion date 

necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic 

environment. 

viii. Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options - company as 

Lessee 

• The company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with 

any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or 

any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be 

exercised. 

• The company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The company 

applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the 

option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an 

economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement 

date, the company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in 

circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option 

to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant 

customisation to the leased asset). 

ix. Revenue recognition 

• The company's revenue recognition policy, which is set out in Note 2.10, is central to how the 

company values the work it has carried out in each financial year. 

• These policies require forecasts to be made of the outcomes of Contracts, which require 

assessments and judgments to be made on changes in scope of work and claims and variations. 

• Estimates are also required with respect to the determination of stage of completion and estimation 

of project completion date: 

• Determination of stage of completion 

• Estimation of project completion date 
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• Provisions for foreseeable loses 

• Estimated total revenues and estimated total costs to completion, including claims and 

variations. 

• These are reviewed at each reporting date and adjust to reflect the current best estimates 

Revenue and costs in respect of contracts are recognized by reference to the stage of completion of 

the contract activity at the end of reporting period, measured based on proportion of contract costs 

incurred for work performed to the date relative to the estimated total contract costs, where this would 

not be representative of stage of completion. Variations in contract work and claims are included to 

the extent that amount can be measured reliably, and receipt is considered probable. When it is 

probable that contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognized as 

an expense immediately. 

• Provisions for foreseeable loses 

• Estimated total revenues and estimated total costs to completion, including claims and 

variations. 

• These are reviewed at each reporting date and adjust to reflect the current best estimates 

Revenue and costs in respect of contracts are recognized by reference to the stage of completion of 

the contract activity at the end of reporting period, measured based on proportion of contract costs 

incurred for work performed to the date relative to the estimated total contract costs, where this would 

not be representative of stage of completion. Variations in contract work and claims are included to 

the extent that amount can be measured reliably, and receipt is considered probable. When it is 

probable that contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognized as 

an expense immediately. 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

3 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Gross Carrying Amount (At Cost) 

At 31 March 2021 

Additions 

Disposals l Adjustments 

Exchange (Gain) / Loss 

At 31 March 2022 

At 1 April 2022 

Additions 

Disposals / Adjustments 

Exchange (Gain) / Loss 

At 31st March, 2023 

Depreciation and impairment 

At 31 March 2021 

Depreciation charge for the rear 

~ r: ' . lmpairmen[ 
\~ >-\. .~ r:~ .. O' I l Ad' 

''1~-\O'' ; lsposa S Justments 

: . ~.~. }. " Exchange (Gain) / Loss 

--- At 31 March 2022 

At 1 April 2022 

Oepreciatio n charge for the rear 

Impairment 

Oisposals l Adjustments 

Exchange (Gain) I Loss 

At 31st March, 2023 

Net book value 

At 31st March, 2023 

At 31 March 2022 

Plant & Machinery 

0.06 

0.06 

0.06 

0.06 

0.02 

0.007 

0.03 

0.03 

0.007 

0.034 

0.026 

0.03 

Computers Office Equipments Furniture & Fixtures 

0.10 0.04 0.03 

0.001 

0.10 0.04 0.03 

0.10 0.04 0.03 

0.0 1 

0.11 0.04 0.03 

0.10 0.012 0.003 

0.0 1 0.003 

0.10 0.02 0.006 

0.10 0.022 0.006 

0.009 0.003 

0.10 0.031 0.009 

0.008 0.01 0.021 

0.02 0.02 

Nul,..- :- a) 0111 of Ibe Ai.f,1J menliolled above, COlIl/'lIlen- . Vebid" alld PlolIl alld Machineryfor Rr 0.83 Crom (Gmss Blork) air ill Ib, lIome of Ibe bo/dillg compolI)" 

(in Rs. crore) 

Vehicles Total 

0.71 0.94 

0.001 

0.71 0.94 

0.71 0.94 

0.0 1 

0.71 0.95 

0.24 0.38 

O.OH 0. 10 

0.32 0.48 

0.32 0.48 

O.OH 0.10 

0.40 0.58 

0.31 0.37 

0.39 0.46 
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Foot Notes:-

i) Depreciation and impairment on Property, Plant & Equipment for the rear debited to Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows:-

Description 
For the year ended 31st For the year ended 

Mar 2023 31st Mar 2022 

Depreciation on Tangible Assets 0.10 0.11 

Impairment Loss - -
Total 0.10 0.11 

(ii) Depreciation is provided based on useful life supported br the technical evaluation considering business specific usage, the consumption pattern of the assets and the past performance of similar assets. 

Es timated useful life of assets arc as follows: 

U sefullives as per 
Useful life adopted based 

Class of Assets on technical evaluation 
Schedule II (in Years) 

(in years) 

Plant and Machinery 8 As per revised schedule II 

Computt.:rs :1 As per revised schedule II 

Oftice Equipment's S As per revised schedule I I 

Furniture and fixtures 10 As per revis ed schedule [[ 

Vehicles 8 As per revised schedule II 

.(~ 

~ 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

4 Intangible Assets 

Particulars 

Gross Block 

Opening balance at 1 April 2021 

Addition during the )'ear 

Capitalisation during the year 

Disposals / adjustment during the year 

Closing balance at 31 March 2022 

Addition during the year 

Capitalisation during the year 

Closing balance at 31st March 2023 

Amortisation and Impairment 

Closing balance at 31 March 2021 

Amortisation during the year 

Sales / adjustment during the year 

Closing balance at 31 March 2022 

Amortisation during the year 

Sales / adjustment during the year 

Closing balance at 31st March 2023 

Net book value 

At 31st March 2023 

At 31 March 2022 

Intangible assets under development 

Particulars 

As at Mar 31, 2023 

Projects in progress 

Projects temporarily suspended 

As at March 31, 2022 

Projects in progress 

Projects temporarily suspended 

Less than 1 
year 

7.81 

-

7.81 

20.69 
-

20.69 

Intangible assets 
under 

development 

20.69 

20.69 

33.08 

45.96 

7.81 

7.81 

20.69 

1-2 years 

-
-
-

-
-
-

Intangible Asset 
(Toll Road) 

(Refer Note 24) 

725.95 

725.95 

45.96 

771.91 

117.30 

41.45 

158.75 

42.46 

201.21 

570.70 

567.20 

2-3 years 

-
-

-

-

(in Rs. Crore) 

Other 
Intangibles 
(Software) 

More than 3 
years 

-
-

-

-

-
-

Rs in Crores 

Total 

7.81 
-

7.81 

20.69 
-

20.69 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

4 Intangible Assets 

Particulars 

Gross Block 

Opening balance at 1 April 2021 

/\ddition during the year 

Capitalisation during the year 

Disposals / adjustment during the year 

Closing balance at 31 March 2022 

Addition during the year 

Capitalisation during the year 

Closing balance at 31st March 2023 

Amortisation and Impairment 

Closing balance at 31 March 2021 

Amortisation during the year 

Sales / adjustment during the year 

Closing balance at 31 March 2022 

Amortisation during the year 

Sales / adjustment during the year 

Closing balance at 31st March 2023 

Net book v<llue 

At 31st March 2023 

At 31 March 2022 

Intangible assets under development 
Particulars 

As at Mar 31, 2023 
Projects in progress 
Projects temporarily suspended 

As at March 31, 2022 

Projects in progress 

Projects temporarily suspended 

Less than 1 
year 

7.81 

-

7.81 

20.69 

-
20.69 

Intangible assets 
under 

development 

20.69 

20 .69 

33.08 

45.96 

7.81 

7.81 

20.69 

1-2 years 

-
-
-

-
-
-

Intangible Asset 
(Toll Road) 

(Refer Note 24) 

725.95 

725.95 

45 .96 

771.91 

117.30 

41.45 

158.75 

42.46 

201 .21 

570.70 

567.20 

2-3 years 

-

-

-

-

(in Rs. Crore) 

Other 
Intangibles 
(Software) 

More than 3 
years 

-
-

-

-

-
-

Rs in Crores 

Total 

7.81 
-

7.81 

20.69 
-

20.69 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

5 Non-Current Assets - Other Financial Assets 

Particulars 

a) Considered Good: Unsecured 

Security Deposits 

- Government Departments 
- Others 

Contact Asset: 

- Retention Money with client 

- Money Withheld by Client 

Total- Other Financial Assets 

b) Considered Doubtful 
Total - Other Financial Assets - Doubtful 

Grand Total - Other Financial Assets 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.13 0.14 

0.13 0.14 

0.13 0.14 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

5 Non-Current Assets - Other Financial Assets 

P articulars 

a) Considered Good: Unsecured 

Security Deposits 

- Government Departments 
- Others 

Contact Asset: 

- Retention Money with client 

- Money Withheld by Client 

Total- Other Financial Assets 

b) Considered Doubtful 
Total - Other Financial Assets - Doubtful 

Grand Total - Other Financial Assets 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.13 0.14 

0.13 0.14 

0.13 0.14 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

6 Deferred Tax Assets and Income Tax 

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 "Income Taxes" 

(a) The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 and 31st March 2022 are: 

(Rs. in crore) 

S.No. Particulars I For the year ended 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

1 Profit and Loss Section 

Current income tax : 

Current income tax charge - -
Adjustment in respect of current tax of previous year -
Deferred tax: 

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences - -
Income tax expense reported in the Profit and Loss section - -

2 Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Section 

Income tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year: 

Net loss/ (gain) on remeasurements of deEmed benefit plans - -

Net loss / (~ain) on foreign operation rranslation -
Income tax expense reported in the OCI section - . 

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 and 31st March 22: 
(Rs. in crore) 

S.No. Particulars 
For the year ended 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Accounting profit before income tax (14.35) (12.06) 

2 Corporate tax rate as per Income tax Act, 1961 25.168% 25.168% 

3 Tax on Accounting profit (3) = (1) * (2) 

4 Effect of Tax Adjustments: 

(i) Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years 

(ii) Utilisation of previousl~' unrecogniseJ tax losses 
(iii) Impact of Rate Difference 

(iv) Tax on Income exempt from tax 
(v) Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes: 

-Other country additional tax 

-Other non-deductible expenses 

(vi) Tax effect of various other items 
5 

Income tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

6 Effective Tax Rate ~~ \ 0 J~ ' 
~"'7,y_ .. ...... ') 

tt. \ ' ;jJJ:":C 
~,~ . 0 (c) Components of deferred tax assets and (liabilities) recognised in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit or Loss 

(Rs. in crore) 

Balance sheet as at Statement of profit or loss for the year 
S.No. Particulars ended 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 
1 Property, Plant & Eguipmcnt (including intangible): Diffcn.:ncc in book 

depreciation and income tax depreciation "" (91.49) (114.80) 6.69 9.07 

2 Provisions 14.73 11 .04 (6.69) (5.40) 
3 Others"" 76.76 76.76 (3.67) 
4 Trems disallowed u/s 43B of Income Tax Act. 1961 - - -

'1--. --'(, I-

.. 1} · 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

6 Deferred Tax Assets and Income Tax 

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 "Income Taxes" 

(a) The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 and 31st March 2022 are: 

(Rs. in crore) 

S.No. Particulars I For the year ended 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

1 Profit and Loss Section 

Current income tax: 

Current income tax charge - -
Adjustment in respect of current tax of previous year -
Deferred tax : 

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences -
Income tax expense reported in the Profit and Loss section - -

2 Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Section 

Income tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year: 

Net loss/ u,>ai n) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans - -

Net loss/ (~ain) on foreign operation translation -
Income tax expense reported in the OCI section - -

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 and 31st March 22: 
(Rs. in crore) 

S.No. Particulars 
For the year ended 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

I Accounting profit before income tax (14.35) (12.06) 

2 Corporate tax rate as per Income tax Act, 1961 25.168% 25.168% 

3 Tax on Accounting profit (3) :::: (1) * (2) - -

4 Effect of Tax Adjustments: 

(i) Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years - -

(ii) Utilisation of previousl~' unrecognised tax losses - -

(iii) Impact of Rate Difference -

(iv) Tax on Income exempt from tax -

(v) Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes: 

-Other country additional tax -
-Other non-deductible expenses - -

(vi) Tax effect of various other items 
5 

Income tax expense reponed in the Statement of Profit and Loss - -
6 Effective Tax Rate 

(c) Components of deferred tax assets and (liabilities) recognised in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit or Loss 

(Rs. in crore) 

Balance sheet as at Statement of profit or loss for the year 
S.No. Particulars ended 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 
I Property, Plant & Eguipmcnt (including intangible): Difference in book 

depreciation and income tax depreciation "" (91 .49) (114.110) 6.69 9.07 

2 Provisions 14.73 11 .04 (6.69) (5.40) 
3 Others"" 76.76 76.76 - (3.67) 
4 T tems disallowed 1I / S 43B of Income Tax Act. 1961 - - - -
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~ 

5 Impact of expenditure chatged to the statement of pro fi t and loss in the 
current year and earlier years but allowable for tax purposes on payment 
basis 

6 Fair valuation of financial instruments 

7 Unutilised gain/ loss on FVTOeI equity securities and FVTPL Mutual 
funds 

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 0.00 

AA Deftrred Tax .r1ssels misiJJg all nccou"t of Business lossn alld prollilioll! bas beelJ restridcd 10 Ibe Difel1"1!d Tax Ullbilit.y arising/rom PPE oud Intaugible Assets as (/ "'nller of C0l1se17l11lislJI. Deferred T(L~ 
(wei of Rs 9.49 Crores bas 1101 beell recogllised as a molter of pmt!ence, ill lille IINib ACCOlllllillg poliO' 2. , 7 

(d) Reflected in the balance sheet as follows: 

(Rs. in crore) 

S.No. Particulars 31 March 2023 I 31 March 2022 

1 Deferred tax assets 91.49 84.80 

2 Deferred tax liability (91.49) I (84.80) 

D eferred T ax Asset/(Liabilities) (Net) - -

Note: Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset as the)' relate to the same governing laws. 

(e) Reconciliation of deferred tax (liabilities)/asse ts: 

As at 31st Mar 2023 (Rs. in crore) 

N et balance 
Recognised in 

.. Net balance 
S.No. P articulars 

As at 1st April 2022 
statement of profit lecogrused In OC A 31 M 2023 

and loss 
sat st ar, 

Propert)" Plant & Equipment (including intangible): Difference in book 
I depreciation and income tax depreciation (84.80) 6.69 - (91.49) 

2 Provisions 8.04 (6.69) - 14.73 

3 Others 76.76 - 76.76 

4 Items disa llo\Ved u/ s 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961 - -
5 Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the 

current year and earlier years but allowable for tax purposes on payment - - - -
basis 

6 fair valuation of financia l instruments - - - -
7 Unutilised gain/loss on rVTOCl equity securities and rVTPL Ivlutual 

- - -
funds 

N et deferred tax asse ts / (li abili ties) - 0.00 

As a t 31st March 2022 (Rs. in crote) 

Net balance 
Recognised in Net balance 

S.No. P articulars 
As a t 1st April 2021 

statement of profit lecognised in OC As a t 31st March 
and loss 2022 

Property, Plant & Equipment (including intangible): Difference in book 
(75.73) 9.07 (84.80) 

depreciation and income tax depreciation 

2 Provisions 2.64 (5.40) 8.04 

3 Others 73.09 (3.67) 76.76 

4 Items disaUowed u/ s 43B o f Income Tax Act, 1961 
5 Impact of expenditure charged to the Sta tement of pro fit and loss in the 

current year and earlier years but allowable for tax purposes on payment 
basis 

6 Fair valuation of financial instruments 

7 Unutilised gain / loss on FVTOCI equity securities and FVTPL Mutual 
funds 

Net deferred tax assets/ (liabili ties) (0.00) 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

7 Other Non-Current Assets 

Particulars 

a) Capital Advances 

Capital Advance for Creation of Intangible Asset ( Stage II of 
Toll Road) 

Total - Capital Advances 
Considered Good: Unsecured 

Total 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

3.20 

3.20 

3.20 

3.20 

(Rs. in crore) 

As at 31st Mar, 2022 

13.37 

13.37 
13.37 

13.37 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

7 Other Non-Current Assets 

Particulars 

a) Capital Advances 

Capital Advance for Creation of Intangible Asset ( Stage II of 
Toll Road) 

Total- Capital Advances 
Considered Good: Unsecured 

Total 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

3.20 

3.20 

3.20 

3.20 

(Rs. in crore) 

As at 31st Mar, 2022 

13.37 

13.37 
13.37 

13.37 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

NOtes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

8.1 Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables 
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Particulars 

Unsecured considered good (Refer Note 34C) 

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 

Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) 

Unsecured. considered good 
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit Risk 

Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Total 

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule 

Particulars 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Total 
Less :Impairment Allowances (Refer note 14) 

Net Trade Receivables 

Particulars 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Total 

Less: Impairment Allowances 

Net Trade Receivables 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st M ar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.66 0.63 

(0.11 ) (0. 11) 

0.55 0.52 

Unbilled Not Due 

Unbilled Not Due 

Outstanding for the year ended Mar 31, 2023 from the due date of payment Total I 

Less than 6 
6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 

More than 3 
(Rs. in Crore) 

months years 

0.55 0.06 0.05 0.66 

-
-
-

-
-

0.55 - 0.06 0.05 - 0.66 

(0.06 (0.05) (0.11) 

0.55 - - 0.55 

Outstanding for the year ended Mar 31, 2022 from the due date of payment Total 

Less than 6 
6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 

More than 3 
(Rs. in Crore) 

months years 

0.52 0.06 0.05 0.63 

-
-

-
-

0.52 0.06 0.05 - - 0.63 

(0.06) (0.05) (0.11) 

0.52 - - - 0.52 

mCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

NOtes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

8.1 Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables 
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Particulars 

Unsecured co nsidered good (Refer Note 34C) 

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 

Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
Impairm ent Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) 

Unsecured. considered good 
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit Risk 

Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Total 

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule 

Particulars 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
(i ii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have Significant increase in 
credit risk 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Total 
Less :Impairment Allowances (Refer note 14) 

Net Trade Receivables 

Particulars 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 
(ii) Undispu ted Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Total 

Less: Impairment Allowances 

Net Trade Receivables 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st M ar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.66 0.63 

(0.11 ) (0.11) 

0.55 0.52 

Unbilled Not Due 

Unbilled Not Due 

Outstanding for the year ended Mar 31 , 2023 from the due date of payment Total 

Less than 6 
6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 

More than 3 
(Rs. in Crore) 

months years 

0.55 0.06 0.05 0.66 

-
-
-

-
-

0.55 0.06 0.05 - 0.66 

jO.06 (0.05) {0.11 

0.55 - - 0.55 

Outstanding for the year ended Mar 31, 2022 from the due date of payment Total 

Less than 6 
6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 

More than 3 
(Rs. in Crore) 

months years 

0.52 0.06 0.05 0.63 

-

-

-
-

0.52 0.06 0.05 - - 0.63 

(0.06) (0.05) (0.11) 

0.52 - - - - 0.52 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

8.2 Current Financial Assets - Cash and Cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Cash on hand 

Balances }}Jith banks:* 

- On current accounts 

- Flexi Accounts 

- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

1.00 

59.73 

60.73 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.06 

1.53 

1.59 

* The above balance of Rs 60.73 Crom (previow )lear Rr 1.59 crore.r), pertain to ESCRO IV A/ C }}Jhic/J are eCir IIIClrk flmd CiS per 
concession agreemCllt elltered }}Jitb NHAI. Out of this, Iv 10 D'ores ( Previous )leal' N IL) has been earmCllked as Lien for IvJajor 
LVIaintenallce reserve Clccount as per terms of Loan Agreemellt }}litiJ S BI. 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

8.2 Current Financial Assets - Cash and Cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Cash on hand 

Balances )IJith bal1ks:* 

- On current accounts 

- Flexi Accounts 

- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

1.00 

59.73 

60.73 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.06 

1.53 

1.59 

* Tbe above balal1ce of Rs 60.73 Crom (previollJ )lear Rr 1.59 crore.r), pertail1 to ESCRO IV' A/ C ]JJiJic/J are ear mark fimd as per 
concessioll agree1l2ellt elltered ]JJitb NHAI. Ollt of tbis) Rs 10 CJ'ores ( heviotfs )leal' N IL) bas been eC/17l'Jalked as Lien for IVlajor 
l\IJ.aintenallce reserve account as per terms if Loall AgreeJ7Jm/ ]JJitb S BI. 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

8.3 Current Financial Assets - Loans 

Particulars 

A. Considered Good: Secured 

Staff Loans and Advances 

Total (A) - Considered Good: Secured 

A. Unsecured. considered good 

(i) Others: 
Staff Loans & Advances 

Total (B) - Considered Good: Unsecured 

Total 

8.4 Current Assets - Other Financial Assets 

Particulars 

A. Unsecured, considered good 

Interest Accrued on : 
- Advance to Staff 
- Deposits with Banks/Flexi Deposit 

Other Recoverable 

Total - Other Financial Assets - Good 

B) Considered Doubtful 

Total - Other Financial Assets - Doubtful 

Grand Total - Other Financial Others 

Details of amount due from Directors' , 

Particulars 

Amount due from directors included in interest accrued on staff 
loans and advances 

Total 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

As at 

1.41 
0.01 

1.42 

1.42 

31st Mar 2023 

-

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

(in Rs Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

-
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

Current Assets - Current Tax Assets (Net) 

Particulars 

Taxes Paid including TDS & Advance Tax (Net of Provision for 
Tax) 

Current tax Assets (Net) 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

0.30 

0.30 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.10 

0.10 

9 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

Current Assets - Current Tax Assets (Net) 

Particulars 

Taxes Paid including TDS & Advance Tax (Net of Provision for 
Tax) 

Current tax Assets (Net) 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

0.30 

0.30 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.10 

0.10 
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10 Other Current Assets 

Particulars 

Considered Good: Unsecured 

a) Advances Other than Capital Advances 

- Goods & Services Tax 

Prepaid Expenses 

Total - Others 

b) Considered Doubtful 

Less: Impairment allowance for doubtful advances 

Total- Considered Doubtful 

Grand Total 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

0.12 

0.12 

0.24 

0.24 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.21 

0.14 

0.35 

0.35 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

10 Other Current Assets 

Particulars 

Considered Good : Unsecured 

a) Advances Other than Capital Advances 

- Goods & Services Tax 

Prepaid Expenses 

Total - Others 

b) Considered Doubtful 

Less: Impairment allowance for doubtful advances 

Total- Considered Doubtful 

Grand Total 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

0.12 

0.12 

0.24 

0.24 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.21 

0.14 

0.35 

0.35 
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11 Equity Share capital 

Particulars 

Authorised share capital 
15,00,00,000 Equit), shares of Rs.IO each 

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up Capital 
15,00,00,000 Equity ~hares of R~ 10 each-fully paid 

Promoter's shareholding 

As at 31st Mar 
2023 

15(J.(JO 

150.00 

150.00 

150.00 

(in Rs. crore) 

As at 31st Mar 
2022 

ISO.ClO 
150.00 

150.00 

150.00 

Particulars Shares held by Promoter at the end of the period I year % change 
during the 

S.No Promoter Name No. of shares % of total shares period I year 

As at 31st Mar 2023 Ircon International Limited- Holding 
1 Company ( IRCON) 

15,00,00,000 100.00% NA 

Particulars Shares held by Promoter at the end of the period I year % change 

S.No Promoter Name 
No. of shares 

As at 31st Mar 2022 1 
Ircon International Limited- Holding 

15,00,00.000 
Company ( IRCON) 

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company 

Name of the shareholder 

ircon Intemational Limited- Holding Company ( 
IRCON) 

Details of shareholders holding in the company 

Name of the shareholder 

As 'It 31st Mar 2023 

No. of Share 

15,00,00,000 

<y., holding in the 
class 

100,00% 

hcon International Limited- Holding Company ( lRCON) 

Total 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

No. of Share 

15.00,00,000 

'X, holding in the 
class 

100.00% 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

No. of Share % holding in the 
class 

15,00,00,000 100.00 

15,00,00,000 100.00 

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and share capital oUlstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 

Particulars 
As at 31st Mar 2023 

No ofshares Rs in crore 

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up eguit), Capital outstanding at the beginning of the rear 15,00,00,000 150.00 

Add: Shares Issued during the ycar -

Less: Shares Buy Back during the year 

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equit), Capital outstanding at the end of the year 15,00,00,000 150.00 

during the 

% of total shares period I year 

100.00% NA 

As at 31 st March 2021 

No, of Share % holding in the 
class 

15,00,00,000 100.00% 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

N f 5h % holding in the 
o. 0 are class 

15,00,00,000 100.00 

15,00,00,000 100.00 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

No of shares Rs in crore 

15,00,00,000 150.00 

-

-

15,00,00,000 150.00 

mCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

11 Equity Share capital 

Particulars 

Authorised share capital 
15,00,00,000 Equit)· shares of Rs.IO each 

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up Capital 
15,00,00,000 Equity ~hares of R~ 10 each-fully paid 

Promoter's shareholding 

As at 31st Mar 
2023 

150.00 
150.00 

150.00 

150.00 

Wfftl 
(in Rs. crore) 

As at 31st Mar 
2022 

ISO.ClO 
150.00 

150.00 

150.00 

Particulars Shares held by Promoter at the end of the period I year % change 
during the 

S .No Promoter Name No. of shares % of total shares period I year 

As at 31st Mar 2023 Ircon International Limited- Holding 
1 

Company ( IRCON) 
15,00,00,000 100.00% NA 

Particulars Shares held by Promoter at the end of the period I year % change 

S.No Promoter Name 
No. of shares 

As at 31st Mar 2022 1 
Ircon International Limited- Holding 

15,00.00,000 
Company ( IRCON) 

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company 

Name of the shareholder 

Ireol1 Intemational Limited- Holding Company ( 
IRCON) 

Details of shareholders holding in the company 

Name of the shareholder 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

No, of Share 

15,00,00,000 

<y., holding in the 
ctass 

100,00% 

!rcon International Limitcd- Holding Company ( IRCON) 

Total 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

No. of Share 

15.00.00,000 

'X, holding in the 
class 

100.00% 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

No. of Share % holding in the 
class 

15,00,00,000 100.00 

15,00,00,000 100.00 

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and share capital outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 

Particulars 
As at 31st Mar 2023 

No of shares Rs in crore 

Issued / Subscribed and Paid up equit), Capital oUlsranding at the beginning of the year 15,00,00,000 150.00 

Add: Shares Issued during the ycar -

Less: Shares Buy Back during the year 

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equit), Capital outstanding at the end of the year 15,00,00,000 150.00 

.' 

during the 

% of total shares period I year 

100.00% NA 

As at 31 st March 2021 

No, of Share % holding in the 
class 

15,00,00,000 100.00% 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

N f Sh % holding in the 
o. 0 are class 

15,00,00,000 100.00 

15,00,00,000 100.00 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

No of shares Rs in crore 

15,00,00,000 150.00 

-

15,00,00,000 150.00 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

12 Other Equity 

Particulars 

Retained Earnings 

General Reserve 

Capital Redemption Reserve 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Total 

Movement as per below: 
Retained Earnings 
Opening Balance 

Add: Transfer from surplus in statement of profit and loss 

Closing Balance 

Grand Total 

Nature and Purpose of Other Reserves: 

Retained Earnings 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022 

(102.64) (88.30) 

(102.64) 

(88.30) 

(14.34) 

(102.64) 

(102.64) 

(88.30) 

(76.25) 

(12.05) 

(88.30) 

(88.30) 

Retained Earnings represents the undistributed profits of the Company. 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

12 Other Equity 

Particulars 

Retained Earnings 

General Reserve 

Capital Redemption Reserve 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Total 

Movement as per below: 

Retained Earnings 

Opening Balance 
Add: Transfer from surplus in statement of profit and loss 

Closing Balance 

Grand Total 

Nature and Purpose of Other Reserves: 

Retained Earnings 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022 

(102.64) (88.30) 

(102.64) 

(88.30) 
(14.34) 

(102.64) 

(102.64) 

(88.30) 

(76.25) 
(12.05) 

(88.30) 

(88.30) 

Retained Earnings represents the undistributed profits of the Com pan)'. 

t.:, .'. 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

13 Non-Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities 

13.1 Non-Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings 

P a rticulars 

Secured: 

(a) Loan from State Bank of India ( Refer note below and note 15.1) 

Total 

Notes: 

(in Rs. Crore) (in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st M ar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

488.78 493.06 

488.78 493.06 

(a) Terms & Conditions 

i) t\ Term Loan from State Hank of India was taken in i\Iarch 2()22 by Loan agreement dated 17th February 2022 for Rs 501 crores. The opening balance as on 1-4 
22 was for Rs 499.86 crores . Our of this amount Rs 6.80 Crores was paid during the year Financial year 2022-23. Out of the closing balancet of Rs 49."1.06 crores as 
on 31 st March 2023, Rs 4.28 erores has been shown as current maturities of the Loan under Horrowings - Current( Refer Note 15.1) 

ii) Interest Terms 
The Applicable Interest rate is base rate of SBI 3 month MCLR plus spread of 0.25'10, w.e.f 28.0."1.2022. 

iii) Terms of Repayment 

Term Loan shall be repaid in 11 .5 years upto 30.09.2033, in quartcrly instalments as pcr rhe schedule mentioned in rhe I.oan agreeme nt. 

As per clause 12 of the Loan agreement, the securities for the Loan extended are mentioned in brief as uncleI' : 
(a) first charge on all the Borrower's tangible movable assets pertaining to the Project; 

(b) a first charge ove r all accounts of the Borrower pertaining to the Project including the Escrow Accounts and the sub-accounts (or any account in substitution 
thereof) or any other bank account that may be opened in accordance with this Agreement ; 

(c) a first charge on all intangibles assets pertaining to the Pwject including but not limited to goodwill, rights, undertaking and uncalled capital present and future; 
(d) Assignment/Charge b)" wa)" of Security in the following, both present and future: 
(i) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in the Project Documents; 
(ii) the right, title and interest of the Borrower in, to ,nd under all the Clearances; 

(iii) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in any letter of credit, guarantee including contractor guarantees and liquidated 
dam'ges and performance bond provided by 'ny party to the Borrower pursuant to the Project Documents; 
(iv) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borruwer under all Insurance Cumrac ts pertaining to the Project; 

(d) An unconditional corporate guarantee by the promoter in favour of the Security trustee and 'n irrevocab le and unconditional undertaking from the Promoter, to 
cover any shortfall in the loan and other conditions as mentioned in the Loan agreement dared 17.02.2022 

(e) The Company is not at default of either repayment of the loan or interest payment on the loans as on the Balance Sheet Date. 

(f) Rs 10 Crores h,s been earmarked as Lien for Major Maintenance reserve account as per terms of Loan Agreement with SRI 

13.2 Other Financial Liability 

(in Rs . crore) 

Particulars As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

Deposits and Retention money 0.03 0.03 

Total 0.03 0.03 

mCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

13 Non-Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities 

13.1 Non-Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings 

Particulars 

Secured: 

Ca) Loan from State Bank of India ( Refer note below and note 15.1) 

Total 

Notes : 

(in Rs. Crore) (in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2023 As a t 31st Mar 2022 

488.78 493.06 

488.78 493.06 

(a) Terms & Conditions 

i) t\ Term Loan from State Bank of India was taken in i\Iarch 2()22 by Loan agreemen t dated 17th February 2022 for Rs SOl crores. The opening balance as on 1-4 
22 was for Rs 499.86 crores . Out of this amount Rs 6.80 Crores was paid during the year Financial year 2022-23. Out of the closing balancet of Rs 49.'l.06 crOres as 
on 31st March 2023, Rs 4.28 etOres ha" been "hown as current maturitie" of the Loan under Borrowings - Currem( Refer Note 15.1) 

ii) Interest Terms 
The Applicable Interest rate is base rate of SBI 3 month MCLR plus spread of 0.25'10, \V.e.f 28.0.'l.2022. 

iii) Terms of Repayment 
Term Loan shall be repaid in 11 .5 years upro .10.09.2033, in quarterly instalments as per the schedule mentioned in the) .oan agreement. 

As per clause 12 of the Loan agreement, the securities for the Loan extended are mentioned in brief as under: 
(a) first charge on all the Borrower's tangible movab le assets pertaining to the Project; 

(b) a first charge over all accounts of the Borrower pertaining to the Project including the Escrow Account" and the sub-account" (or any account in substitution 
thereof) or any other bank account that may be opened in accordance with this Agreement ; 

(c) a fim charge on all intangibles assets pertaining to the Pwjcct including but not limited to goodwill, rigb ts, undertaking and uncalled capital present and future; 
(d) Assignment/Charge b)' wa)' of Security in the followin):, both present and future: 
(i) all the tight, ririe, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in the Project Documents; 
(ii) the right, tirle and interest of the Borrower in, to ,nd under ,U the Clearances; 

(iii) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in an)' letter of credit, guarantee including contractor guarantees and liquidated 
damages and performance bond provided by 'n)' party to the Borrower pursuant to the Project Documents; 
(iv) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and (lemonds whatsoever of the B(lfJ'()wer under all Insurance Contracts pertaining to the Projecc; 

(d) An unconditional corporate guarantee b), the promoter in fa vour of the Seeurit), trustee and an irrevocab le and unconditional undertaking from the Promoter, to 

cover an)' shortfall in the loan and other conditions as mentioned in the Loan agreement dated 17.02.2022 

(e) The Company is not at default of either repayment of the loan or inter:est pa),l11ent on the loans as on the Balance Sheet Date. 

(f) Rs 10 Crores h" been earmarked as Lien for Major Maintenance reserve account as per terms of Loan Agreement with SBI 

13.2 Other Financial Liability 

(in Rs. crore) 

Particulars As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

Deposits and Retention money 0.03 0.03 

Total 0.03 0.03 

- 1 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

14 Provisions (in Rs. crore) 

Particulars Foot Note As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

Provision for scheduled major maintenance of Toll Road 14.1 65.50 23.14 

65.50 23.14 

Current 65.50 

Non Current 23.14 

The disclosure of provisions movement as required under the requirements of Ind AS 37 is as follows: 

14.1 Other Provisions: 

Particulars 

As at 01-April-2022 

Non Current 

Provision made during the year for scheduled major 
maintenance"" 

Less: Utilization during the year 

Less: Write Back during the year 

Unwinding of discount 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

Current 

Non Current 

Maintenance 

23.14 

38.96 

3.40 

65.50 

65.50 

(in Rs. crore) 

Total 

23.14 

38.96 

3.40 

65.50 

65.50 

The Compm!)1 has a contmctl/al obligation to maintain, replace or restore infrastmctNl"ll , ext'ept for {If!} enhancement elelllef/t. Cost of sllch obligation is 
measured at the best estimate of the expenditure J"(ltjllil"lld to settle tbe obligation at tbe balance sheet d(/tf alld /"Iil'oglliJed Oller the period at the fIId of II/bicb 
olJellCljI is estimated to be canied out. Tbe estimate for lIIajor lIIaintMance is dam 0 tbe N[anc~gl'll/et/t and is relliewed Ji'om tillle to time baJed on updated data 
and reports available frOlll tbe Tolf Road Site. 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

14 Provisions (in Rs. crore) 

Particulars Foot Note As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

Provision for scheduled major maintenance of Toll Road 14.1 05.50 23.14 

65.50 23.14 

Current 65.50 

Non Current 23.14 

The disclosure of provisions movement as required under the requirements of Ind AS 37 is as follows: 

14.1 Other Provisions: 

Particulars 

As at 01-April-2022 

Non Current 

Provision made during the year for scheduled major 
maintenance"" 

Less: Utilization during the year 

Less: Write Back during the year 

Unwinding of discount 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

Current 

Non Current 

Maintenance 

23.14 

38.96 

3.40 

65.50 

65.50 

(in Rs. crore) 

Total 

23.14 

38.96 

3.40 

65.50 

65.50 

Tbe COlllpml)1 has a contmctllal obligation to maintain} replace. or restore in/rastmctNre } ext'ept for (It!} enbancement elellletlt. Cost of sllch obligation is 
lIIeasured at the best estimate of the expenditllre reqllired to settle tbe obligation al Ibe balance sheet date alld ruogllised Ol}p.r Ibe period al Ihe. md of JI}bicb 
overllljl is eslimaled to be cal7ied out. The eslimate for 1//ajor mainlmance is dom 0 tbe !V[anagl'll/et/t and is repiewed ./rom time 10 lillie based on updal/!d data 
and reports availab/e ./rom the Tolf Road Sile. 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities 

15.1 Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings 

Particulars 

Current Maturity of Long term Borrowings ( Refer note no. 13 .1) 

Total 

15.2 Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables 

Particulars 

Micro, Small & J\'fedium Emerprises 
Other than Micro, Small & Medium Emerpri,es 

(a) Comracror & Suppliers 
(b) Related Parties 

Total 

Notes: 

WGJ!i 
(in Rs . Crore) (in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

4.28 6.S0 

4.28 6.80 

(in Rs . Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.01 
:l2.11 6.40 

32.11 6.41 

aJ Disclosures as re'luired under Companies Acr. 20 13 / Micro, Small anJ Medium Emerprises Development Acr,20U(, (,VISMEDJ arc p),(lI'ided in Note :l6 . 

b) Terms and Conditions :lnd mhcr balances with related partics :lfC disclosed in Note 24. 

Trade payables Ageing Schedule 

Rs in Crores 
Particulars Unbilled Not due 

Outstanding for the year ended Mar 31 , 2023 from the due date of 
Total payment 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 3 years More than 3 years 
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 25.74 6.37 
enterprises 

32.11 
Disputed dues or micro enterprises and small enterprises -
Disputed dues or creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

-
Rs In Crores 

Particulars Outstanding for the year ended Mar 31, 2022 from the due date of 
Unbilled Not due payment Total 

Less than 1 year 1·2 years 3 years More than 3 years 
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 6.41 
enterprises 6.41 
Disputed dues or micro enterprises and small enterprises -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

-
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 
rj'tl 

15.3 Current Liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities (in Rs. crore) 

Particulars As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

Deposits, Retention money and Money Withheld 1.44 1.53 
Deposits, Retention money and Money Withheld- Related Party -
Holding Company 

Amount Payable to Client 

Other Payables (including Staff Payable) 

Total 

16 Other Current Liabilities 

Particulars 

a) Contract Liability 

b) Others 

Statutory dues 

Total 

Notes: 

1.85 

3.72 

7.01 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

0.38 

0.38 

a) Statutory dues includes liability for Goods and Service Tax (GST), TDS, Provident Fund 
and other statutory dues. 

0.04 

1.76 

8.53 

11.86 

(in Rs. crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

1.42 

1.42 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

15.3 Current Liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities (in Rs. crore) 

Particulars As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

Deposits, Retention money and Money Withheld 1.44 1.53 
Deposits, Retention money and Money Withheld- Related Party -
Holding Company 

Amount Payable to Client 

Other Payables (including Staff Payable) 

Total 

16 Other Current Liabilities 

Particulars 

a) Contract Liability 

b) Others 

Statutory dues 

Total 

Notes: 

1.85 

3.72 

7.01 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

0.38 

0.38 

a) Statutory dues includes liability for Goods and Service Tax (GST), TDS, Provident Fund 
and other statutory dues. 

0.04 

1.76 

8.53 

11.86 

(in Rs. crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

1.42 

1.42 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

17 Revenue from operations 

Construction Contract revenue 

Revenue from Toll Operations (Refer Note 25 & 34) 

Revenue from Construction service ( Change of Scope 
and other works) 

- Other Operating Revenue 

Total 

18 Other Income 

Interest Income: 
Bank Interest Gross 

Others: 
Miscellaneous Income 

Total 

For the year ended 31st 
Mar 2023 

33.07 

142.31 

0.38 

175.76 

For the year ended 31st 
Mar 2023 

1.58 

(in Rs. crore) 

For the year ended 31st 
Mar 2022 

20.69 

120.75 

2.07 

0.35 

143.86 

For the year ended 31st 
Mar 2022 

0.17 
1.58 ___ _ 0.17 

0.17 0.04 

1.75 0.21 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

17 Revenue from operations 

Construction Contract revenue 

Revenue from Toll Operations (Refer Note 25 & 34) 

Revenue from Construction service ( Change of Scope 
and other works) 

- Other Operating Revenue 

Total 

18 Other Income 

Interest Income: 
Bank Interest Gross 

For the year ended 31st 
Mar 2023 

33.07 

142.31 

0.38 

175.76 

For the year ended 31st 
Mar 2023 

1.58 

(in Rs. crore) 

For the year ended 31st 
Mar 2022 

20.69 

120.75 

2.07 

0.35 

143.86 

For the year ended 31st 
Mar 2022 

0.17 
1.58 ___ _ 0.17 

Others: 
Miscellaneous Income 0.17 

Total 1.75 

.-::?=~ 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

19 Project and Other Expenses 

Particulars 

Work Expenses ( Construction of Stage II) 

Work Expenses ( Change of Scope Work) 

Work Expenses ( Other Works - Holding Company) 

Concession fees to NHAI 

Toll operation and maintenance expenses 
Inspection, Geo Technical Investigation & Survey Exp. Etc. 
Hire charges of machinery 

Renti Lease expenses - Non-residential ( refer note 35) 

Repairs and Maintenance 
- Office and Others 

Power, Electricity and Water charges 
Insurance 
Travelling & conveyance 
Printing & stationery 
Legal & Professional charges 
Auditors remuneration (Refer Note Below) 
Advertisement & publicity 
Bank Charges and Other financial charges 
Corporate social responsibility (Refer Note 38) 
Miscellaneous expenses 

Provisions (Addition - Write Back) for doubtful debt ( Note 8.1) 

Provisions (Addition - Write Back) 
(Refer Note 14)- For Major repair and maintenance 

Total 

(i) Payment to Statutory Auditors: 

Particulars 

(a) Audit Fee - current year 
(b) Tax Audit Fees - current year 
(e) Fee for quarterly limited review 
(c) Certification Fees 
(d) Travelling & out of pocket expenses: 

- Travelling Expenses 
- Out of Pocket Expenses 

Total 

Project Expenses 

For the year ended 
31 st Mar 2023 

33.07 

-

-

24.54 

7.36 
0.78 
-

0.03 

0.13 
0.98 
0.77 
0.03 
0.01 
0.11 
-
-
-
-

0.01 

-

38.96 

106.78 

For the year ended 
31 st Mar 2023 

0.020 
0.006 
0.005 
0.001 

0.03 

For the year ended 
31st Mar 2022 

20.69 

1.79 

0.28 

22.86 

10.52 
0.66 
-

0.03 

0.05 
0.70 
0.92 
0.02 
0.01 
0.17 
-
-
-
-

0.01 

0.11 

12.23 

71.05 

For the year ended 
31 st Mar 2022 

0.018 
0.005 
0.005 

0.028 

(in Rs. crere) 

Other Expenses 

For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st 
Mar 2023 Mar 2022 

- -

- -

- -
- -
- -

- -

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- 0.008 

0.03 0.028 
0.04 0.020 
0.00 0.027 
- -
- -

- -

0.07 0.08 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 st March 2023 

20 Employee Remuneration and Benefits (Refer Note 28) (in Rs. crore) 

For the year ended 31st Mar 2023 For the year ended 31st Mar 2022 
Foot 

Particulars 
Note Other Other Operating 

(Administrative) 
Total Operating 

(Administrative) Total 

Salaries, wages and bonus 1.11 0.20 1.31 1.48 0.14 1.62 
Contribution to provident and other funds 0.09 - 0.09 0.10 0.10 
Retirement Benefits 0.17 - 0.17 0.22 - 0.22 

Total 1.37 0.20 1.57 1.80 0.14 1.94 

21 Finance Cost (in Rs . crore) 

Particulars 
Foot For the year ended 31st Mar For the year ended 31 st 
Note 2023 Mar 2022 

Interest Expense - 37.40 - 38.09 
Other Borrowing Cost 

- Other Charges pertaining to borrowings 0.06 2.96 

Unwinding of discount on provisions 3.41 0.44 
Total 40.87 41.49 

22 Depreciation, amortization (in Rs . crore) 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 31 st 

31st Mar 2023 Mar 2022 

Property, Plant and equipment 0.10 0.11 
Intangible Assets 42.46 41.45 

Total 42.56 41 .56 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for tho year onded 31s1 March 2023 
Note:-23 
A. FaIr Value Measuroments 
(I) Category wise classification of Financial Instruments 

ilifOO8jJtl 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured al fair value in these financial slatemanl and are grouped into three levels of a fair va lue hierarchy. The three l evels are defined based on the 
observabilily of significant inpuls to the measurement, as follows: 

Leve l 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
Level 2: Inpuls other than quoted prices included within Level 1 thai are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indiroclly 
Level 3: Unobservable inpuls for the assel or liability 
a)The carrying va lues and fair values of financial instruments by categories as at 31s t Mar 2023 are as follows: 

Particulars 
Carrying Value 

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and loss (,FVTPl') 
Investment in Mutual Funds 
Total 

Financial Assets al Amortized Cost 
(i) Investments 
(ii) Loans 
(iii) Other Financial Assets 1.55 
Total 1.55 

Particulars 
Carrying Value 

Financiatliabilities at Amortized Cost 
(i) Borrowings 493.06 
Ii) Other Financial liabilities 7.02 

Total 500.08 

b) The carrying values and fair values of financial instruments by categories as al31st Mar 2022 are as follows: 

Particulars 
CarrvinQ Value 

Financial Assets al Fair Value Through Profit and Loss ('FVTPL') 
Investment in Mutual Funds 
Total 

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost 
(i) Investments 
(ii) Loans 
iii) Other Financial Assets 0.13 

Total 0.13 

Particulars 
Carrying Value 

Financial liabilities at Amortized Cost 
(i) Borrowings 499.86 
(ii) Other Financial liabilities 11 .89 
Total 511 .75 

in Rs. crore 
Fair Value 

level 1 level 2 level 3 

1.55 
1.55 

(in Rs. crore 
Fair Va lue 

level 1 level 2 Level 3 

493.06 
7.02 

500.08 

(in Rs. crore 
Fair Value 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

0.14 
0.14 

(in Rs. crore 
Fair Value 

Level 1 level 2 level 3 

499.86 
11.89 

511.75 

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, bank overdrafts and other current finanCial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the 
short~term maturities of these ins truments. 

The fair va lues of the rinancial assets and rinancialliabili ties is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. Methods and 
assumptions used to estimate the fa ir values are consistent with those used for the financial year 2021 ~22. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values 

i) The fair value of investments in mutual fund units (if any) is based on the Net Asset Value ('NAV') as slated by the issuers of these mutual fund units in the published sta tements as at Balance 
Sheet date . NAV represenls the price at which the issuer will issue further units of mutual fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such unils from the investors. 

ii) The carrying amount of financial asse ts and financia l liabilities measured at amortized cost in these financial sta tements are at reasonab le approximation of their fair values since the Company 
does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventuall y be received or settled. 

iii) The carrying amounts of current financia l assets and current financialliabililies approximate the ir fa ir value mainly due to their short term nature . 

• During the financia l year 2022~23 and 2021~22, there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fa ir value measurements. 

B. Financial Risk Management 

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The Company's principal financial assets include loans to related parties, trade and other receivables, and 
cash and short~term deposi ts that derive directly from its opera tions. The Company's activities expose it to some of the financial risks : market risk, credit risk and liquidily risk. 

a) Markot Risk 
Market ri sk is the risk that the fai r va lue of future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk mainlybcomprises Inlerest rate ri sk. Financial 
instruments affected by market risk includes borrowings, trade receivables, trade payable and other non derivative financial instruments, 

(i) Foreign Currency Risk 
The company operates domestically and is exposed to insignificant foreign currency risk (since receipts & payments are received in Indian Rupees) . 

(ii) Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruments will flUctua te because of change in markot interest rate. The company manages its interest risk in accordance 
wi th the companies policies and risk objective. Financial instruments affected by interest rate ri sk includes depOSits with banks. Interest rate risk on these financial instruments are very low as interest rate 
is fix for the period ,of financial instruments. The Company has a floating interest rate bearing loan the interest sensi ti vity @ 50 basis points of the same is given below. 

Particulars For the year ended 31 st For the year ended 31st Mar 2022 
Mar 2023 

Rs in Croms Pre Tax Post Tax Pre Tax Post Tax 
Inlerest rates· Increase bv 50 basis ooints 50 bos 2.47 1.84 2.50 1.87 
Interest rates· Decrease bv 50 basis ooints 50 bos ·2.47 ·1.84 ·2.50 ·1.87 

b) Credit Risk 
Credit risk Is the riSK of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a fi nancia l instrument fails to meel its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables 
from customers and investment. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to clients, including outstanding accounts receivable. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counlerparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. currenlly company has dealt with NHAI 
(National Highway Au thority of India) only therefore company have minimal credit risk. 

Trade and other receivable 
The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in 
which the customer operates , also has an influence on credit risk assessment. 
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Exposure to Credit Risk 
In Rs. crore) 

Particulars As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 
Financial Assets for which allowanco Is measured using Lifetime Expected Credit Lassos (LECL) 

Other Non Current Financial Assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Current Loans 
Other CUrrent Financial Assets 

Financial Assets (or which allowance is measured using Simplified Approach 

Trade Receivables 
Contract Assets 

Summary of change in loss allowances measured using Simplified approach 

0.13 
60.73 

1.417 

0.66 

0.14 
1.59 

0.004 

0.63 

Particulars As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 
Opening Allowances 
Provided during the year 
Utilization during the year 
\mounl writlen-off 
CloslnQ Allowances 

During the year,the Company has recognised loss allowance of Rs.NtL (31 Mar, 2022 : Rs. 1146565). 

Summary of change in loss allowances measured using Lifetime Expected Credit Losses (LECL) approach 

0.11 
0.11 

0.11 0.11 

Particulars As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 
Opening Allowances 
Provided during the year 
Utilization during the year 
Amount wrilten-orr 
IExchanae Gain! I Loss 
Closino Allowances 

No significant changes in estimation techniques or assumptions were made during the reporting period. During the year. the Company has recognised loss allowance of Rs.NIL. 

c) Liquidity risk 

-

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and by having access to funding through an adequate amount of committed credit lines . The Finance department regularly monitors the 
position of Cash and Cash Equivalents vis·a·vis prOjections. Assessment of maturity profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities and maintenance of Balance Sheetliquidily ratios are considered 
while reviewing the liquidity position. 

The senior Management of the Company oversees its investmenl strategy and achieve its investment objectives. The Company typically invests in Bank Flex! accounts and Fixed deposits with Government 
Banks. The primary objective of minimising the potential risk of principal loss. 

The table below provides details regarding the significant financial liabilities as at 31st Mar 2023 and 31st Mar 2022 

Particulars 

Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 

Particulars 

Borrowings 
Trade pavables 
Other financial liabilities 

d) Excessive risk concentration 

less than 1 Year 
4.28 

25.75 
6.99 

Loss than 1 Year 
6.80 
6.42 

11.86 

As on 31st Mar 2023 
1-2 years 

4.28 
6.37 

As on 31st Mar 2022 
1·2 years 

4.28 

(In Rs. crore) 

2 Years and above 
484.50 

(Rs . in crore) 

2 Years and above 
486.78 

Concentrations arise when a number of counlerparties are engaged in similar business activities. or activities in the same geographical region. or have economic features Ihal would cause their ability to 
meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic. political or other conditions. Concentrat ions indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments 
affecting a particular industry. 

The following table gives details in respect of revenues generated from lop three revenue segments of construction revenue. construction under SCA and Toll receipts 

Particulars For the car ended 
31-Mar-23 

Revenue from the To three revenue streams 175.75 143.87 
175.75 143.87 

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio. Identified concentralions of credit 
risks are controlled and managed accordingly. 

C. Capital Management 

The objective of tho Company is to manage its capital in a manner to ensure and safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that company can continue to provide maximum returns to share 
holders and benefilto other stakaholders. Further. company manages its capital structure 10 make adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions and requirements of the financiat covenants. 

Company has taken a term loan from State Bank of tndia fo Rs 502.51 crores in March 2022.0utstanding as on 31st March 2023 is Rs 493.06 Crores (Previous year Rs 499.86 crams) 

Debt Eoulty Ratia :. fin Rs. crore 
PartIculars As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 
Borrowinqs Noto No. 13.1 & 15.1 493.06 499.86 
Debt 493.06 499.66 
Equily_ Nol. No. 11 150.00 150.00 
Olher ~ily Nole No. 12 102.64 68.30 
Total Equity 47.36 61.70 
Debt Eoulty Ratio 10.41 6.10 
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me ON SHIVPURI GUN A TOLLWAY LIMITED 
N otes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

Note:- 24 (a)Details of Related Party Transactions during the year 
(Amt in INR) 

T ransaction (Rs.) Outstanding Amount 

Name of Rela ted 
Party 

Particular For the year 
ended 31st Mar 

For the year ended 
As at 31st Mar 2023 

As at 31st Mar 

2023 
31st Mar 2022 2022 

Im'estment in Equity 1,50,00,00,000 1,50,OO,OO,O()O 

Loans (5,26,00,00,000.00) 

Interest Payable on Loan -
Recou2able advance given (10,16,76,227) 13,.16,66,183 3,1 9,89,956 13,36,66,18.1 

Money wi thheld (4,34,334) - 4,34,334 

Ircon 
Other Payables 32,11,1 8,433 6,40,17,813 

International 
Interest Payable on Loan - -

Limi ted 
Rendering of services 

Works Contract * Excl GST as expense 28,47,770 
Works Contract ( COS) Esc l GST as expense 1,78,89,426 
\,(/orks Contract * Excl GST capitali sed 27,91,86,865 17,81,OI,R1R 

Rent Excluding GST as expense 2,54,R32 2,49,038 
Interest o n Loan as an expense 37,7 1,36,988 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Note:-

a) 

24 Related Party Transactions 

Disclosures in compliance with Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures" are as under: 

List of Related Parties where control exists and also related parties with whom transactions 
have taken place and relationships. 

(i) Holding Company 
Ircon International Limited 

(ii) Key Management Personnel (KMP) 
Board of Directors 
Name 
Shri A K Goyal 
Shri D K Sharma 
Shri Parag Verma 
Smt Ritu Arora 
Shri Masood Ahmad Najar 
Shri Mugunthan Boju Gowda 
Shri Rohit Parmar 

Designation 
Chairman upto 10.10.2022 
Chairman w.e.f. 10.10 . .2022 
Director upto 19.09.2022 
Director w.e.f 13.05.2021 
Director w.e.f 02.08.2021 
Director upto 01 .06.2022 
Director w.e.f. 01.06.2022 

Other Members identified as Key Management Personnel ( KMP) 
Name Designation 

Shri Atul Kumar Chief Executive Officer upto 28.12.2022 
Smt Rachna Tomar Chief Financial Officer w.e.f 01 .04.2022 
Shri Jitender Kumar Maurya Chief Executive Officer w.e.f. 28.12.2022 

Company Secretary 
Name 
Ms Iti Matta u to 17.02.2022 
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Company Secretary 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

b) Transactions with Key Management Personnel (KMP) of the Company are as follows: (Rs. in crore) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
S.No. Particulars 

_31st March 2023 31st March 2022 

1 Short term employee benefits 0.92 0.95 
2 Post employment benefits 0.12 0.14 
3 Other long-term employee benefits 0.02 0.02 
4 Termination benefits 

5 Sitting fees 

Total 1.06 1.11 

Transactions with related parties are as follows : (Rs. in crore) 

--=:::::::. 
~\: J~:~::~-

S.No. Nature of transaction Name of related party 
Nature of For the year ended For the year ended I 

relationship 31st March 2023 31st March 2022 

1 Sale of goods and services 

~ 1.1 Contract Revenue Ireon International Limited Holding Company - -
1.2 Rent Income Ireon International Limited Holding Company - -

2 Purchase of goods and services 
Ireon International Limited 

Holding Company 27.92 19.88 
Work Expenses 

~ 
Reimbursement of Deputation Staff 

3 Expenses, Rent & Other Misc. Expenses Ireon International Limited Holding Company 0.03 0.02 
(Income) 

4 Interest Expense 
4.1 Interest Expense on Loan Ireon International Limited Holding Company - 37.71 
5 Repayment of Loans Ireon International Limited Holding Company - 526.00 
6 Advances! Loans Received Ircon International Limited Holding Company - -

7 Any Other transaction not covered above 
Ireon International Limited 

Holding Company (10.21) 13.37 
Recoupable Advance 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

c) Outstanding balances with the related parties are as follows' (Rs. in crore) 

S.No. Nature of transaction Name of related party Nature of relationship 
As at As at 

31 st March, 2023 31 st March, 2022 

1 Equity Received ( Liability) Ircon International Limited Holding Company 150.00 150.00 
2 Advance and Claims Recoverable Ircon International Limited Holding Company 3.20 13.37 
3 Borrowings Ircon International Limited Holding Company -
4 Amount Payable towards 

4.1 Trade Payables Ircon International Limited Holding Company 32.11 6.37 
4.2 Other Payables Ircon International Limited Holding Company 0.03 
4.3 Money withheld Ircon International Limited Holding Company - 0.04 

d) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 
(i) Transactions wilh related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. 

(ii) Outstanding balances of related parties at the year-end except borrowings are unsecured and settlement occurs through banking transactions. These 
balances other than loans and interest bearing advances are interest free . 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

Outstanding balances of related parties at the year-end except borrowings are unsecured and settlement occurs through banking transactions. These 
balances other than loans and interest bearing advances are interest free. 
The Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial 
year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. 

IrconSGTL had four Part-time Directors during the financial year 2022-23, nominated on the Board by the holding company. do not draw any remuneration 
from the Company. No sitting fee is paid to the Part-time Directors. 

, -:. ;.,\ .'. 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 
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As at As at 
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2 Advance and Claims Recoverable Ircon International Limited Holding Company 3.20 13.37 
3 Borrowings Ircon International Limited Holding Company -
4 Amount Payable towards 

4.1 Trade Payables Ircon International Limited Holding Company 32.11 6.37 
4.2 Other Payables Ircon International Limited Holding Company 0.03 
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d) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 
(i) Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. 

(ii) Outstanding balances of related parties at the year-end except borrowings are unsecured and settlement occurs through banking transactions. These 
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(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

Outstanding balances of related parties at the year-end except borrowings are unsecured and settlement occurs through banking transactions. These 
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from the Company. No silting fee is paid to the Part-time Directors. 

f. 
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mCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

Note:-25 Service Concession Arrangements (SCA) 

Public-to-private service concession arrangements are recorded in accordance with Appendix "C"- Service Concession Arrangements to lnd AS-115-
"Revenue from Contract with customers" . This SeA is falling within this appendix's scope as both the conditions set out below are met: 

a) The Grantor controls or regulates which services the operator must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and at what 
price; and 

b) The grantor controls- through ownership, beneficial entitlement, or otherwise- any significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the 
term of the arrangement. 

An intangible asset is recognized to the extent that the operator receives the right [0 charge users of the public service, provided that these charges are 
conditional on the degree to which the service is used. 

These intangible assets are initially recognized at cost, which is understood as the fair value of the service provided plus other direct costs directly 
attributable to the operatioo. They are then amortized over the term of the concession. 

Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited (IrconSGTL) (the operator) has entered into a service concession arrangement with National Highway Authority of 
India (NHAT) dated 15th June 2015 in terms of which NHAT (the grantor) has authorized the company to develop, finance, design, engineer, procure, 
construct, operate and maintain the Project of four laning of Shivpuri Guna Section and to exercise and/or enjoy the rights, powers, henefits, privileges 
authorizations and entitlements upon its completion. In terms of the said agreement Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited has an obl igation to compiete 
construction of the project of four laning of Shivpuri Guna section and to keep the project assets in proper working condition including all projects assets 
whose lives have expired. 

The Concession period shall be 20 years commencing from the appointment date. At the end of the concession period, the assets wi ll be transferred back 
to National Highway Authority ofTndia (NHAT) . Tn case of material breach in terms of agreement the NHAI and IrconSGTJ. have right to terminate the 
agreement if the), are not able to cure the event of default in accordance with such agreement. 

The Com pan)' recognizes revenue and cost in accordance with I nd AS 115 by reference to the construction's stage of completion. The Com pan)' measures 
contract revenue at the fair value of rhe consideration receivable. During the arrangement's construction phase, the Company's assets of 725.90 crores 
(representing its accumulating right to be paid for providing construction services) is classified as an intangible assets (license to charge user of the 
infrsrructure), which was completed in 2018-19. The nnd Phase of the Toll Road started in Financial year 21-22 and provisional completion of the same 
was received in 17-12 2022. Consequently Rs 45.96 Crares were transferred from Intangible Assets under development to Intangible assets during the 
year. Toll collection from Phase II has also commenced. I\s on 31st March 2023, Rs 7.81 crores ( last year Rs 20.69 crores ) has been shown under 
Intangible Asset under development. The Company has recognized nil profit on construction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement 
.The Revenue recognized in relation to construction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement represents the fair value of services 
provided towards construction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement. The operation of toll road has commenced from 7th June 2018 
and that of Phase II from 19-12-2022 and the company has recognised usage fcc as revenue of Rs.142.31 Crores ( last year Rs 120.75 crores) from 
operation of toll road for the Year ended 31.03.2023. 

Concession fcc and its premium is seen as being paid for earning the revenue and is treated as a charge against revenue. During the period concession fees 
of Rs 24.54 Crares ( Last year Rs 22.86 Crares) to N HAL has been paid as per terms of the concession agreement. Usage fcc collected over and above the 
traffic cap as per the concession agreement is termed as excess fcc. This SCA is due to be n;negotiated as per clause number 28 and 29 of the 

concessionaire agreement. 

Major Maintenance Obligations 
'Major Maintenance Obligations' includes undertaking major maintenance such as resurfacing of pavements, repairs to structures, and repairs and 

refurbishment of tolling system and other equipment. These obligations arc recognized and measured at the best estimate of the expenditure retluired to 

settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. The provision for the resurfacing is built up in accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 37 . Timing 

and amount of such cost are estimated and recognised on straight line basis over the period at the end of which the overlay is estimated to be carried Ollt 

based on technical evaluation by independent experts. 

Construction Contracts 

In terms of the disclosure required in Ind AS -115 "Revenue from Contract with Customers" , the amount considered in the financial statements up to the 

balance sheet date arc as follows:-

Particulars 

Revenue recognized from construction services 

Revenue recognised from toll-Usage fee 

Aggregate amount of cost incurred and recognized in Profit/ Loss 

Gross amount due from Client for Contract Works 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

33.07 

142.31 

33.07 

Amount in Rs Crores 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

20.69 

120.75 

20.69 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

Note:-25 Service Concession Arrangements (SCA) 

Public-to-private service concession arrangements are recorded in accordance with Appendix "C"- Service Concession Arrangements to lnd AS-l1S­
"Revenue from Contract with customers". This SCA is falling within this appendix's scope as both the conditions set out below are met: 

a) The Grantor controls or regulates which services the o perator must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and at what 
price; and 

b) The grantor controls- through ownership, beneficial entitlement, Or otherwise- anr significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the 
term of the arrangement. 

An intangible asset is recognized to the extent that the operator receives the right to charge users of the public se rvice, provided that these charges are 
conditional on the degree to which the service is used. 

These intangible assets are initially recognized at cost, which is understood as the fair value of the service provided plus other direct costs directly 
attributable to the operation. They are then amortized over the term of the concession. 

[rcon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited (IrconSGTL) (the operator) has entered into a service concession arrangement with National Highway Authority of 
India (NHAl) dated 15th June 2015 in terms of which NHAI (the grantor) has autho rized the company to develop, finance, design, engineer, procure, 
construct, operate and maintain the Pro ject of four laning o f Shivpuri Guna Section and to exercise and/or enjoy the rights, powers, henefits, privileges 
authorizations and entitlements upon its completion. In terms of the said agreement lrcon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited has an obligation to complete 
construction of the project of four laning of Shivpuri Guna section and to keep the project assets in proper workiog condition including all projects assets 
whose lives have expired. 

The Concession period shall be 20 years commencing from the appointment date. At the:: end of the conce::ssion period, the assets will be transferred back 
to National Highway Authority of India (NHAl) . In case of material hreach in terms of agreement the NH f\1 and lrconSGTJ. have right to terminate the 
agreement if they arc nor able to cure the event o f default in accordance with such agreement. 

The Company recognizes revenue and cOSt in accordance with 1 nd AS 11 5 by reference to the construction's stage of completion. The Company measures 
contract revenue at the fair value of the consideration receivable. During the arrangement's construction phase, the Company's assets of 725.90 crores 
(representing its accumulating right to be paid for providing construction services) is classi fied as an intangible assets (license to charge user of the 
infrsrructure), which was completed in 2018-19. The rInd Phase of the Toll Road Started in Financial year 21-22 and provisional completinn of the same 
was received in 17-12 2022. Consequently Rs 45.96 Crores were transferred from Intangible Assets under development to Intangible assets during the 
year. Toll collection from Phase II has also commenced. As on 31 st March 2023, Rs 7.81 crores ( last year Rs 20.69 crorcs ) has been shown under 
Intangible Asset under development. The Company has recognized nil profit on construction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement 
.The Revenue recognized in relation [Q construction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement represents the fair value of services 
provided towards construction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement. The:: operation of toll road has comme::nced from 7th J line 2018 
and that of Phase II from 19-12-2022 and the company has recognised usage fee as revenue of Rs.142.31 Crores ( last year Rs 120.75 crores) from 
operation of toll road for the Year ended 31.03.2023. 

Concession fee and its premium is seen as being paid fo r earning the revenue and is treated as a charge against revenue. During the period concession fees 
of Rs 24.54 Crores ( Last year Rs 22.86 Crores) to N HAL has been paid as per terms of the concession agreement. Usage fcc collected over and above the 
traffic cap as per the concession agreement is termed as excess fcc. This SCA is due to be renegotiated as per clause number 28 and 29 of the 
concessionaire agreement. 

Mitjor Maintenance Obligations 
'Major Maintenance Obligations' includes undertaking major maintenance such as resurfacing of pavements, repairs to structures, and repairs and 

refurbishment of tolling system and other equipment. These obligations arc recognized and measured at the best estimate of the expendi ture required to 
settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. The provision for the resurfacing is built up in accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 37 . Timing 

and amount of such cost arc estimated and recognised on stra ight line basis over the period at the end of which the overlay is estimated to be carried Out 

basecl on technical eva luation by independent experts. 

Construction Contracts 

In terms of the disclosure required in lnd AS -115 "Revenue from Contract with Customers" , the amount considered in the financial statements up to the 

balance sheet date arc as follow5:-

Particulars 

Revenue recognized from construction services 

Revenue recognised from toll-Usage fee 

Aggregate amount of cost incurred and recognized in Profit/Loss 

Gross amount due from Client for Contract Works 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

33.07 

142.3 1 

33.07 

Amount in Rs Ccores 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

20.69 

120.75 

20.69 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

UiiOOGgtl 
Note:-

Note:-

26 Disclosure as required by Ind AS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" 

27 

During the year, the company has modified its significant accounting policies of Ind AS 16 , Property , Plant and 
Equipment. 
The aforementioned change has been incorporated into note 3 of property, plant and equipment (PPE) note of the 
financial statement. This adjustment has no financial impact on the financial statement. 

Disclosure as required by Ind AS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors" 

During the year the Company has changed the accounting policy related to "Property, plant and equipment" for uniformity 
with the Holding Company and improved disclosure . There is no impact on the profitability of the Company, and the 
revised accounting policy is as below and amendments are highlighted in Bold 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land and leasehold land acquired on perpetual 
lease is provided on straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as specified in schedule II of the 
Companies act, 2013. However, in case of certain class of assets, the Company uses different useful life than those 
prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. The useful life has been assessed based on technical 
evaluation, taking into account the nature of those classes of assets, the estimated usage of the asset on the basis 
of the management's best estimation of getting economic benefits from the asset. The estimated useful life as 
per the technical evaluation viz-a-viz Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 has been disclosed in the notes to 
accounts. 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

IliiOOGgtl 
Note:-

Note:-

26 Disclosure as required by Ind AS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" 

27 

During the year, the company has modified its significant accounting policies of Ind AS 16 , Property , Plant and 
Elluipment. 
The aforementioned change has been incorporated into note 3 of property, plant and equipment (PPE) note of the 
financial statement. This adjustment has no financial impact on the financial statement. 

Disclosure as required by Ind AS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors" 

During the year the Company has changed the accounting policy related to "Property, plant and equipment" for uniformity 
with the Holding Company and improved disclosure. There is no impact on the profitability of the Company, and the 
revised accounting policy is as below and amendments are highlighted in Bold 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land and leasehold land acquired on perpetual 
lease is provided on straight line basis over tile estimated useful lives of the assets as specified in schedule II of the 
Companies act, 2013. However, in case of certain class of assets, the Company uses different useful life than those 
prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. The useful life has been assessed based on technical 
evaluation, taking into account the nature of those classes of assets, the estimated usage of the asset on the basis 
of the management's best estimation of getting economic benefits from the asset. The estimated useful life as 
per the teclmical evaluation viz-a-viz Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 has been disclosed in the notes to 
accounts. 
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IReON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Note:-

Note:-

28 Employee Benefits 

29 

The employees working for rreon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited (rSGTL) "the company" are posted on deputation I 
seeondment and are on the rolls of Treon International Limited, the Holding Company. Their PF con tributions, pension 
contributions, gratuity, leave encashment and other retirement benefits have been accoLlnted for on the basis of invoices I 
debit advises from its holding company. The provision for gratuity and other retirement benefits of employees on 
deputation in terms of Ind AS-19 is being made by its Holding Company as per its accounting policies. 

Provident fund contribution and pension contribution of the employees on deputation has been regularly deposited by the 
holding company with its P. F. Trust. 

Foreign exchange recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss: 

NIL 

..--.;,. 

-, 

IRe ON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Note:-

Note:-

28 Employee Benefits 

29 

The employees working for Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited (ISGTL) "the company" are posted on deputation I 
secondment and are on the rolls of Treon International Limited, the Holding Company. Their PF con tributions, pension 
contributions, gratuity, leave encashment and other retirement benefits have been accounted for on the basis of invoices I 
debit advises from its holding company. The provision for gratuity and other retirement benefits of employees on 
deputation in terms of Ind AS-19 is being made by its Holding Company as per its accounting policies. 

Provident fund contribution and pension contribution of the employees on deputation has been regularly deposited by the 
holding company with its P. F. Trust. 

Foreign exchange recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss: 

NIL 
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meON SHIVPU1U GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financhll S',llcmc:nui for the: year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Notc:- 30 Earnings Pcr Share 
I)j ~cI(lsu rr.: as pcr Ind /\S 3) 'Earnings per ~h a rc' 

llasic EPS is calcuhllcd br dividing the profit for the rcar .mribul':lblc ro equit}" holders br the \V(,:igh!cd :l\'cr.lgc number of c(luiry shan.::- o Ul'!'I:lOding ~Iuring lill' yl'a r. 

Diluled EPS is c,llcuhm:d by di"iding the profit fo r the ~·I.!ilr :mribumblc to the Ctluil)' hoJdcr~ after considcrin~ the dfc(\ of dilution b~' \\'cighu.:d ;wemgc nUmUtT flf cllui , ), sh;m:s olll~larHlillg during the ),l'a r plus till' 
weighted average number of C'lui!), shares that would be iSH1Cd on conl'ersion of all the diluli\'l! pmcnual C(lu il), ~ han:~ inlO Cl1uity ~ h;lrl·~. 

ti) D:llde and diluted e:lrnill ~s per share (in Rs,) 

Particulars Note 
For the yeOlr ended Por the: year ended 

31s1 Mluch 2023 JIs t March 2022 

Pruli! auribllt;lhle (I) E( ui!\' hulders (Rs, in crore) ii) 14 .. 141 (IU151 
Wei ,h{cd avcr;! 'e number uf et ui~' shares fur Iirlsic and Dill1lcd EPS jij l 5,f"1l) 15,(Ill 

Earnin 'S ler share (Basic) (I,Wl) (I,HII) 

E.'\rnin 'S Jcr sharc ([ il lHCd 11.% ((URI) 

10,UO 10,no 

ii) Profit :utribut;lblc.: to equit, sh:trcholders (used as Illllllcr:llor) (Rs. ill t.:rorc) 

P :l.ftiCIII'lfS 
Por Ihe year ended Por the yelu ended 

31st March 2023 J1ta March 2022 

Pru lit (or the ,"c;l.r :IS pcr St;uemcllI of Profit and Luss ·14.34 -12,05 

Prulit :utribulablc to E,< uil\' holders ul the CUOlpanr used lor cumputin .. EPS: (14.34 (12.05) 

iii) Wei lltt!d :I\'ecolge nllmber of equity sh:lres (used as denominator) (Nos.) 

PartiCIII:ICI; For Ihe year ended Por the year cndcd 
JIst l\'l:lrch 2023 Jist M:lrch 2022 

Onenin~ balance of issucd e( uit\' shares 15 15 

ElLLill' sharc~ ;~sucd durin!.! thc ,"car 

Weighted a\'er~'C nlJlllber of equity shares for com Juling D,lSic EPS IS IS 
Dihuioll Effect: 

Add: \'1cil!hted :1"Cr.1 c numbcrs of pOIenria l e{ uin' shares outstand i n~ durinl! the vear 

\'(Ieigjncd average number of cquit 'shares for computing Diluted EPS 15 15 

Note:- 31 Impairment of Assets 

In compliance of Inti /\ S 36 "I mpair men l oi As!'el~", thl! Company hl:i reviewed the aSSetS:u year-cnd 1'111' indicatilHl ot' illlp:lirmC'llt 1II :O:~, if an)" a:i per .he aCC<lunring 

polic}' of the CompallY. As there is no indication of imp:\irment, nn imp:linllcnt lo:o:!' h:l !' heen recogni!'ed durin~ (he rcar, 

Notc:- 32 "ro\'isio ns, Contingencies ~Ild Commilml.!nts 

(i) Provisions 

"'he n:nu rt.· of pro\' isions pnwidcd and 11lIl\'Cllll'n! ill provisions during till' rear:ls per Ind J\ S ."\7 'Provisions, CuntingclU l.i:tbil itic)i and Conti ngt.'n t :\:..~ct:;· arl' d isdnSl·d in :--Jlltc- I-I 

(ii) Conting-em Liabilities 

DisdusureofComin 'em Liabiliti es as ncr Ind AS:\7 'Provisions , Cumin 'em Liabilitit.,s and Contin 'Cf1( As scts ' is as undcr: 

Claims scttlcd during the yc;tr 

P,nticul :'lrs 

a) CI:'lims :.tgainst the Comp.m)' nOI acknowledged as debts : 

b) Guarantees (excluding fin:mcial guar,lIces) issllcd by the comp:my on beh.lif of 

c) Othcr money for which cornpau)' is contingcnlliablc (Rs in Crures) " " 

,," CIII;'lli illlifl/lIlf(II!)' IIIf/tpt'IIdtlll EI!~i1/rt'r o/NI-LAI 011 (/,(0111/1 of /klii/Itiri. T hr COlllp,l/!)' iJ i lf 

{nlJlIlJllllifllli fl ll with i\'IL·11 jhl' rfllll/mll!f !/x,It' f'hlilllJ, (1$ il i.r filii!)' IIx G1IIIplll!Y 1""1 f11!1' ddt!)'; drjilllli iJ 

"';'{~ illlpn.rrrl iJ Ilfll fill (If('fllml of fb, C(JIllPtII!)'. 

(iii) Commitments 

Foot As at Ji s t 
Note March 2022 

Addition during the 
)'ear 

12.55 

12.55 

Out of the opcning 

balancc 

Outor 
addition 

during the 
year 

Total Chtims 
Sellled during 

the year 

As atJIst 

March 2023 

12.55 

12.55 

P:trticul:trs Foot NOIt: As at Jl!;t M;lr 2023 As III Jist M:tr 2022 

a) Capitlll Commitments 
E~,im:1It.:d ~mllum nf cnn.r:lCI~ remainin~ rn be ~·)(ccu ll·d nn c"pilal :lC(!1u m (nci flf ;J( iI-:lncc) :lntl nnt prll\,jd t' ~1 fflr: 

b) Other Commitments 

C()nccs~:l in ;t re fees pa~':lhle to N I-I /\I till end ofCnncr..:~~jon(l.jrr..: perind of .he T,,11 RO;'ld (refer Nllt l: 2S SeA) 
(il 

Foot Note: 

S.No Capital Commitments 

Estimaled amount of ContractS rcmilining lel be cxcculCd fin Propcre)" PI:mt and E(luipmcm 

Estimatcd amOunt of c<,mraCfS remaining (II be t.'xecutec\ Pil Im'cstIIle.:11t ProperlY 

El' tim:Hed amount of Ctllltr:ICfS rctll:linin)..: Itl be.: exec uted nn Inr:lIlgible :\ ~sers under dt.'\'c!(lplllel1l 

Total 

r) 

f';(­
,.te," ,I 

As at 31st Mllr 2023 

4.11 37.18 

448,72 483.112 

452.83 520.20 

(Its. in crorc 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

4.11 37.lti 

4.11 37.18 

meON SHIVPUIU GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financi:1l S(OIlcmcnts for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

N()1c:- 30 Earnings Per Share 
Dj ~d(lsu n::ts per Ind /\S 33 'Earnings per ~harc' 

lh:;ic EPS is clilcut:lIcd br tli,'jding the profit for lhe p..:ar :tmibul':lblc 10 equitr holders br the w(:ighu:d ,H"cragc number of ('(Iuicy :;han::o olll!'l:lOd ing during !Ill' yea r. 

Diluled EPS is c:llcuhltl.:d by di\'iding the profit for the ~'c:lr :mribumblc: 10 the ct1uil)' hoJdcr~ "fIef con:;idcrin~ the: cffcCI of dilutiun b~' \\'ciglw..:d a\'erage nUlllbn of t.:t1uily :;h;m:s outstanding during Ihe )'I.':1r plus thl' 
weighted ,1\'cragc number of Ct1uit)· sh;\rcs lh:u would be iSH1Cd on COlll'crsion of :llllhc diluli\'c pcnclllial C(luit)' ~h;\n:~ into Cl1uity ~ h:lrl·~. 

:i) Basic and diluted e:lminlS per share (in Rs,) 

Particulars Note 
For the year ended Por the year ended 

31st M:uch 2023 JIst March 2022 

Pruli! attrihut;lhlc I!l El uin' hulders (It s, in crure ii } 14 .. 141 (12.05) 

Wei ·blcd avcm 'e number of el uirv shares fur Brtsie and Dill1lcd EPS iii 15,nl.l 15,(UI 

E;lrnin·s ler share Basic) (11,%) (iI.AU) 
Earnin·s )cr sharc Diluted ~1.'!6) (O,SU) 

10,110 10.00 

(ii) Prufit attribut:lblc.: to eQuit · shareholders (used as Ill1l1ler:ItOr) (Rs, ill I.:rorc) 

Parlicul:lrS For Ihe )'car endcd Por the yc~tr ended 
31st March 2023 J1st March 2022 

Pru lit fur thc ,'car as per S!:uemcllI of Profi t and Loss -14.34 -12,(15 

Pru lit attributable IU Ec Uil\' hulders 01 the CUOlpanr used fur cum JUlint( EPS; 14.3. 12.05 

(iii) Weighted :lVcr:lgc number or equit, slwrcs (used as denominator) (Nos,) 

l':lfticlIl:lrI:; For the ycar ended For thc year endcd 
JIst ~1;arch 202J Jhn M:lrch 2022 

Opcnin~ balance or issued C( uit \' shares 15 15 

Et ui!,' ~harc~ issued durir1L! the rcar 

Weighted a"cr~'C number or equity shares ror complitinj:t O:\sic EPS 15 15 

Dihuioll Effcct: 

Atld : \X'ei ,hted ;avera 'I.' numbers of potential e{ uirr shares outstandinl!, durin~ the vear 

Wei,::htcd average number or equity shares ror computing Diluted EPS 15 15 

NOle:- 31 Impairment of Assets 
In compliance of Ind 1\ 5 3() "Impairment of A!'!'cl!'''. the Company ha:; re viewed the :l sse.:tS al ycar-cnd fllr indicatillil of imp:\irmC'111 III): ): , if all y, as pC'r tilC' acCtJlIlHin).! 

polic}' or the Company, As there is no indication o f imp:\irmenl, no imp:li rmcnr lo):s ha l' been recognised dllrin~ the rcar. 

Note:- 32 Provisions, Contingencies and COmmillnl.!nlS 
(i) Provisions 

The.: nature or pro\' isions prov ided and 1llll\'Cllll'nt in provisions during Ih{' rear liS per Inti I\S .'\7 ·Provi:; iuns. Cun rin,!;cllI l .iahil irie!' ami ContinJ;l'nt :h :-'cI:;' arl' d isdnst'd in ~l'll' - I-I 

(ii) Contingem Liabilities 

Disclusure ufContin 'em Liabilities as_1?_er Inti /\5 :\7 'Provisions, Cumin 'ent Liabilities and Cumin 'CIH Assets' is as undcl~ 

Claims sC ltlcd during the ycar 

PotrticUhtfS 

a) CI:.,ims ;'gainst the COlnpanr nOI acknowlcdgcd as dcbts : 

b) Guarantecs (c",cluding financial guar.uccs) iss lied by the comp.m)' on bell4llr or 

c) Othcr money for which comp.lIl), is contingcOl liable (Rs in Crares) .... .... 

"' .. CllIillIl illlill/lIlnl l!), IlIrlr/k,lItlrlll EI!~ifJ(t'I ' t!lNI-LAI nIl (1((olml nf /klllillirl. 'fix Com P'li! ), ;1 ilf 
mlJllJllllliflllif)l1 /t'i," i\'H~'IJ jill' 1\'11/11/'(" l!f Ib.'" t' rI,,;,m, III il i.r filii!)' IIx ('f)IIIP,,,!y Ihlll til!)' dt/,!}'/ dr/III'" iJ 

"(;'{~ ifllpoml iJ 11M flll (/({,(Jlm' r:f /In ('f)/IIPIII!)'. 

(iii) CommitmCllts 

Foot As at 31st 
Notc March 2022 

Addicion during the 

)'ear 

12.55 

12.55 

Out orthc opening 
balancc 

Outor 
addition 

during the 
ycar 

Tot~1 Claims 

Settlcd during 
the ycar 

As 313151 

March 2023 

12.55 

12.55 

P:lrticul:trs Foot NOle As at Jl!:;t M:1r 2023 As lit Jist M:'lr 2022 

<1) C:\pit:d Commitments 
Esnmllcd lmnunt n( cnntr:\C!s rcm:t inin~ III b<: ~'xccul~'d nn c:\pil:\1 :\ccnum (ncr .. ( :lth':lnce) :\J'ul nor prlll' idel l fllr: 4.11 37.18 

b) Other Commitmcnts 

C(lnce:\~:1in;lre rees parahle 10 NH/\ I till end IIrCnncr..:~~ionajre perind (If the Toll R(I;\d (refn NOle 25 SCA) 
(il 448,72 483.112 

452.83 520.20 

foot Note: 

(Rs. in crore 

S.No Capital Commitments As 111 31st M:lr 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

Estimated amnum of contracts rcmilining tn be cxecutcd pn IJrnpcrf)" Pbnt and E(luipmcllC 

E:aim:Hcd arlloulII or CIlmraCts rem:lin ; n~ til be I..'xl'cutec! till Im'esunelll Property 

tluim:'lted amnUIlI of Cn!ltmns rCnl:linin).! ro be.: e.:xccufcd on Inrrtn~iblc l\~s cr s undcr dl.'\'cloPIlll'1lI 4.11 37.1~ 

Total 4.11 37.18 
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IRe ON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Note:- 33 Segment Reporting 

The Company is operating in only one operating Segment and hence disclosure as per Ind As 108 " Operating Segment" is not applicable 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes (0 Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Note:- 33 Segment Reporting 

The Company is operating in only one operating Segment and hence disclosure as per Incl As 108 " Operating Segment" is not applicable 
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meON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes 10 Financial Statements for the year cnded 31s1 Mar 2023 iIilOOSJltl 
N01C:- 34 Revenue from comr:'lCI with customers 

A. Dis<tggrcg:uion of Revenue 

SCt out belli\\' i~ Ihe di~agg(cg;llioll of the Companr's cncl1m: (rim) contracts with CUS[(Jmccl' imn opcr:ning sq.;mcllI and (ype of product or sen-iccs: 

Type of Product or Services 
Revenue :15 per lnd AS 115 

Dosmcs tic Total 

Railw:l 's 

Hit.!.hw:'l' 175.76 

Eleclric:'!1 

nuiklin~ 

Others 
TOlal 175.76 

For the year ended 31st M:.trch 2023 

175.76 

175.76 

Method for measuring 
performance obliga tion 

Input Method Output Method 

175.76 

175.76 

(Rs. in crocc) 

Total as per Statement 
Other Revenue of Profit and Loss 

IScgmcm Reporting 

1.75 177.51 

1.75 177.51 

Om of the tura l revenue recognised under Ind AS 115 during: tht: rc;u , Rs .1.1.07 Crofe is rec(I~nbed o\'Cr:t pt:riml oftimt: :lOd R ~. 144 .... 4 crore n:cogni~t:tl ppinl in time. 

Type of Product or Services 
Revenue as per I nd AS 115 

Dosmcstic Total 

lbiIW:l's 
14.1H6 

Elt::clric:l1 

Bujldjn~ 

Others 

Total 143.86 

For the year ended 31st M:1rch 2022 

143.8(, 

143.86 

Method for measuring 
performance obJigadon 

Input Method Output Method 

143.86 

143.86 

(Rs. in crore) 

Total as per SHucment 
Other Revenue of Profit and Loss 

/Segment Reporting 

0.21 144.07 

0.21 144.07 

Out of [he total revenue recognised under I nd /\5 115 during the re:u. Rs 22.76 crorcs is recognised over :l period uf time.:: :lnd R~ . 121 . .1 I crore n:cogllised pllint in time. 

D, Rcvenue from Monthl}' passes issued for Toll to Vehicles :lfe issucd as per rc.'<'luirc:ment (If the custom<.' rs. th~ cllIirc :lIllOUIll nf which is hooked as rcvcnuc on the d:uc of such lr;lnsacrion. Such 

mOlllhl)' p3SS~S :tH! non rc::fundablc:: in n:tt\lrc:: . 

C. Contract balances 

Particulars 

Trade Receivablc!i (Note 8,1) 

COlHmet Assets 

Contract Liabilities 

As:" 
31st l\'larch, 2023 

0.55 

(Rs. in crore) 

Asat 
31st M:\reh, 2022 

0.52 

(i) Trade receiv:lbles arc non-interest hcaring and the ClIstomer pwli lc includc$ ~:lti()rl:\1 Highw~)r Authority of India ( NHA T) :lnd Toll ColleClinn /\gene)'. The C/JIllj1:1ny's avcr:lge project t:xt:cution 

c)'clc.: is around 24 (U )6 motllils. General pa),llll.·nt terms includ!.: payments for ulilit)' shifring rcimhursl:nlellls :lnd chang!.: ill scope of work nlulu:tll~' !lgrc:!..'d upon if an)'. wirh :l credir pe riod 
rangmg from 60 to lHO d:trs or whcl1lhc work is cc.:rlific.:d.P:l),me:nrs also includc::sTolI recl!'i p' s for usc ot'Toll (nlkelt'd by the Toll C(lllt:cfilln Agt:nc), tor (he: Company. Project cxecutcd hy Ihe 

Comp:1I1)' is under BOT (built 0per:uc rr:lIls ft:r) modd !lnti rhe payments are on :tCCOUIH 01''1"0 11 Collection and :lddilional works br NHA I. it' :lny, 

OJ) COIllr:lel Asscts :lre recognised over the perind in which services ;ICC pcrformed to represent the Companr's right to comider:u.ion in exch:lnge for goods or ~ervices transferred to thc customer. It 
includes blll:lnccs due from custOmers under construcuon conlr:lClS Ih:lt arise when the Company recei\'es p:'l ymcms from custOmers :'IS per terms of the contracts however the re\'Cnlle is 
recognised o\'er the period under input method, Any :tmOUllt pre"iously recogni$ed:'ls:l. ((Intract :'I sse I is reci:l$silied to lr:lde recei\'ahles on S~llisf:lcU()1l of the conditilln :m:lchcd i.e, rlltufe ser\'ice 

which is necess'1I)· to achieve the hilling milestone. 

Movement in comract b:llanees during the yc;tr (Rs. in crare) 

As ~t 
31st Mmch, 2022 

Particulars 
As at 

31st March, 2023 

Co nU':'ICt :'ISSCl:H the Beginning of the ~'car 

Contract :'ISset:H the end of the yC:11' 

Net increasc/dccrc:Ise 

(iU) COl1trilct u:'Ibili[ies relating to construction contr:lcts !Ire b~l:mces due 10 customers, these arise when a p'lfIicul:tr milestone p:lrmellt exceeds the revenue recognised to dale under the input 

method and ad,',mce recei,'ed in long term consuucLion cnlllr3ClS. The amount of Ad\,:lnce received gets adjusted onr the Cnll$truction period a$ :lnd when invojcin~ i$ made 10 the 

customer. 

P<lrticulars 

COntr:lct liabiJjcies at [hl! bl!j.~il\ning of tbe yt:ar 

Comr:1Clliabilicics at the end of the ye:lr 

Net il1cre:,sc/dccrc~lse 

D. Set out bdow is [he :'mount of revenue reeo 7niscu [rom: 

P:trticul:lrs 

Amount included in CUntr:lCI liabilities :ll lhe beginning of Ihl.: 

rear 
Performance oulig:Hion s:nisficd ill previous yea rl' 

E, J'crform:tncc oblig:ltiun 

(Rs. in I.:rurc) 

As;tt As at 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

(ns. in crore) 

As at As :'It 

31st M:lfCh, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Inform:Hioll abour the Comp:IIlY's perform:tncc oblig;\ uoll ~ ar<.· su mm:lri~ed below: 

The tr:llls:lCUOtl price:: alloclltcd HJ ehe remaining perform:locc obligonions (tlm:lci~fied or pnrti:llly ull ~a tislied) 
;"Is:lt 31 i'hrch :'Ire, as fo llows: 

\'\lj[hin one rear 

l\lorl.: Ihan om: p.:ar 10 2 )'l.:ars 

i\lorc th:'lll 2 years 

TOI~I 

(Rli. ill ccore) 

As at Ali at 

31st March, 2023 31s1 March, 2022 
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Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 iliiollA rill! 
Note:- 35 Leases 

a) Company as a Lessee 

The Company as a lessee has entered into lease contracts, for office space. Before the adoption of lnd AS 116, the Company classified 
each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as either a finance lease or an operating lease. 
These leases arc in nature o f short term leases or low value leases and arc operating leases. 

Right of Use Assets 

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year is Nil. 

Lease Liabilities 

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognised and the movemcnts during the year: 

(Rs. in crore) 

As at 31st March, 2023 

Balance at April 1, 2022 

Addition 

Accredition of interest 

Payments 

Balance at March 31, 2023 

Current 

Non-current 

Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 

Interest expense on lease liabilities 
Expense relating to short-term and low value leases (Refer Note 19) 

b) Company as a Lessor 

0.00 

0.00 

(Rs . in crore) 

For the year 
ended 31st 

March 2023 

0.03 

0.03 

For the year 
ended 31st 
March 2022 

0.Q3 

0.03 

The Company has given a demarcated area adjacent to the Toll Road, within the terms of the Service Concession Arrangement with 
NHAI, on Lease for a Petrol Pump to be operated by Hindustan Petroleum Company Limited ( HPCL) and Lease and operations of 
Rest Area to Synergy Engineers Group Private Limited . An amount of Rs 0.18 Crores ( Rs 0.17 Crores) had accrued from HPCL and Rs 
0.20 Crores (Rs 0.18 Crores) from Synergy as Lease rentals. 

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows: 

As at 
31st March, 2023 

Within one year 

After one year but not more than five years 

More than five years 

0.41 

0.91 

2.17 

3.49 

(Rs. in crore) 

As at 
31st March, 

2022 

0.38 

1.08 

2.40 

3.86 
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lrcon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Note:- 36 Information in respect of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as required by Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) 

S.No. Particulars 

The principal amount and the inrcrcst due thereon rcmajning unpaid. to any supplier;ls at the end of cilch accounting },e,u: 

Principii I amount due to micro ilnd small enterprises 

Interest due on above 

The amount of interest paid by [he buyer in terms of Section I (, of the MSMED Act 200(, along with the amounts of the 

2 payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accouncing year 

4 

The amount of interest due and PilYilblt.: for the period of del;IY in milking p;tymcnr (\vhich h;'lvC bcc.::n p:lid but beyond the 
appointed day during thc ),ea r) but without adding the interest specified Linder the J'v[SMED /\ct 200(, 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the cnd of each accounting year 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until slich cbrc when rhe interest 
dues as above are actually paid to the small entcrprise for thc purpose of disallowance ::I.S :l deductihle expenditure under 

Seerion 23 of tbe tvlSMED Act 2006 

As at 31st Mar 
2023 

(Rs. in crore) 

As at 31st Mar 

2022 

Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Note:- 36 Information in respect of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as required by Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) 

S.No. Particulars 

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier;ls at the end of each accounting re,u: 

Princip(l] amount due to micro rind smal1enrcrpriscs 

IntC!res[ due on above 

The amount of interest paid by ,he buyer in term, of Section I (, of the MSMED Act 200(, along with the amountS of the 

2 payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accouncing year 

4 

The amount o f interest due rind p(lyablt: for the period of deb y in making p;tYlllcnr (\vhich h;tvc bcc.::n p:1id but beyond the 
appointed day during thc ),ea r) but without adding the interest specified uncleI' the MSMED I\ct 200(, 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting yea r 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding ycars, until slich cbrc when rhe inrcrest 
dues as ahove are actually paid ro the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance ilS :l deductihle expcndirurc under 

Seerion 23 of tbe !\,!SMED Act 2006 

As at 31st Mar 
2023 

(Rs . in crore) 

As at 31st Mar 

2022 
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Notc:-37 
(rcon Shivpuri Guna TolI\\'ay Limited 

Additiunnl re~ulatory information 

Disclosure of ratios 

Particulars 
Curn:nt ratio 

Debt-equity ratio 

Debt service coverage ralio 

Return on equity ratio 

Invcntory turnover ratio 

Trade receiva bles turnover ratio 

Trade paY<lble turnov~r ratio 

Net capital turnover ratio 

Net profit ratio 

Return on capital employed 

Retun 011 investment 

Numerator Denominator 
Current Assets Current Liabilities 

Total Debt Shareholder ' s Eq uity 

Earnings for debt Debt service - Interest 

service::: Net protil & Lease Payments + 
aflcr taxes + NOIl- Principal Repayments 
cash operating 

expenses 

Net Profits "ncr AVl':ragc Sharchollh:r's 
laxes - Preference Equity 
Dividend 

Cost of goods sold Average InvclllOry 

Net credit sales - Average 
Gross credit sa les - Reccivnble 
sa les return 
Nel credit Ave rage: 
pun;hases -= Gross Payab lcs 
credit purchases 
purchn5c return 

Trade 

Trade 

Net sa les - Total Working capitDI 
sales - sa lcs return Current asse ts 

Nct Profil 

E;unings 

Current liabilities 

Net solles - Total sales 
sa lc !'i rdurn 

before Capilal Employed -
interest uno taxes Tangible Nel Worth + 

Total Debt + Deferred 

TJX LiabililY 

(nterest (Finance Investmcnt 
Income) 

March 31<12023 

0.58 

10.4 I 

2.59 

-0.26 

NA 

1.6S 

I.n 

-3 .H2 

-0.OX2 

0.05 

NA 

Ma reh 3 I ,I 2022 

0.10 

8. 10 

1. 85 

-0.18 

NA 

1.60 

6.34 

-6.01 

-0.OH4 

0.05 

NA 

499.20% 

:!8.52% 

39.8 1% 

-47.87% 

NA 

3.03'Y. 

-n.Y2% 

36.49% 

2.55% 

6.38% 

NA 

Reason for Ch ;Hl2,C more than 25cVu 
The reason for incrcas..: is un account of 

highc.:!" CBsh gcm:rulcd fi'Glll toll upl!ralions 
rcsuliil1g in Illuch higher ctlrrcnl i.lssc ls in 
comparison 10 current liabilities 
Company's cquilY has reduced on aceounl of 
lower retained carnings due to higher 
provision for maintenance. resu lting in a 
higher Debt Equily ratio 

The ilH.:rcasc ill Ihe DSCR is all account of 
improvcJ eilshnows being cameo from the 
toll roa~ 

Thc decn:ase in the ratio is on account of 
high !.!r pruvision for major maintcnatH.:e 
resulting in lowering of this r!.!tllrn in the 
immcdhHc shOl'l term 

NA 

NA 

Tht: decrease is due to amounts pending to ht.! 
paid to Holding Compuny-IRCON, for stllge 

2 works ortbe Compul1Y which has rec~n tly 

been provisionDlly completed. 

The increase in the ratio is on account of 
commt.!ncernent of toll from stage 11 resulting 
in hi ·Iler sa les nnd imnrovin 1 the rDtio. 

NA 

NA 

NA 

The duration and impact of the COVID-1 9 pandemic especially on account of second wave of the pandemic. remnil15 unclenr at prl!51!nt as 011 r~portil1g date. Helice. it is not possible 10 reliably 
estimate the duration and severity of these cOl1 st.!qucllces. as wdl .15 their impact on the Iin~lI1cial position ;111<.1 results of Ihe ('olllpnny for futlu'e periods. However. the com[l:lny is protected by the 
clauses 29.6 of the Concession Agreement 10 claim such loss under force majeure ~vcnt in the form of revenue loss compensation by wily of I!xtension of the concl!ssion period . The impact of the 
lockdown disruption! COVID-19 pandemic will have to be ilssesscd Ii'olll time to timc ~lI1d communicated <IS we progress during tht: current linullci;)1 year. A lot dt!pends on (he success or the various 
pandemic cont~inll1ellt etlorts being undertaken by the Stnte ;)ud Central Govemmcnts nnd Henlth authoriti es. It is there fore premn tufc to forecast tile future impact with credibility at this stage. 

iii The Company h:Js not tf:Jded or invested in Cr)'pto Currcncy or Virtual CllITency during the financial year ending 31s1 Mnfch 2023 and 31st Mnrch 2022. 
iv The Company has no transactions with companies struck ofT under section 248 of the Companies ACI, 2013 or Section 560 afCompanies Act . 1956 during lhe finnllcial yenr ending 31st March 2023 

and 3 1.1 March 2022. 

During the finnncial year 2022-23 and 2021-22. the Company h:wc not ndvanccd or loancd or inves ted funds 10 any other person(s) or I!ntily(is). including foreign entities (Intennediaries) with the 

understanding that the Illtcnnedinry shall: 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or cntiti l!s identified in any m<lllner whatsoevcr by or all behalf orthe company (Ultimate DCIlt!liciaril!s) or 

(b) provide any guarantce, security or the like 10 or on behalfofthe Ultimate l3eneJiciaries 

vi During Ihe Jinullcini ye:Jr 2022-23 and 2021-22. the Company have nol received any fund from .my person{s) or ell tity(is) . including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the undcrst:mding (whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Compnny shaH: 

vii 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 011 beha lf orthe Funding Party (Ultimate Bencliciarics) or 
(b) provide any guarantec. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

The Company docs not have any loans and advances in the nature or loans 10 promoters, directors. KMP nnd other relclled p:Jrtiesin the !inanei,,1 yenr I!l1ding 31 st March 2023 and Jis t March 2022. 

viii The Company do nol have any Bcnami property as on 31 st Mnrch 2023 and] I sl March 2022, where .1I1Y proceeding has been initi:lIecl or pending against the Co mj:l.my for holding nny 8cl1Cnni 
properly. 

ix Thc Company docs not havc any title deeds of immovable properties nol held in the namc orthe company :IS at 31 st March 2023 and) I st March 2022. 
Company is not required to submit slatcment of current assets with the bank and thcrefore rcconcil.llion orthe statemenl !iled by the eOIll I>any with bank .md the books ofaccounlS is not applicable. 

xi The Company docs not hilVC ilny invcsuncllI property ilS at 31 st March. 2023 and :\ I st March, 2022. 
xii During the yenr 2022-23 and 2021-22, the company has 110t revalued any item of Propcrty,plant and equipment and intangible asse!. 
xiii Thc Comprmy docs 1101 have any transactions in financial year 2022-23 and 2021-22, where the camp.my has notllsed the borrowings froln banks and iin[lncial institutions for the specific purpose 

for which it wos tnken at the balancc sheet date. 

xiv The Company has not cntered in any transaction nol recorded in the books or accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as incolllc during the year in (he tax <Jssessments lInder the Income Tax 
Act. 1961 (such as search or surveyor any other rclev<Jllt provisions or the Income T<Jx Act, 1961 .) 

xv Company has 110t received any grants and donations during the year cnding 31 st March 2023 and period ending 31 st March 2022. 
xvi The Company has not been occlafl.:d as wi lti.ll defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority in the lill<Hlcial year 2022·23 and 2021-22. 
xvii The Company hilS complied with the numbl.!r of laYl.!rs presl.:ribl.!d under the Companies Act, 2013. 
xviii Thcre arc no churges or satisfaction of chargc yet to be regish.: reu with the R!.!gistrar of Companies beyond the Statutory Period in Ihe finilncial year !.!nding 31 sl Murch 2023 am] 31 st March 2022. 

xix The Company hav\! 110t cntcred into any sche1l1c(s) of alT<lngC1l1Cllts during Ihe year el1dil1g 31 sl March 2023 ul1d pl.!riud ending 31 s( M;m:h 2022 .&-."':. -:=-~ 

xx Smce Company have no Lease III the books threfore 110 disclosure IS reqUIred , ~¥--\ ~ ~ ~,!:, f? ~ 
xxi The Company do nol havc any pnor pl.!nod crrors In tinanclUl year endmg on 31 st March 2023~~~ I~~t MarcJ:i 2,2 ~ be dl>cJo,cd ,epar,tldy III Statel1lel1tl~;?g· III equ,/1,},: ,,~~ 

~~-,~ r ~ ;=/) 1 I ,'r [ " Delhi L,. 
'-; './ .: . . . I \:--.... .:.:i 

.~ " ........... ~~ 
l<:OACC~ 
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Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Note:-

Note :-

Note :-

38 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (CSR) 

The applicability of CSR under section 135 (5) of the Companies /\ct, 2013 is not applicable as its average net profit of the Company is Nil due to 

continuing losses for three years. Hence no CSR expenditure has been incurred during the period. 

39 Other disclosures 

The company has a s),stem of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from banks and other parties. Sofar as trade/other payables and loans and 
acivnnces are concerned, the balance confirmation lettcrs wcrc sent to the partics. l3alanccs of some of the Trade Receivables, Othcr assets, Trade 

a) and 'other payables are subject to confirmation/reconciliations and consequential adjustment, if an)'. Reconciliations are carried out on an on-going 
basis. However, management docs not expect to have an)' material financial impact of such pending confirmations / reconciliations. 

b) In the opinion of the management, the value of current assets, loans and advances on reali zation in the ordinary course of business, will not be less 
than the value at which these are stated in the balance sheet. 

c) Certain prior periods amnunts hnve been reclassified for cnnsistency with the current period presentations. These recl'lssifications have no effect' on 
the reported results of operntions. Also, previous year fil,'Ures nre shown under bracket 0 to differentiate from current year fib'ures. 

40 Recent accounting pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifics new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (I ndian Accounting Standards) 
Rules as issued from time to time on March 31,2023,I\1C/\ amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Ruics,2023 as below: 

Ind AS1- Presentation of Financial Statements -
This amcndment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for 
adoption of this amendment is an annual periods beginning on or after April 'I, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the 
amendment is insignificant in the standalone financial statements. 

Ind AS 8- Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Error-
This amendment has introduced a detinition of 'accounting estimates' and included amendments to lnd AS R to help entities distinguish changes in 
accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 
2023. The Compan), has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its stanualone financial statements. 

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes -
This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that is does not apply to transactions tbat give rise to equal and offsetting 
temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April1, 2023. The Company has evaluated 
the amendment and there is no impact on its standalone financia l statement. 

For P. R. Kumar & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 31m'd) 
Dire~tor 

o it Parmar) 

(CA Deepak Srivastava) 

Partner 

M . No. 501615 

Place : New Delhi 

Date: 12/05/2023 

UDIN: 2.1 J.oIGI S:-/1C:t'-1 P TOCf fjJ 

DIN-09008SS3 

1l~!!:!: ' 
Chief Executive Officer 
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DIN-08190141 
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" <" '" . Chief Financial Officer 
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Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Note:-

Note :-

Note :-

38 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (CSR) 

The applicability of CSR under section 135 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable as its average net profit of the Company is Ni l due to 

continuing losses for three years. Hence no CSR expenditure has been incurred during the period. 

39 Other disclosures 

The company has a s),stem of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from banks and other parties. Sofar as trade/other payables and loans and 
aciV<lnces are concerned, the balance confi rmation letters were sent to the parties. !:lalances of some of the Trade Receivables, Other assets, Trade 

a) and other payables are subject to eonfirmatio n/ reconciliations and consequentia l adjustment, if an)'. Reconciliations arc carried out on an on-going 
basis. However, management docs not expect to have an)' material financia l impact of such pending confirmations / reconciliations. 

b) 10 the opinion of the management, the value of current assets, loans and advances on reali zation in the ordinary course of business, will not be less 
than the value at which these are stated in the balance sheet. 

c) Certain prior periods amounts h;1 ve been reclassified for consistenc), with the current period presentations. These rechlssifieations have no effect on 
the reported results of operations. Also, previous ),ear fil,'Ures are shown under bracket 0 to diffe rentiate from current year fii,'Ures. 

40 Recent accounting pronouncements 

Nli ni stry of Corporate Affairs ("MeA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Compan ies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules as issued from time to time on March 31,2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,2023 as below: 

lnd AS1- Presentation of Financial Statements -
This amendment reguires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significanr accounting policies. The effective date for 
adoption of this amendment is an annual periods heginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the 
amendment is insignificant in the standalone financial statements. 

lnd AS 8- Accollnting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Error-
This amendment has introduced a detinition of 'accounting estimates' and included amendments to ]nd AS R to help entities distinguish changes in 
accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 
2023. The Compan), has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its srandalone financial Statements. 

lnd AS 12 - Income Taxes -
This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemptioo so that is does not appl)' to transactions that give rise to egual and offse tting 
temporary differences. The effective oate for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginoing on or after April1, 2023. The Company has evaluated 
the amendment and there is no impact o n its stanoalone financial statement. 

For P. R. Kumar & Co. 

Chartered Accountants ~tm"d) 
Dire~tor 

DIN-09008553 

o it Parmar) 

(CA Deepak Srivastava) 

Partner 

M . No. 501615 

Plaee : New Delhi 

Date: 12/05/2023 

UDIN: 2JJ.O(G'~/19'-IPTOCffjJ 

;J1I:~!:!: . 
Chief Executive Offieer 

/.:-. '. 
f .;;? 
\ .. ? 
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mCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
(CIN. U45400DL2015G01280017) 
BALANCE SHEET as :It 31st March 2023 

Particulars 

l. ASSETS 
Non-current assets 

(:1) Property, Plant and equipment 
(b) Intangible Assets 

(c) lm:lllgibic assets under dC\'c!opmcm 
Cd) Financial ,\ssctS 

(i) Other Pinanci:t l Assets 
(c) Deferred tnx assets (Net) 

(t) Othe r non-current a%cts 
Total Non-current assets 

2 Currcl11 assets 

(:\) Fin:1nci:1\ /\:;sets 
(i) Trade Receivablt:s 
(ii) C<lsh nnd cash Ct]llivtl lems 

(iii) Other Financial Assets 

(b) Currcll( T:l.x Assets (Net) 
(c) Other current aSSets 

Total Current assets 

11. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
1 Equity 

(a) E'luit)" Share Capital 

(b) Other Elluiry 
Total Equiry 

2 Liabilities 
(i) Non-current li;abilitics 

(a) rinanci:tll.iabilitics 
(i) Borrowings 

(ii) Trade Payables 

Total Assets 

- DlIe~ of Micro Enrerprist:s alld Small 
Enrt:rpriscs 

. Toral o urslanuing dut:s other than of 
Micro Enrcrpriscs and Small EIl[{!rpriscs 

(iii) Orher financial Ii<lbiliu{!s 
(I» Provisions 
(c) Deferred Tax Liflbiliries Ncr 
(d) Other Non-Currcnl Liabiliries 

TotO'll Non-current liabilities 

(ii) Current liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabiliries 
(i) Burrowings 
(ii) Trade payables 

- Ducs o f Micro ElUcrpriscs and 
Smail Emcrpris{!s 

- TOlal uutsl:lOding dues Othcr 
than of J.\Iicro Enu:rprise s and S111:lU 
Enrcrpriscs 

(iii) Other fin:tncialliabitidt:s 
(b) Odlcr current Li abilities 
(c) Provisiuns 

(eI) Currelll TlX liabili ty (Net) 
Toml Current liabilities 

Tot: .. 1 Equiry ~lOd Lhlbilirics 

Ill . Summar I o f Significant Accountinl! policies 

IV. Narcs forming p:lrl of tinanci:li StatCIllL'IlI S 

Note No. 

5 
6 

H 
8.1 

8.2 

8.4 
9 

10 

" 12 

13 

13.1 

13.2 

14 

6 

15 

15.1 

15.2 

15.3 

16 
14 

1·2 

}·4U 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

0.37 

570.70 

7.8 1 

0.13 

.l.21l 

0.55 

60.7.1 

1.42 

0.30 

0.24 

150.00 

(102.6-1) 

488.78 

0.0.1 

4.28 

.1 2.1 I 

7.01 

0 . .18 
65.50 

5H2.1 1 

6.1.24 

645.45 

47 . .1(1 

488.8 1 

109.28 

645.45 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.46 
567.20 

20.69 

0.14 

13.37 

0.52 
1.59 

11.10 

0">5 

150.00 

(HH . .10) 

493.06 

(un 
23.1 '1 

(, .RO 

6.41 

II.R6 
1.42 

As per our Report of even dmc atwched For and on behalf of [rcon Shivpuri GUlla Tollway imited 

P:u[ncr 
M. No. 501615 

Pbce : Ne\\" Delhi 
Dare: 12/05/2023 

i1J~~' 
/ / I~~cnder Klimar Malll)'a) 

Chief I ~xcc uri\'c Officer 

UD IN: 2-?Sb( (; rr-f3, ~ 'i /!-T ocr I J j 

Ao) 
(R;1Chn:l fOIll:tr) 

Chief Fin;1ncial Ofticcr 

(in Rs. crore) 

601.86 

2.56 

604.42 

61.70 

516.23 

26.49 

604.42 

mCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
(CIN- U45400DL2015G01280017) 
BALANCE SHEET as at 31st March 2023 

P;uticulars 

l. ASSETS 
Non-current assets 

(:l) Property, Plane :lnd equipment 
(b) 
(c) 
(0) 

Inrangiblc ,\sscts 

1l1t:lngiblc :'IsseiS under development 
Financial ,\ssctS 

(i) Other Pinanci:t i Assets 
(c) Deferred tax assets (Net) 

(t) Other non-current :l$St;ts 

Total Non-current assets 

2 Cutrell! assets 
(:I) r:innncia[ ,\ssctS 

(i) Trade Receivables 

(ii) C"sh nnd ( :Ish etjll ivil lems 

(iii) Oth el" Fin:1ocial Assets 

(b) Currcll( Tax Assets (Net) 

(c) Other curn:nt assets 

Toeal Current assets 

11. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
1 Equity 

(a) E'luit)' Share Capital 

(1)) Other hlUi t)' 

Total Equity 

2 Liabilities 
(i) Non-currcntli;;\bilitics 

(a) rinaneial l.iabilities 

(i) Borrowings 

(ii) T ,ade Payables 

Total Assets 

. Due!; of Micro El1rc rpri ~t:s and Small 
En rcrpriscs 

. Tuml our!'I:Uluing dues other than of 
Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 

(iii) Orhcr financial liabilities 

(b) Prodsions 
(c) Defcrrt:d Tax Liflbilitic5 Ncr 
(d) Otht:r N()n·Currt:nl Liabilities 

Tot011 Non-current liabilitic~ 

(ii) Current liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabitirit:s 
(i) Burrowings 
(ii) Trade payables 

. Dues o f Micro Enterprises and 
Smail Emcrrriscs 

. Tmal outsl:lOding dues O ther 
than of Micro Enu:rpriscs and S111:l11 
Emcrpriscs 

(iii) Otht:r tin:lncialli:1bitidt:s 

(b) Odler current Li abili ties 
(c) Provisiuns 

(eI> Currem TlX liability (Net) 

Tonti Current liabilities 

Tot •. 1 Equiry ~tnd Lhlbilirics 

Ill. Summar I of Significant AccOUnlinl.! )olicics 

IV. Narcs formintl:lf( of tin:1l1ci:l1 SI:llCIllL'I1I S 

Note No. 

8.1 
8.2 
H.4 

10 

II 

12 

13 

13.1 

13.2 
I~ 

6 

15 
15.1 
15.2 

15.3 
16 
14 

1-2 

3-40 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

U.37 
570.70 

7.8 1 

O. D 

.1.21) 
5M2.1 1 

0.55 
60.73 

1.42 
lUO 

0.24 
63.24 

645.45 

150.01) 
(102.M) 

47 .. 16 

488.78 

0.0.1 

~SS.S I 

4.28 

.12.11 

7.01 
0 . .1 8 

65.50 

109.28 

645.45 

iliillllG!tl 
(in Rs. erore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.46 
567.20 
20.69 

0.14 

lJ..l7 

fl. 52 
1.59 

n.lo 
11..15 

150.00 
(HK .. 10) 

493.06 

n.O.1 
2.1.1'1 

6.RO 

6AI 

11.86 
1.42 

601.86 

2.56 

604.42 

61.7() 

516.23 

26.49 

(,04.42 

As per our Report of even date attl.lchcd For and on behalf of Ircon Shivpuri Guna ToUway imited 

P:urncr 

M. No. 501615 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 12/05/ 2023 

;ij~~' 
/ / I~~cndel' KumaI' Mocu)'a) 

Chicf I ~xccuri\'c Officer 

UDIN: L?SO(Grr-f3, ~'f /3-ToCfIJJ 

)0) 
(Raellna f umar) 

Chief Financia l Officer 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

(CIN- U45400DL20t5G0I280017) 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2023 

Particulars 

I. Revenue: 

Revenue from operations 

II. Other inco me 

Ill. Total Income (I + II) 

IV. Expenses: 

Project Expenses 

Employee benefits expenses 

Finance costs 

Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairmen t 

Other Expenses 

Total Expenses (IV). 

V. Loss Before exceptional items and Tax (III - IV) 
VI. Exceptional items 
VII. Loss before tax (V + V I) 

VIII. Tax expenses: 

(I) Currcnt tax 

- For the Period 

. For earlier years (nct) 

(2) Defcrred ta, (net) 

Total Tax Expense 

IX Loss for the period from continuing operation (VII - VIII) 

X Other ComI"ehensive Income 

Xl 
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX +X) (Comprising 
profit/CLoss) and other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax) 

XII Earnings Per Equity Share: 

(For Continlling O peration) 

(I) !lasic ( Absolute Vaillc in INR) 
(2) Diluted ( Absolute Vaille in INR) 
Face Value Per E'luity Share 

As per our Report of even date attached 

For P . R. Kumar & Co. 

Chartered Accounmms 

(CI\ Dttpak SrivaStava ) 

Parmer 
M. No. 501615 

Place: New Delhi 

Dale : 12/05/2023 

(in Rs . crore) 

Note No. 
For the year ended 31st Mar For the year ended 31st 

2023 Mar 2022 

17 175.76 143.86 

18 1.75 0.21 

177.51 144.07 

I () IO(,.7R 71.05 

20 1.57 1.94 

21 40.87 41.49 

22 42.5(, 41 .56 

19 0.07 0.08 

191.85 156.12 

(14.,"\4) (12.05) 

(14.34) (12.05) 

6 

(14.34) (12.05) 

(14.34) (12.05) 

:10 (0.%) (O.HO) 

."\0 (0.96) (0.80) 

10.00 10.00 

For and on behalf of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

OirC(!,Wf 

DI N.O,)008553 

Oircndcr Kumar ~ Iaurya) 

Chief I ,xceuti"c Officer 

DI N-08190141 

(Raehna Toma r) 
Chief Financial Officer 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

(CIN- U45400DL2015G0I280017) 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2023 

Particulars 

1. Revenue: 

Revenue from operarions 

II. Other income 

Ill. Total Income (I + II) 

IV. Expenses: 

Project Expenses 

Employee benefits expenses 

Finance costs 

Depreciatio n, Amortisation and Impairment 

Other Expenses 

Total Expenses (IV). 

V. Loss Before excep tional items and Tax (Ill - IV) 
VI. Exceptional items 
VII. J.oss before tax (V + V I) 

VIII. Tax expenses: 

(I) Current tox 

- For the Period 

- For earlier ycars (nct) 

(2) Deferred ta, (net) 

Total Tax Expense 

IX Loss for the period from continuing operation (VII - VII I) 

X Other Comprehensive Income 

Xl 
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX +X) (Comprising 
profit/(Loss) and other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax) 

XII l2arnings PCI' I2quit), Share: 

(Fo r Continuing Operation) 

( I ) Ihsic (Absolutc Va ilic in INR) 
(2) Dilutcd ( Absolute Vallie in IN R) 

Face Value Per E'luit)' Share 

As per our Report of even date attached 

For P. R. Kumar & Co. 

Chartered AccoullmO{s 

(CI\ Decpak Sri\'astava ) 

Parmer 
M. No. 501615 

Place : New Ddhi 

Date: 12/05/2023 

(in Rs. crorc) 

Note No. 
For the year ended 31st Mar For the year ended 31st 

2023 Mar 2022 

17 175.76 143.86 

18 1.75 0.21 

177.51 144.07 

19 I (J('.78 71.05 

20 1.57 1.94 

21 40.87 4'1.49 

22 42.5(, 41.56 

19 0.07 0.08 

191.85 156. 12 

(14 .. 14) (12.05) 

(14 .34) (12.05) 

-

6 

(14.34) (12.05) 

-

(14.34) (12.05) 

:10 (0.%) (O.1l0) 

30 (0.%) (0.80) 

10.00 10.00 

For and on behalf o f Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

[)] N-0!)190141 

Oitcnder Kumar ~Iaur)'a) 

Chief I'.xccutive Officer 

.. 0,: 

(Rachna Tomar) 
Chief Financia l Officer 
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mCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
(CIN- U45400DUOISG0I280017) 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" M",ch 2023 

WIlDS!tl 
(in Rs . ecore) 

P:trticul:trs As at 3hn MOlt 2023 ~:II 3bl M~lr 2022 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net Profit befote la.x:Llion 

AdiustmcllI for . 

Unwinding of discount on pro\'isio n:; 
Dcprcci:uion, amo ni z;l lion and impairnlcnt 

Impairment of Im'cstmcflI 

f<immcc Co!'! 

Interest Income 

Operadng- l'rofil before Currclll /Non·CurrcrH Asset!" li nd Linbililics 
Adjustment (or . 

Dt'crl':\sc / (Incn:,lsc) in Tr:IJc Rccci\,;llJlcs/ Fill.Ulc;ai '\SSI.' IS . Loans 

Decrease I (Increase) in Other /\~SC I S & Finallcial ASSC I!' 

(Dcc.:r(';t~c) / Jnt:rc:l~c in Tr:tdc rar .. hk:~ 
(Dc((casc) / Im:rcasc in Other l.iabi lilics, Financiall.iabilitics & Provisions 

Cash gcncr:ucd from opcr:lliolls 

In cum!.! T;I X Paid (net) 

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

rurch:l~c o f Propcn r. Plant :md E(Juipmcm 

Purchase of Inl:lOgiblc .'\s~el~/ Int;!ngiblc .. ~~cl~ under developmcnt 

imerCH Recei ved 

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

I...o:ln From lReON (Hulding Cu.) 

Luan From Sla te Bank or Jndi :l 

Rcparmcn L or Luan 10 IltCON (H'lld in).: CII.) 

lkp:I!'111l:m Dr Loan ILl Sl:IIC Bank uf Indi:l 

Borrowing COS I 

NET CASH FROM FINANC ING ACTIVITIES 

(I) 

(2) 

(1+2) 

(A) 

(Il) 

(C) 

Effect or E>.ch:lngc diffcrc.:nccs o n Ir.lIlsl:lIi\lfl 01 Foreign f:urn:m:y Cash & Cash Etlui\'alcnts (D) 

NET DECREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+D+C+D) 

OPENING CASH ANI) CASH F.OlJIVALF.NTS (E) 

CLOSING CASH ANI) CASH F.OlJIVALF.NTS (F) 

NET INCRE,\SE / (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQU IVALENT (F- E) 

(l0,') 

(fJ.fJ2) 

11.111 

(1. 11) 

.l.l.n4 

67.S1 

33.31 
100.82 

(n.lll) 

100.62 

2.(10 

IJ.IR 

2.78 

(6,HI I) 

(30.46) 

(44.26) 

59.14 

1.59 

60.73 

59.14 

(12.1),) 

[).44 

41.;(, 

·11 .05 

(1). 17) 

(0.U6) 

(11.34) 

(1).41) 

19.91 

70.83 

19.10 
89 .1)3 

(OJI6) 

89.87 

(U.l I(l2) 

(27M) 
O,IH 

(27.5 1) 

502.52 

(526.nn) 

(2.66) 

(41.05) 

(67.19) 

(4.83) 

6,42 

1.59 

(4 .83) 

Note: I . T he: ;lhtH'e (:Ish Il(m ' St:l(etncfll h:l s bCl'n prl'p:tn,;d under Ihe "Imlirl'ct ;\Icdltld"as !il'l 0111 in £Ill' ' ndi:tn Accounling S':lmlard (Iml I\ S) . 7 (III S':lIemelll of C;I:-:h Flows. 

2. R~conciliatioll orCash amI C<l!<ih Eqlli\':d~JlIS anJ Components orC'lsh :1Ilt! C:lsh Equiv:Jl cnts includcJ ill the ahovc St.mJalonc SI:IIClllcnt oJ'Ca:;h FlolVs: 

Particulars 

Cash in hand 

Cheques/drafts in hand 

Remittance in Transit 
Balances with banks: 
- On curront accounts 

- Flexi Accounts 

- Deoosits with oriCJinal maturity of less than 3 months 
Tolal Cllsh :Ind Cash Et uh'alcnls :.IS ler BalaOl,,'e Shcer ,IOd SI:lIldalunc Slalcmcnl fir ClIsh Fluws 

AS:lt Jlst~l:lr2023 

1.00 

59.71 

60.71 

In RsCI'Of'cS 

As :11 31sr M:lr 2022 

o.or. 
1.53 

1.59 
• "fbt Illml 'f "(t/rlllff oJ lv 6(),71 Cmll"I (prf'/'I(J/lJ. r~rJr IV 1,59 OWl'!), prrltllll 10 E.\'CROII ' ,.-1/C 11'1)1(" ,m' rr/rl/lrJ/-/t. J /(//(/ rll Pt'!'fflll(f'wOII '~I!.I 't'ml"1I1 <'IIh'mlWllh NII.-I/' Olllll/llm, Rr 10 (ron'! ( prrrrrlllS 

)"tllr N IL) htls I1ml mrlll(lrkrt/ (II Lim J or 1\-1(961' .\1(/;lIlflUlllfr Irlm'!' 1I((lJIfJI/If.r /1"1' Irm/! ~lIJHJII _- I.~"Uldr.IJIII'/"h SJH. 

). RCC0llcili.uioll between the oJlening :1Ild dosing ha\:lIlccs in lhe Bahlllcc Shect lor liahil itics arising from lin illlcing ac ti vitic!I: 

P:lrliculars 
As at 1st A )ril2021 

(a) CashHows during the yc .. tr 
(b) Non c:Ish changc:; during the year c.lue 10 : 

Trans ition imp;1ct orlnd AS 116 
Intcrest Accnlcd 

As lit 31s1 M:lrch 2022 

(LI) Cnshflows during the YC;1r 
(b) NOll cash chnnges during the year due 10 : 

Interest Accmcd ( Ncl of in Ie res I :lid) 
As at 31st Mllrch 2023 

3. Figu res in br:lckcrs rcpre:;elll Ilurflll\\' nf c:ls h. 

4, r: i~,\lres IIr lhe prCl'inllS p'::lf hal 'C bee II rcgrr'lIpcd / rt:C:I ~!l'd wlll:n.:\'c r IIct:t: s~ :lry, 

As per our Hepon of even d ille ;t((;lched 

For p, R. Kumar & Co. 
Charlercd AccClunl:tntS 

r im ftc].:", Np.: no) 1 B6N 

P:trtncr 
M, No. SUH,I 5 

Pktcc : Ncw Delhi 

Dillc : 12/05/2023 

UDIN 23Sa(blr-~9'1{:T091J.j 

DI N-09008553 

,~~. 
(11H.:ndn KUIll:-.r 1\!.1lI1'} ,1) 

UIIl'f LXeCUIlI'l' O rtiCH I 

l ' 
~ ... ~ 

I -=f: ,r) 
'jo, 

. ~ 

; '0 

Ihln Crurcs 

Bnrrnwin's 
52(,.00 
(26.14) 

499 ,R(i 

(".KII) 

493.06 

(lbchn:t Tom:lr) 

(]lil-f rin;lnci:1! Officer 
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mCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

(CIN- U45400DL2015G0I280017) 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March 2023 

A. Equity Share Capital (For the year ended 31st Mar 2023) 

Particulars 

Balance as at 01 April, 2021 

Changes in equity share capital during the year 
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 

Changes in etluity share capital during the year 
Balance as at 31st March 2023 

B. Other Equity 

For the year ended 31st March 2022 

Reserves & Surplus 

Particulars Capital 
General Retained 

Redemption 
Reserves Earnings 

Reserve 

Balance as at 1 April, 2021 - (76.25) -
Changes in accouncing policy or prior period errors - - -

Balance as at 1 April, 2021 (Restated) - (76.25) -
Profit/ (Loss) for the year - (12.05) -
Other Comprehensive Income 

Total Comprehensive Income for the JJ.eriod - (12.05) -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 - (88.30) -

For the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Reserves & Surplus 

Particulars Capital 
General Retained 

Redemption 
Reserves Earnings 

Reserve 

Balance as at 1 April, 2022 - (88.30) -
Changes in accouncing policy or prior period errors - - -

Balance as at 1 April, 2022 (Restated) - (88.30) -
Profit/ (Loss) for the year - (14.34) -
Other Comprehensive Income 
Total Comprehensive Income for the period - (14.34) -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - (102.64) -

Other Comprehensive 
Income 

Exchange differences on 
translating the financial 
statement of a foreign 

operation 

-
-

-

-
-

Other Comprehensive 
Income 

Exchange differences on 
translating the financial 
statement of a foreign 

operation 

-

-
-

-
-

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For P:. R. Kumar & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

F"mR~; 
(CA Deepak Snvastava ) 

Partner 

M. No. 501615 

Place: New Delhi 

Date : 12/05/2023 

UDIN: '2..~ .ro((;rS'(]~"p.TOCUJ.j 

(~Ahm'd) 
Dir~ctor 

DIN-0~00S553 DIN-OS190141 

(Rs. in crore) 

Amount 
150.00 

-
150.00 

-
150.00 

(Rs. in crore) 

Total 

(76.25) 

-
(76.25) 

(12.05) 

-
(12.05) 

(88.30) 

(Rs. in crore) 

Total 

(88.30) 

-
(88.30) 

(14.34) 

-
(14.34) 

(102.64) 

mCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

(CIN- U45400DL2015G0I280017) 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March 2023 

A. Equity Share Capital (For the year ended 31st Mar 2023) 

Particulars 

Balance as at 01 April, 2021 
Changes in equity share capital during the year 
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 

Changes in etluity share capital during the year 
Balance as at 31st March 2023 

B. Other Equity 

For the year ended 31st March 2022 

Reserves & Surplus 

Particulars Capital 
General Retained 

Redemption 
Reserves Earnings 

Reserve 

Balance as at 1 April, 2021 - (76.25) -
Changes in accouncing policy or prior period errors - -

Balance as at 1 April, 2021 (Restated) - (76.25) -
Profit/ (Loss) for the year - (12.05) -
Other Comprehensive Income 

Total Comprehensive Income for the2.eriod - (12.05) -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 - (88.30) -

For the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Reserves & Surplus 

Particulars Capital 
General Retained 

Redemption 
Reserves Earnings 

Reserve 

Balance as at 1 April, 2022 - (88.30) -
Changes in accouncing policy or prior period errors - - -

Balance as at 1 April, 2022 (Restated) - (88.30) -
Profit/ (Loss) for the rear - (14.34) -
Other Comprehensive Income 
Total Comprehensive Income for the period - (14.34\ -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - (102.64) -

(Rs. in crore) 

Amount 
150.00 

-
150.00 

-
150.00 

(Rs. in crore) 

Other Comprehensive 
Income 

Exchange differences on Total 
translating the financial 
statement of a foreign 

operation 

- (76.25) 

- -
- (76.25) 

(12.05) 

-

- (12.05) 

- (88.30) 

(Rs. in crore) 

Other Comprehensive 
Income 

Exchange differences on Total 
translating the financial 
statement of a foreign 

operation 

- (88.30) 

- -
- (88.30) 
- (14.34) 

-
- (14.34) 

- (102.64) 

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For P:. R. Kumar & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

F"'nR~; 
(CA Deepak Snvastava) 

Partner 

M. No. 501615 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 12/05/2023 

UDIN: '2.2 SO (G,rS'(],~ 'I P-Toq (1 j 

(~Ahm'd) 
Di[~cto[ 

DIN-0~008553 

I!l~~ 
Chief Execucive Officer 

DIN-08190141 

~.6t 
Chief f'inancial Officer 
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1. Corporate Information 

Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited 
domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of companies Act 2013 applicable in 
India. The company came into existence when, Ircon International Limited has been awarded the 
work of 'Four Laning of Shivpuri - Guna Section of NH-3 from km 236.000 to km 332.100 (Stage -
1) in the state of Madhya Pradesh on DBFOT basis in accordance with the terms and conditions 
in the concession agreement by National Highway Authority of India (NHAI). In pursuance the 
provisions of 'Request for Proposal', the selected bidder 'Ircon International Limited' has formed a 
Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) named Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited (IrconSGTL) as wholly 
owned subsidiary and incorporated under Companies Act, 2013 on 12th May 2015. Accordingly, 
SPV has signed the Concession Agreement with NHAI on 15th June 2015. The concession period 
of 20 years commenced on 25th Jan 2016 i.e. AppOinted Date notified by the National Highway 
Authority of India. The registered office of the company located at C-4, District Centre, Saket, and 
New Delhi - 110017. 

The presentation and functional currency of the company is Indian Rupees (INR). Figures in 
financial statements are presented in crore, by rounding off upto two decimals except for per share 
data and as otherwise stated. 

2. Summary of Significant Policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

i. The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 3 of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and 
presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS 
compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the financial statements. 

ii. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following accrual 
system of accounting. The company has adopted the historical cost basis for assets and 
liabilities, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair 
value: 

• Provisions, where the effect of time value of money is material are measured at present 
value 

• Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value 

2.2 Current vs non-current classification 

i. The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current! non­
current classification. 

ii. An asset is treated as current when it is: 

1. Corporate Information 

Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited 
domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of companies Act 2013 applicable in 
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of 20 years commenced on 25th Jan 2016 i.e. AppOinted Date notified by the National Highway 
Authority of India . The registered office of the company located at C-4, District Centre, Saket, and 
New Delhi - 110017. 

The presentation and functional currency of the company is Indian Rupees (INR). Figures in 
financial statements are presented in crore, by rounding off upto two decimals except for per share 
data and as otherwise stated. 
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• Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

iii. The company classifies all other assets as non-current. 

iv. A liability is current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period 

v. The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

vi. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

vii. The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realization in cash and cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its 
operating cycle .. 

2.3 Statement of Cash Flow 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted 
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of 
the Company are segregated based on the available information. 

2.4. Property, Plant and Equipment 

i. Recognition and initial measurement 

• Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized when it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of each item 
can be measured reliably. Property, Plant and Equipment are initially stated at their 
cost. 

Cost of asset includes 

Purchase price, net of any trade discount and rebates. 

(a) Borrowing cost if capitalization criteria is met. 
(b) Cost directly attributable to the acqUisition of the assets which incurred in bringing 

asset to its working condition for the ~t~ndedys.e. 

~
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• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 
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vii. The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
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Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted 
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of 
the Company are segregated based on the available information . 
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i. Recognition and initial measurement 
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benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of each item 
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(c) Incidental expenditure during the construction period is capitalized as part of the 
indirect construction cost to the extent the expenditure is directly related to construction 
or is incidental thereto. 

(d) Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items & restoring 
the site on which it is located if recognition criteria are met. 

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. 

ii. Subsequent Measurement 

• Property, Plant and Equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to 
the company and cost of the expenditure can be measured reliably. 

• Cost of replacement, major inspection, repair of significant parts and borrowing costs 
for long-term construction projects are capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. 

• The machinery spares are capitalized if recognition criteria are met. 

iii. Depreciation and Useful lives 

• Depreciation on Property, plant and eqUipment, excluding freehold land and leasehold 
land acquired on perpetual lease is provided on straight line basis over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets as specified in schedule II of the Companies act, 2013. 

However, in case of certain class of assets, the Company uses different useful life than 
those prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. The useful life has been 
assessed based on technical evaluation, taking into account the nature of those 
classes of assets, the estimated usage of the asset on the basis of the management's 
best estimation of getting economic benefits from the asset. The estimated useful life 
as per the technical evaluation viz-a-viz Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 has 
been disclosed in the notes to accounts. 

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during the 
period is charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available 
for use/disposed. 

• Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if the 
cost of part is significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of that 
part is different from the useful life of remaining asset. Leasehold land acquired on 
perpetual lease is not amortized. 

• Property Plant and Equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to 
Rs. 5000/- are fully depreciated, by keeping Re. 1 as token value for identification. 
However, Mobile phones provided to employees are charged to statement of profit and 
loss irrespective of its value. 

• Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial 
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. "Ordinarily, the residual value of 
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ii. Subsequent Measurement 

• Property, Plant and Equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated 
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period is charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available 
for use/disposed. 

• Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if the 
cost of part is significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of that 
part is different from the useful life of remaining asset. Leasehold land acquired on 
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• Property Plant and Equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to 
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an asset is up to 5% of the original cost of the asset" as specified in Schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

iv. Derecognition 

• An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any significant part initially recognized 
is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from 
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated 
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset) is 'included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized. 

2.5 Capital work in progress 

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects and are carried 
at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any. 

2.6 Investment Properties 

i. Recognition and Initial Measurement 

• Investment Property is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the property will flow to the company and the cost of property can be 
measured reliably. 

• Investment property comprises completed property, property under construction and 
property held under a lease that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or 
both, rather than for sale in the ordinary course of business or for use in production or 
administrative functions. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including 
transaction costs. 

• Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of other 
consideration given to acquire an asset at the time of its acquisition or construction or, 
where applicable, the amount attributed to that asset when initially recognized in 
accordance with the specific requirements of other Ind AS. 

ii. Subsequent Measurement and Depreciation 

• Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment loss, if any. Subsequent cost is added if recognition criteria 
is met. The company depreciates building component of investment property on 
straight line basis over 60 years from the date of original purchase! completion of 
construction. Freehold land and property under construction is not depreciated . 

• Leasehold land acquired on perpetual lease is not amortized. 

• The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of investment property 
are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
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• Though the company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, 
the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair value determined 
based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent 
valuer applying valuation model acceptable internationally. 

iii. Derecognition 

Investment Properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The 
difference between the net disposal proceeds if any and the carrying amount of the asset is 
recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period of derecognition. 

2.7 Intangible Assets 

i. Recognition and Initial Measurement 

• Intangible Assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits 
that are attributable to the asset will flow to the company and cost of the asset can be 
measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial 
recognition at cost. The cost comprises purchase price. borrowing cost if capitalization 
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working 
condition for the intended use. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised 
development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in the 
statement of profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Intangible 
assets not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed 
as "Intangible assets underdevelopment" 

ii. Subsequent Measurement and Amortization 

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Software cost up to Rs. 1 Lakhs in each case is fully amortized 
in the period of purchase, by keeping Rs. 1 as token value for identification. 

• The cost of capitalized software is amortized over a period 36 months from the date of 
its acquisition. 

• Amortization on additions to/deductions from Intangible Assets during the period is 
charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for 
use/disposed 

• Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial 
year end. 

iii. Derecognition 

• An Intangible Asset shall be derecognized on disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de­
recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 

• Though the company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, 
the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair value determined 
based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent 
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accumulated impairment losses, if any. Software cost up to Rs. 1 Lakhs in each case is fully amortized 
in the period of purchase, by keeping Rs. 1 as token value for identification. 
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its acquisition. 

• Amortization on additions to/deductions from Intangible Assets during the period is 
charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for 
use/disposed 

• Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial 
year end. 

iii. Derecognition 

• An Intangible Asset shall be derecognized on disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de­
recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 
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disposal proceeds if any and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in 
the statement of profit or loss when the asset is de-recognised. 

iv. Toll Collection Right (Toll Road Service Concession Arrangement) 

a) In respect of Public to Private Arrangements (PPA), on a Built-Operate-Transfer (BOT) 

basis, Intangible Assets i.e. Right to coliect toli/tariff are recognised when the company 

has been granted rights to charge a toli/tariff from the users of such public services 

and such rights do not confer an unconditional right on the Group to receive cash or 

another Financial Asset and when it is probable that future economic benefits 

associated with the rights will flow to the company and the cost of the asset can be 

measured reliably. 

b) The company constructs or upgrades infrastructure (construction or upgrade services) 

used to provide a public service and operates and maintains that infrastructure 

(operation services) for a specified period of time. These arrangements may include 

infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire 

useful life. 

c) Under the Concession Agreements, where the company has received the right to 

charge users of the public service, such rights are recognised and classified as 

"Intangible Assets" in accordance with Appendix C to Ind AS 115 - Service Concession 

Arrangements. 

d) Such right is not an unconditional right to receive consideration because the amounts 

are contingent to the extent that the public uses the service and thus are recognised 

and classified as intangible assets. Such an intangible asset is recognised by the 

company at cost (which is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for 

the construction services delivered) and is capitalized when the project is complete in 

ali respects and when the company receives the completion certificate from the 

authority as specified in the Concession Agreement. 

e) An asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognised on disposal or when 

no future economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal. 

disposal proceeds if any and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in 
the statement of profit or loss when the asset is de-recognised. 

iv. Toll Collection Right (Toll Road Service Concession Arrangement) 

a) In respect of Public to Private Arrangements (PPA), on a Built-Operate-Transfer (BOT) 

basis, Intangible Assets i.e. Right to collect toll/tariff are recognised when the company 

has been granted rights to charge a toll/tariff from the users of such public services 

and such rights do not confer an unconditional right on the Group to receive cash or 

another Financial Asset and when it is probable that future economic benefits 

associated with the rights will flow to the company and the cost of the asset can be 

measured reliably. 

b) The company constructs or upgrades infrastructure (construction or upgrade services) 

used to provide a public service and operates and maintains that infrastructure 

(operation services) for a specified period of time. These arrangements may include 

infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire 

useful life. 

c) Under the Concession Agreements, where the company has received the right to 

charge users of the public service, such rights are recognised and classified as 

"Intangible Assets" in accordance with Appendix C to Ind AS 115 - Service Concession 

Arrangements. 

d) Such right is not an unconditional right to receive consideration because the amounts 

are contingent to the extent that the public uses the service and thus are recognised 

and classified as intangible assets. Such an intangible asset is recognised by the 

company at cost (which is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for 

the construction services delivered) and is capitalized when the project is complete in 

all respects and when the company receives the completion certificate from the 

authority as specified in the Concession Agreement. 

e) An asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognised on disposal or when 

no future economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal. 
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f) Service Concession Arrangements that meet the definition of an Intangible Asset are 

recognised at cumulative construction cost. Till completion of construction of the 

project, such arrangements are recognised as "Intangible Assets Under Development" 

and are recognised at cumulative construction cost. 

g) The estimated useful life of an intangible asset in a service concession arrangement 

is the period from where the company is able to charge the public for use of 

infrastructure to the end of the concession period. 

h) Toll collection right is amortized using straight line method on pro-rata basis from the 

date of addition or from the date when the right brought in to service to the expiry of 

concession period. 

i) Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date, with the 

effect of change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 

j) The carrying value of intangible asset is reviewed for impairment annually or more 

often if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be 

recoverable. 

2.8 Cash and cash Equivalent 

Cash and cash equivalent include cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term deposits with 
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted 
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above as they are considered an integral part of the 
Company's cash management. 

2.9 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities 

i. Provisions 

a) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognized as a 
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provIsion is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period , considering the risk and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. 

b) If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a 
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as a finance cost. 

c) Provisions recognised by the Company include provisions for Maintenance, 
Demobilization, Design Guarantee, Legal Cases, Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR), Onerous Contracts and others. 

ii. Onerous contracts 

a) An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs 
that the company cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations 
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The 
unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, 
which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising 
from failure to fulfil it. If the company has a contract that is onerous, the present 
obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision. However, 
before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the company 
recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract. 

b) These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates. 

iii. Contingent liabilities 

a) Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present 
obligations that may but probably will not, requ ire an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood 
of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or 
disclosure is made. 

b) These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimates. 

iv. Contingent assets 

Contingent assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic 
benefits is probable. 

provIsion is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, considering the risk and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. 

b) If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a 
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as a finance cost. 

c) Provisions recognised by the Company include provisions for Maintenance, 
Demobilization, Design Guarantee, Legal Cases, Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR), Onerous Contracts and others. 

ii. Onerous contracts 

a) An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (Le., the costs 
that the company cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations 
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The 
unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, 
which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising 
from failure to fulfil it. If the company has a contract that is onerous, the present 
obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision. However, 
before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the company 
recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract. 

b) These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates. 

iii. Contingent liabilities 

a) Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present 
obligations that may but probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood 
of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or 
disclosure is made. 

b) These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimates. 

iv. Contingent assets 

Contingent assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic 
benefits is probable. 
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2.10 Revenue Recognition 

i. The Company recognizes and measures revenue from construction in accordance with 

Ind AS -115"Revenue from Contracts with Customers". 

ii. Transaction price (it does not involve significant financing component) is the price which is 

contractually agreed with the customer for provision of services. Revenue is measured at the 

transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation and it excludes amounts 

collected on behalf of third parties i.e GST and is adjusted for variable considerations. 

iii. The nature of Company's contract gives rise to several types of variable consideration 

including escalation and liquidated damages. 

iv. Any subsequent change in the transaction price is then allocated to the performance 

obligations in the contract on the same basis as at contract inception. 

v. The Company recognizes revenue for variable consideration when it is probable that a 

significant reversal in the amount cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The company 

estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable consideration using the 

expected value or most likely amount method whichever is better predict the amount. 

vi. Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied performance obligation are recognised as 

revenue, or as a reduction of revenue, in the period in which the transaction price changes. 

vii. The company satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes the revenue overtime, if any 

of the following criteria is met: 

• The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the 

entity's performance as the entity perform. 

• The entity's performance creates or enhances an asset (for example. work in 

progress) that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced or 

• The entity's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the 

entity and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed 

to date. ' . 

2.10 Revenue Recognition 

i. The Company recognizes and measures revenue from construction in accordance with 

Ind AS -115"Revenue from Contracts with Customers". 

ii. Transaction price (it does not involve significant financing component) is the price which is 

contractually agreed with the customer for provision of services. Revenue is measured at the 

transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation and it excludes amounts 

collected on behalf of third parties i.e GST and is adjusted for variable considerations. 

iii. The nature of Company's contract gives rise to several types of variable consideration 

including escalation and liquidated damages. 

iv. Any subsequent change in the transaction price is then allocated to the performance 

obligations in the contract on the same basis as at contract inception. 

v. The Company recognizes revenue for variable consideration when it is probable that a 

significant reversal in the amount cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The company 

estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable consideration using the 

expected value or most likely amount method whichever is better predict the amount. 

vi. Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied performance obligation are recognised as 

revenue, or as a reduction of revenue, in the period in which the transaction price changes. 

vii. The company satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes the revenue overtime, if any 

of the following criteria is met: 

• The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the 

entity's performance as the entity perform. 

• The entity's performance creates or enhances an asset (for example, work in 

progress) that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced or 

• The entity's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the 

entity and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed 

to date. '. 
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viii. For performance obligation satisfied over time, the revenue recognition is done by measuring 

the progress, using percentage completion method, towards complete satisfaction of 

performance obligation. The progress is measured in terms of a proportion of actual cost 

incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation. 

ix. Performance obligation is measured by applying input method. In the contracts where 

performance obligation cannot be measured by input method, the output method is applied, 

which faithfully depict the Company's performance towards complete satisfaction of the 

performance obligation. 

x. Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved 

either to the contract scope or contract price. 

xi. The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added 

to the existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price. 

Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while 

those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if 

additional services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of existing 

contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price. 

xii. Contract balances 

• Contract assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods 

or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring 

goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before 

payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is 

conditional 

• Trade receivables: A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of 

consideration that is unconditional (i.e ., only the passage of time is required before 

payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets 

in section Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement. 

• Contract liabilities: A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services 
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to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of 

consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before 

the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is 

recognised when the payment is made, orthe payment is due (whichever is earlier). 

Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under 

the contract 

xiii. Revenue from toll collection 

The Company recognizes toil revenue as and when it collects at Transaction Price i.e usage fee. 

Which is exclusive of amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

xiv. Other income 

• Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. 

• Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate method. 

• Miscellaneous income is recognized when performance obligation is satisfied and 

right to receive the income is established as per terms of contract. 

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets 

i. At each reporting date, the company assesses, whether there is an indication that an asset may 

be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, 

the company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the 

higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value 

in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not 

generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. 

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is 

considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss, 

including impairment on inventories are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

ii. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 

and the risks specific to the asset. 

to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of 

consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before 

the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is 

recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). 

Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under 

the contract 

xiii. Revenue from toll collection 

The Company recogn izes toil revenue as and when it collects at Transaction Price i.e usage fee. 

Which is exclusive of amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

xiv. Other income 

• Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. 

• Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate method. 

• Miscellaneous income is recognized when performance obligation is satisfied and 

right to receive the income is established as per terms of contract. 

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets 

i. At each reporting date, the company assesses, whether there is an indication that an asset may 

be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, 

the company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the 

higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value 

in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not 

generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. 

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is 

considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss, 

including impairment on inventories are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

ii. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 

and the risks specific to the asset. 
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iii. For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether 

there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have 

decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable 

amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in 

the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss 

was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed 

its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 

depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior period. Such reversal 

is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

2.12 Inventories 

i. Inventories (including scrap) are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost 

includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 

inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on First in First out 

(FIFO) basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 

business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the 

sale. 

ii. Construction work-in-progress is valued at cost till such time the outcome of the job cannot be 

ascertained reliably and at lower of cost or realizable value thereafter. 

iii. The initial contract expenses on new projects for mobilization are recognized as construction 

work-in-progress in the year of incidence, and pro rata charged to statement of profit and loss 

of the project over the period at the same percentage as the stage of completion of the contract 

as at the end of reporting period. Site mobilization expenditure to the extent not written off 

valued at cost. 

iv. In Cost Plus contracts, where the cost of all materials, spares and stores not reimbursable as 

per the terms of the contract is shown as inventory valued as per (a) above. 

v. Loose tools are expensed in the period of purchase. 

2.13 Borrowing Cost 

iii. For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether 

there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have 

decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable 

amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in 

the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss 

was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed 

its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 

depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior period. Such reversal 

is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

2.12 Inventories 

i. Inventories (including scrap) are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost 

includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 

inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on First in First out 

(FIFO) basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 

business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the 

sale. 

ii. Construction work-in-progress is valued at cost till such time the outcome of the job cannot be 

ascertained reliably and at lower of cost or realizable value thereafter. 

iii. The initial contract expenses on new projects for mobilization are recognized as construction 

work-in-progress in the year of incidence, and pro rata charged to statement of profit and loss 

of the project over the period at the same percentage as the stage of completion of the contract 

as at the end of reporting period. Site mobilization expenditure to the extent not written off 

valued at cost. 

iv. In Cost Plus contracts, where the cost of all materials, spares and stores not reimbursable as 

per the terms of the contract is shown as inventory valued as per (a) above. 

v. Loose tools are expensed in the period of purchase. 

2.13 Borrowing Cost 
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Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the company incurs in connection with the 

borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 

of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale 

are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to statement of 

profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded 

as an adjustment to the borrowing costs . 

2.14 Employee Benefits 

i. Short Term Employee Benefits 

Employee benefits such as salaries, short term compensated absences, and Performance Related 

Pay (PRP) falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short­

term employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the statement of 

profit and loss in in the period in which the employee renders the related services. 

ii. Post-employment benefits & other Long Term Employee Benefits 

The post employee benefits & other long term Employee Benefits are provided by Ircon International 

Limited, the Holding Company, as the employees are on the deputation from the Holding Company. 

2.15 Leases 

The company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the 

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for 

consideration. 

i. Company as a lessee 

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short­

term leases and leases of low-value assets. The company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease 

payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the company incurs in connection with the 

borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 

of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale 

are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to statement of 

profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded 

as an adjustment to the borrowing costs . 

2.14 Employee Benefits 

i. Short Term Employee Benefits 

Employee benefits such as salaries, short term compensated absences, and Performance Related 

Pay (PRP) falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short­

term employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the statement of 

profit and loss in in the period in which the employee renders the related services. 

ii. Post-employment benefits & other Long Term Employee Benefits 

The post employee benefits & other long term Employee Benefits are provided by Ircon International 

Limited, the Holding Company, as the employees are on the deputation from the Holding Company. 

2.15 Leases 

The company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the 

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for 

consideration. 

i. Company as a lessee 

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short­

term leases and leases of low-value assets. The company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease 

payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. 
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A. Right-of-use assets 

• The company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease 

(i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are 

measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and 

adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets 

includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and 

lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives 

received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter 

of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold land acquired 

on perpetual lease is not amortized. 

• If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the company at the end of the lease term 
or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using 
the estimated useful life of the asset. 

• The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. 
• on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

• Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates 
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items 

recognised outside profit or loss, in which case is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other 

comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlyi 

B. Lease liabilities 

• At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognizes lease liabilities 

measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The 

lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less 

any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or 

a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease 

payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to 

be exercised by the company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if 

A. Right-at-use assets 

• The company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease 

(i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are 

measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and 

adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets 

includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and 

lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives 

received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter 

of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold land acquired 

on perpetual lease is not amortized. 

• If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the company at the end of the lease term 
or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using 
the estimated useful life of the asset. 

• The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. 
• on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

• Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates 
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items 

recognised outside profit or loss, in which case is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other 

comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlyi 

B. Lease liabilities 

• At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognizes lease liabilities 

measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term . The 

lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less 

any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or 

a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease 

payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to 

be exercised by the company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if 
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the lease term reflects the company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease 

payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless 

they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition 

that triggers the payment occurs. 

• In calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses its incremental 

borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in 

the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of 

lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease 

payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if 

there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments 

(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to 

determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to 

purchase the underlying asset. 

• The company's lease liabilities are included in financial liabilities. 

C. Short term lease and leases of low value assets 

• The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term 

leases contracts including lease of residential premises and offices (i.e., those leases 

that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not 

contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition 

exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. The 

Company furthe also treats those leases as low value, whose lease term may be over 

one year, but whose effect of non categorizing them as right to use assets and charging 

them over the lease term vis-a-vis accounting them as an expense on a year to year 

basis is not material. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value 

assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

• The company has given adjustments for lease accounting in accordance with Ind AS 

116 which came into effect on 1 April 2019, and all the related figures have been 

reclassified/ regrouped to give effect to the requirements of Ind AS 116. 

the lease term reflects the company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease 

payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless 

they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition 

that triggers the payment occurs. 

• In calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses its incremental 

borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in 

the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of 

lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease 

payments made. In addition , the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if 

there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments 

(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to 

determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to 

purchase the underlying asset. 

• The company's lease liabilities are included in financial liabilities. 

C. Short term lease and leases of low value assets 

• The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term 

leases contracts including lease of residential premises and offices (i.e., those leases 

that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not 

contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition 

exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. The 

Company furthe also treats those leases as low value, whose lease term may be over 

one year, but whose effect of non categorizing them as right to use assets and charging 

them over the lease term vis-a-vis accounting them as an expense on a year to year 

basis is not material. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value 

assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

• The company has given adjustments for lease accounting in accordance with Ind AS 

116 which came into effect on 1 April 2019, and all the related figures have been 

reclassified/ regrouped to give effect to the requirements of Ind AS 116. 
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ii. Company as a lessor 

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 

to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted 

for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of 

profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arrang ing 

an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the 

lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in 

the period in which they are earned. 

2.16 Current income tax 

• Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be 

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with relevant tax 

regulations. Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income 

for the period and is computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current 

income tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates 

to items recognised outside profit or loss in which case .it is recognized outside profit 

or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are 

recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to 

situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and 

establishes provisions where appropriate. 

• Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally 

enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the 

asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

2.17 Deferred tax 

• Deferred tax is provided using the liability method ng transaction either in oel or 

directly in equity. 

ii. Company as a lessor 

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 

to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted 

for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of 

profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arrang ing 

an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the 

lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in 

the period in which they are earned . 

2.16 Current income tax 

• Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be 

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with relevant tax 

regulations. Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income 

for the period and is computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current 

income tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates 

to items recognised outside profit or loss in which case it is recognized outside profit 

or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are 

recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to 

situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and 

establishes provisions where appropriate. 

• Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally 

enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the 

asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

2.17 Deferred tax 

• Deferred tax is provided using the liability method ng transaction either in oel or 

directly in equity. 
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• Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable 

profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the 

carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. 

• The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and 

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised 

deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the 

extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax 

asset to be recovered. 

2.18 Operating Segment 

Operating segments are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reporting provided by the 

chief operating decision maker (CODM). Company has identified only one reportable segment. 

2.19 Earnings per Share 

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity 

shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted 

average number of shares outstanding during the period 

In determining diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity sha reholders and 

weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all 

dilutive potential equity shares. 

2.20 Foreign Currencies 

i. Functional and Presentation Currency 

• Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary 

economic environment in which the entity operates ("the functional currency"). The financial 

statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also the functional and presentation currency 

of the company. 

ii. Transactions and Balances 

• Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable 

profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the 

carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. 

• The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and 

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised 

deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the 

extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax 

asset to be recovered. 

2.18 Operating Segment 

Operating segments are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reporting provided by the 

chief operating decision maker (CODM). Company has identified only one reportable segment. 

2.19 Earnings per Share 

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity 

shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted 

average number of shares outstanding during the period 

In determining diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity sha reholders and 

weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all 

dilutive potential equity shares. 

2.20 Foreign Currencies 

i. Functional and Presentation Currency 

• Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary 

economic environment in which the entity operates (lithe functional currency"). The financial 

statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also the functional and presentation currency 

of the company. 

ii. Transactions and Balances 
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• Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange 

rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 

• Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the reporting date are converted to functional 

currency using the closing rate (Closing selling rates for liabilities and closing buying rate for 

assets). Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost 

are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions. 

• Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items, or restatement as at reporting date, 

at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded , are recognized in the statement 

of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. These exchange differences are presented in 

the statement of profit and loss on net basis. 

2.21 Fair value measurement 

i. The company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period. 

ii. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 

liability takes place either: 

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

the principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company. 

iii. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their 

economic best interest. 

iv. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability 

to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to 

another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

• Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange 

rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 

• Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the reporting date are converted to functional 

currency using the closing rate (Closing selling rates for liabilities and closing buying rate for 

assets) . Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost 

are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions. 

• Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items, or restatement as at reporting date, 

at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement 

of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. These exchange differences are presented in 

the statement of profit and loss on net basis. 

2.21 Fair value measurement 

i. The company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period. 

ii. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 

liability takes place either: 

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

the principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company. 

iii. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their 

economic best interest. 

iv. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability 

to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to 

another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
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v. The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable 

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

vi. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 

are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level 

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

a) Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

b) Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

c) Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable 

vii. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 

Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re­

assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period . 

viii. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, if any. At each 

reporting date, the company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which 

are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the company's accounting policies. 

ix. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and 

liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level 

of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

x. Above is the summary of accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are 

given in the relevant notes. 

2.22 Dividend to equity holders 

v. The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable 

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 
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are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level 

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

a) Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

b) Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

c) Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable 

vii. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 

Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re­

assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

viii. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, if any. At each 

reporting date, the company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which 

are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the company's accounting policies. 

ix. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and 

liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level 

of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

x. Above is the summary of accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are 

given in the relevant notes. 

2.22 Dividend to equity holders 
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Annual Dividend distribution to the company's equity shareholders is recognized as liability in the 

period in which dividend is approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend is recognized as 

liability on approval by the Board of Directors. Dividend payable and corresponding tax on dividend 

distribution, if any is recognized directly in equity. 

2.23 Financial instruments 

• A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

i. Financial assets 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 

• All Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus or minus transaction cost that 

are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial 

assets at fair value through profit and loss). Transaction costs directly attributable to the 

acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 

recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss. 

b) Subsequent measurement 

• For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

A. Debt instruments at amortised cost 

• A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for 

collecting contractual cash flows, and 

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

• After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised 

cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method., Amortised cost is calculated by taking into 
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account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of 

the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses 

arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies 

to trade and other receivables. 

B. Debt instruments at FVTOCI 

• A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

a. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash 

flows and selling the financial assets, and 

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount 

outstanding. 

• Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at 

each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other 

comprehensive income (OCI). However, the company recognizes interest income, 

impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit 

and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in 

OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest eamed whilst 

holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income in statement of profit and 

loss using the EIR method. 

C. Debt instruments at FVTPL 

a) FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not 

meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at 

FVTPL. 

b) Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all 

changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

D. Equity instruments 
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the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses 
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outstanding. 
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and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in 

OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest eamed whilst 
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loss using the EIR method. 
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changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

D. Equity instruments 
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• All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity 

instruments which are held for trading classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity 

instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other 

comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The company makes such 

election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 

recognition and is irrevocable. 

• If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value 

changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no 

recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of 

investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

• Equity instruments included within the FVTPl category are measured at fair value with all 

changes recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. 

E. Impairment of financial assets 

• ECl is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in 

accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (Le., 

all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. 

• In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECl) model for 

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and 

credit risk exposure: 

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost 

e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance 

b. Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI 

c. lease receivables under Ind AS 116 

d. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial 

asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115 

e. loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPl 

f. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPl 

• All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity 

instruments which are held for trading classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity 

instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other 

comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The company makes such 

election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 

recognition and is irrevocable. 

• If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value 

changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no 

recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of 

investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

• Equity instruments included within the FVTPl category are measured at fair value with all 

changes recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. 

E. Impairment of financial assets 

• ECl is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in 

accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (Le. , 

all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. 

• In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECl) model for 

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and 

credit risk exposure: 

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost 

e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance 

b. Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI 

c. lease receivables under Ind AS 116 

d. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial 

asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115 

e. loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPl 

f. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPl 
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• The company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance 

on: 

a. Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and 

b. All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116 

• The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in 

credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime Eels at each 

reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

• For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the 

company determines that whether there has been a sig nificant increase in the credit risk 

since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month Eel is used 

to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime 

Eel is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that 

there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity 

reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month EeL. 

• Lifetime Eel are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over 

the expected life of a financial asset. The 12-month Eel is a portion of the lifetime Eel 

which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting 

date 

• Eel impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized 

as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the 

head 'other expenses' in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation 

for various financial instruments is described below: 

• Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and 

lease receivables: Eel is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the 

measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net 

carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not reduce 

impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

• The company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance 

on: 

a. Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and 

b. All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116 

• The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in 

credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime Eels at each 

reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

• For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the 

company determines that whether there has been a sig nificant increase in the credit risk 

since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month Eel is used 

to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime 

Eel is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that 

there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity 

reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month EeL. 

• Lifetime Eel are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over 

the expected life of a financial asset. The 12-month Eel is a portion of the lifetime Eel 

which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting 

date 

• Eel impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized 

as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the 

head 'other expenses' in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation 

for various financial instruments is described below: 

• Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and 

lease receivables: Eel is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the 

measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net 

carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not reduce 

impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 
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• loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECl is presented as a provision in 

the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability. 

• Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVOCI, the 

expected credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which 

remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the 

asset was measured at amortised cost is recognised in other comprehensive income as 

the 'accumulated impairment amount" 

• The company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial 

assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination. 

F. Derecognition of financial assets 

a) A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of 

similar financial assets) is derecognized only when the contractual rights to the cash flows 

from the asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and substantially all risks and 

rewards of the ownership of the asset. 

b) The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received / 

receivable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

ii. Financial liabilities 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 

• All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 

borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

• The company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, 

other financial liabilities etc. 

• loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECl is presented as a provision in 

the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability. 

• Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVOCI, the 

expected credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which 

remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the 

asset was measured at amortised cost is recognised in other comprehensive income as 

the 'accumulated impairment amount" 

• The company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial 

assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination. 

F. Derecognition of financial assets 

a) A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of 

similar financial assets) is derecognized only when the contractual rights to the cash flows 

from the asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and substantially all risks and 

rewards of the ownership of the asset. 

b} The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received / 

receivable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

ii. Financial liabilities 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 

• All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 

borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

• The company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, 

other financial liabilities etc. 
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• The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described 

below: 

a. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 

The company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL. 

b. Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

A. Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities 

• After initial recognition, Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 

recognised in statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well as 

through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 

any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 

EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

B. Derecognition of financial liabilities 

• A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 

cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 

same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 

substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition 

of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 

carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

iii. Financial guarantee contracts 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are those contracts that require a payment 

to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make 

a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee 

contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are 

• The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described 

below: 

a. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 

The company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL. 

b. Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

A. Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities 

• After initial recognition, Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 

recognised in statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well as 

through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 

any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 

EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

B. Derecognition of financial liabilities 

• A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 

cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 

same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 

substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition 

of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 

carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

iii. Financial guarantee contracts 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are those contracts that require a payment 

to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make 

a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee 

contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are 
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directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the 

higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 

and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. 

iv. Reclassification of financial assets 

The company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After 

initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and 

financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only 

if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business 

model are expected to be infrequent. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in 

the business model occurs when the company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that 

is significant to its operations. If the company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the 

reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately 

next reporting period following the change in business model. The company does not restate any 

previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest. 

v. Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance 

sheet if there is a currently enforceable contractual legal right to offset the recognised amounts and 

there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 

simultaneously. 

2.24 Non - current asset held for sale 

a) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying 

amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly 

probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is 

available for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn, 

and sale is expected within one year from the date of the classification. Disposal groups classified 

as held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. 

Property, plant and equipment, Investment property and intangible assets are not depreciated or 

amortized once classified as held for sale. Assets classified as held for sale/distribution are 

presented separately in the balance sheet. 
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initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and 

financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only 

if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business 

model are expected to be infrequent. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in 

the business model occurs when the company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that 

is significant to its operations. If the company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the 

reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately 

next reporting period following the change in business model. The company does not restate any 

previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest. 

v. Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance 

sheet if there is a currently enforceable contractual legal right to offset the recognised amounts and 

there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 

simultaneously. 
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a) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying 

amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly 

probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is 
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b) If the criteria stated by IND AS 105 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale" are no longer met, the 

disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale. Non-current asset that ceases to be 

classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of 

i. its carrying amount before the asset was classified as held for sale, adjusted for 

depreciation that would have been recognized had that asset not been classified as 

held for sale, and 

ii. its recoverable amount at the date when the disposal group ceases to be classified as 

held for sale. 

The depreciation reversal adjustment related property, plant and equipment, Investment property 

and intangible assets is charged to statement of profit and loss in the period when non-current assets 

held for sale criteria are no longer met. 

2.25 Prior Period Adjustment 

Errors/omissions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial and 

adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does not exceed 0.50% 

of total operating revenue as per last audited financial statement of the Company. 

2.26 Significant accounting estimates and judgments 

• The estimates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are continuously evaluated 

by the company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors 

(including expectations of future events), that thecompany believes to be reasonable under the 

existing circumstances. 

• The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that 

occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the 

reporting date. Although the company regularly assesses these estimates, actual results could 

differ materially from these estimates - even if the assumptions underlying such estimates were 

reasonable when made, if these results differ from historical experience or other assumptions do 

not turn out to be substantially accurate. The changes in estimates are recognized in the financial 

statements in the period in which they become known. 

b) If the criteria stated by IND AS 105 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale" are no longer met, the 

disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale. Non-current asset that ceases to be 

classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of 
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• The estimates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are continuously evaluated 

by the company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors 

(including expectations of future events), that thecompany believes to be reasonable under the 

existing circumstances. 

• The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that 

occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the 

reporting date. Although the company regularly assesses these estimates, actual results could 

differ materially from these estimates - even if the assumptions underlying such estimates were 

reasonable when made, if these results differ from historical experience or other assumptions do 

not turn out to be substantially accurate. The changes in estimates are recognized in the financial 

statements in the period in which they become known. 
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• The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 

reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Actual results could 

differ from these estimates. 

i. Allowances for uncollected trade receivables 

• Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by 

appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the receivables 

balances and historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management 

deems not be collectible. 

ii. Contingencies ' 

• In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims 

against the company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based 

on all available facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify reliably 

and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although there can 

be no assurance of the final outcome of legal proceedings in which the company is involved. it is 

not expected that such contingencies s will have material effect on its financial position of 

probability. 

iii. Impairment of financial assets 

• The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and 

expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting 

the inputs to the impairment calculation., based on the company's past history, existing market 

conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 

iv. Taxes 

• Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax 

laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business differences 

arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such 

• The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 

reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Actual results could 

differ from these estimates. 

i. Allowances for uncollected trade receivables 

• Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by 

appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the receivables 

balances and historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management 

deems not be collectible. 

ii. Contingencies ' 

• In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims 

against the company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based 

on all available facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify reliably 

and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although there can 

be no assurance of the final outcome of legal proceedings in which the company is involved. it is 

not expected that such contingencies s will have material effect on its financial position of 

probability. 

iii. Impairment of financial assets 

• The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and 

expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting 

the inputs to the impairment calculation., based on the company's past history, existing market 

conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 

iv. Taxes 

• Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax 

laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business differences 

arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such 
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assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. 

The company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such 

provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing 

interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such 

differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions 

prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies. 

• Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that 

taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management 

judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, 

based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning 

strategies. 

v. Impairment of non-financial assets 

• Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its 

recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. 

The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales 

transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices less 

incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. 

vi. Non-current asset held for sale 

• Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying 

amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly 

probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is available 

for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn, and sale is 

expected within one year from the date of the classification. 

vii. Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate 

• The company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its 

incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that 

the company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds 

assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. 

The company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such 

provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing 

interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such 

differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions 

prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies. 

• Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that 

taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management 

judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, 

based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning 

strategies. 

v. Impairment of non-financial assets 

• Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its 

recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. 

The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales 

transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices less 

incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. 

vi. Non-current asset held for sale 

• Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying 

amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly 

probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is available 

for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn, and sale is 

expected within one year from the date of the classification. 

vii. Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate 

• The company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its 

incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that 

the company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds 
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necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic 

environment. 

viii. Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options - company as 

Lessee 

• The company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with 

any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or 

any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be 

exercised. 

• The company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The company 

applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the 

option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an 

economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement 

date, the company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in 

circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option 

to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant 

customisation to the leased asset). 

ix. Revenue recognition 

• The company's revenue recognition policy, which is set out in Note 2.10, is central to how the 

company values the work it has carried out in each financial year. 

• These policies require forecasts to be made of the outcomes of Contracts, which require 

assessments and judgments to be made on changes in scope of work and claims and variations. 

• Estimates are also required with respect to the determination of stage of completion and estimation 

of project completion date: 

• Determination of stage of completion 

• Estimation of project completion date 

necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic 

environment. 

viii. Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options - company as 

Lessee 

• The company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with 

any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or 

any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be 

exercised. 

• The company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The company 

applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the 

option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an 

economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement 

date, the company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in 

circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option 

to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant 

customisation to the leased asset). 

ix. Revenue recognition 

• The company's revenue recognition policy, which is set out in Note 2.10, is central to how the 

company values the work it has carried out in each financial year. 

• These policies require forecasts to be made of the outcomes of Contracts, which require 

assessments and judgments to be made on changes in scope of work and claims and variations. 

• Estimates are also required with respect to the determination of stage of completion and estimation 

of project completion date: 

• Determination of stage of completion 

• Estimation of project completion date 
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• Provisions for foreseeable loses 

• Estimated total revenues and estimated total costs to completion, including claims and 

variations. 

• These are reviewed at each reporting date and adjust to reflect the current best estimates 

Revenue and costs in respect of contracts are recognized by reference to the stage of completion of 

the contract activity at the end of reporting period, measured based on proportion of contract costs 

incurred for work performed to the date relative to the estimated total contract costs, where this would 

not be representative of stage of completion. Variations in contract work and claims are included to 

the extent that amount can be measured reliably, and receipt is considered probable. When it is 

probable that contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognized as 

an expense immediately. 

• Provisions for foreseeable loses 

• Estimated total revenues and estimated total costs to completion, including claims and 

variations. 

• These are reviewed at each reporting date and adjust to reflect the current best estimates 

Revenue and costs in respect of contracts are recognized by reference to the stage of completion of 

the contract activity at the end of reporting period, measured based on proportion of contract costs 

incurred for work performed to the date relative to the estimated total contract costs, where this would 

not be representative of stage of completion. Variations in contract work and claims are included to 

the extent that amount can be measured reliably, and receipt is considered probable. When it is 

probable that contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognized as 

an expense immediately. 

150



IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

3 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Gross Carrying Amount (At Cost) 

At 31 March 2021 

Additions 

Disposals l Adjustments 

Exchange (Gain) / Loss 

At 31 March 2022 

At 1 April 2022 

Additions 

Disposals / Adjustments 

Exchange (Gain) / Loss 

At 31st March, 2023 

Depreciation and impairment 

At 31 March 2021 

Depreciation charge for the rear 

~ r: ' . lmpairmen[ 
\~ >-\. .~ r:~ .. O' I l Ad' 

''1~-\O'' ; lsposa S Justments 

: . ~.~. }. " Exchange (Gain) / Loss 

--- At 31 March 2022 

At 1 April 2022 

Oepreciatio n charge for the rear 

Impairment 

Oisposals l Adjustments 

Exchange (Gain) I Loss 

At 31st March, 2023 

Net book value 

At 31st March, 2023 

At 31 March 2022 

Plant & Machinery 

0.06 

0.06 

0.06 

0.06 

0.02 

0.007 

0.03 

0.03 

0.007 

0.034 

0.026 

0.03 

Computers Office Equipments Furniture & Fixtures 

0.10 0.04 0.03 

0.001 

0.10 0.04 0.03 

0.10 0.04 0.03 

0.0 1 

0.11 0.04 0.03 

0.10 0.012 0.003 

0.0 1 0.003 

0.10 0.02 0.006 

0.10 0.022 0.006 

0.009 0.003 

0.10 0.031 0.009 

0.008 0.01 0.021 

0.02 0.02 

Nul,..- :- a) 0111 of Ibe Ai.f,1J menliolled above, COlIl/'lIlen- . Vebid" alld PlolIl alld Machineryfor Rr 0.83 Crom (Gmss Blork) air ill Ib, lIome of Ibe bo/dillg compolI)" 

(in Rs. crore) 

Vehicles Total 

0.71 0.94 

0.001 

0.71 0.94 

0.71 0.94 

0.0 1 

0.71 0.95 

0.24 0.38 

O.OH 0. 10 

0.32 0.48 

0.32 0.48 

O.OH 0.10 

0.40 0.58 

0.31 0.37 

0.39 0.46 
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Foot Notes:-

i) Depreciation and impairment on Property, Plant & Equipment for the rear debited to Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows:-

Description 
For the year ended 31st For the year ended 

Mar 2023 31st Mar 2022 

Depreciation on Tangible Assets 0.10 0.11 

Impairment Loss - -
Total 0.10 0.11 

(ii) Depreciation is provided based on useful life supported br the technical evaluation considering business specific usage, the consumption pattern of the assets and the past performance of similar assets. 

Es timated useful life of assets arc as follows: 

U sefullives as per 
Useful life adopted based 

Class of Assets on technical evaluation 
Schedule II (in Years) 

(in years) 

Plant and Machinery 8 As per revised schedule II 

Computt.:rs :1 As per revised schedule II 

Oftice Equipment's S As per revised schedule I I 

Furniture and fixtures 10 As per revis ed schedule [[ 

Vehicles 8 As per revised schedule II 

.(~ 

~ 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

4 Intangible Assets 

Particulars 

Gross Block 

Opening balance at 1 April 2021 

Addition during the )'ear 

Capitalisation during the year 

Disposals / adjustment during the year 

Closing balance at 31 March 2022 

Addition during the year 

Capitalisation during the year 

Closing balance at 31st March 2023 

Amortisation and Impairment 

Closing balance at 31 March 2021 

Amortisation during the year 

Sales / adjustment during the year 

Closing balance at 31 March 2022 

Amortisation during the year 

Sales / adjustment during the year 

Closing balance at 31st March 2023 

Net book value 

At 31st March 2023 

At 31 March 2022 

Intangible assets under development 

Particulars 

As at Mar 31, 2023 

Projects in progress 

Projects temporarily suspended 

As at March 31, 2022 

Projects in progress 

Projects temporarily suspended 

Less than 1 
year 

7.81 

-

7.81 

20.69 
-

20.69 

Intangible assets 
under 

development 

20.69 

20.69 

33.08 

45.96 

7.81 

7.81 

20.69 

1-2 years 

-
-
-

-
-
-

Intangible Asset 
(Toll Road) 

(Refer Note 24) 

725.95 

725.95 

45.96 

771.91 

117.30 

41.45 

158.75 

42.46 

201.21 

570.70 

567.20 

2-3 years 

-
-

-

-

(in Rs. Crore) 

Other 
Intangibles 
(Software) 

More than 3 
years 

-
-

-

-

-
-

Rs in Crores 

Total 

7.81 
-

7.81 

20.69 
-

20.69 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

4 Intangible Assets 

Particulars 

Gross Block 

Opening balance at 1 April 2021 

/\ddition during the year 

Capitalisation during the year 

Disposals / adjustment during the year 

Closing balance at 31 March 2022 

Addition during the year 

Capitalisation during the year 

Closing balance at 31st March 2023 

Amortisation and Impairment 

Closing balance at 31 March 2021 

Amortisation during the year 

Sales / adjustment during the year 

Closing balance at 31 March 2022 

Amortisation during the year 

Sales / adjustment during the year 

Closing balance at 31st March 2023 

Net book v<llue 

At 31st March 2023 

At 31 March 2022 

Intangible assets under development 
Particulars 

As at Mar 31, 2023 
Projects in progress 
Projects temporarily suspended 

As at March 31, 2022 

Projects in progress 

Projects temporarily suspended 

Less than 1 
year 

7.81 

-

7.81 

20.69 

-
20.69 

Intangible assets 
under 

development 

20.69 

20 .69 

33.08 

45.96 

7.81 

7.81 

20.69 

1-2 years 

-
-
-

-
-
-

Intangible Asset 
(Toll Road) 

(Refer Note 24) 

725.95 

725.95 

45 .96 

771.91 

117.30 

41.45 

158.75 

42.46 

201 .21 

570.70 

567.20 

2-3 years 

-

-

-

-

(in Rs. Crore) 

Other 
Intangibles 
(Software) 

More than 3 
years 

-
-

-

-

-
-

Rs in Crores 

Total 

7.81 
-

7.81 

20.69 
-

20.69 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

5 Non-Current Assets - Other Financial Assets 

Particulars 

a) Considered Good: Unsecured 

Security Deposits 

- Government Departments 
- Others 

Contact Asset: 

- Retention Money with client 

- Money Withheld by Client 

Total- Other Financial Assets 

b) Considered Doubtful 
Total - Other Financial Assets - Doubtful 

Grand Total - Other Financial Assets 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.13 0.14 

0.13 0.14 

0.13 0.14 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

5 Non-Current Assets - Other Financial Assets 

P articulars 

a) Considered Good: Unsecured 

Security Deposits 

- Government Departments 
- Others 

Contact Asset: 

- Retention Money with client 

- Money Withheld by Client 

Total- Other Financial Assets 

b) Considered Doubtful 
Total - Other Financial Assets - Doubtful 

Grand Total - Other Financial Assets 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.13 0.14 

0.13 0.14 

0.13 0.14 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

6 Deferred Tax Assets and Income Tax 

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 "Income Taxes" 

(a) The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 and 31st March 2022 are: 

(Rs. in crore) 

S.No. Particulars I For the year ended 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

1 Profit and Loss Section 

Current income tax : 

Current income tax charge - -
Adjustment in respect of current tax of previous year -
Deferred tax: 

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences - -
Income tax expense reported in the Profit and Loss section - -

2 Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Section 

Income tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year: 

Net loss/ (gain) on remeasurements of deEmed benefit plans - -

Net loss / (~ain) on foreign operation rranslation -
Income tax expense reported in the OCI section - . 

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 and 31st March 22: 
(Rs. in crore) 

S.No. Particulars 
For the year ended 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Accounting profit before income tax (14.35) (12.06) 

2 Corporate tax rate as per Income tax Act, 1961 25.168% 25.168% 

3 Tax on Accounting profit (3) = (1) * (2) 

4 Effect of Tax Adjustments: 

(i) Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years 

(ii) Utilisation of previousl~' unrecogniseJ tax losses 
(iii) Impact of Rate Difference 

(iv) Tax on Income exempt from tax 
(v) Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes: 

-Other country additional tax 

-Other non-deductible expenses 

(vi) Tax effect of various other items 
5 

Income tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

6 Effective Tax Rate ~~ \ 0 J~ ' 
~"'7,y_ .. ...... ') 

tt. \ ' ;jJJ:":C 
~,~ . 0 (c) Components of deferred tax assets and (liabilities) recognised in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit or Loss 

(Rs. in crore) 

Balance sheet as at Statement of profit or loss for the year 
S.No. Particulars ended 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 
1 Property, Plant & Eguipmcnt (including intangible): Diffcn.:ncc in book 

depreciation and income tax depreciation "" (91.49) (114.80) 6.69 9.07 

2 Provisions 14.73 11 .04 (6.69) (5.40) 
3 Others"" 76.76 76.76 (3.67) 
4 Trems disallowed u/s 43B of Income Tax Act. 1961 - - -

'1--. --'(, I-
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

6 Deferred Tax Assets and Income Tax 

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 "Income Taxes" 

(a) The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 and 31st March 2022 are: 

(Rs. in crore) 

S.No. Particulars I For the year ended 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

1 Profit and Loss Section 

Current income tax: 

Current income tax charge - -
Adjustment in respect of current tax of previous year -
Deferred tax : 

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences -
Income tax expense reported in the Profit and Loss section - -

2 Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Section 

Income tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year: 

Net loss/ u,>ai n) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans - -

Net loss/ (~ain) on foreign operation translation -
Income tax expense reported in the OCI section - -

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 and 31st March 22: 
(Rs. in crore) 

S.No. Particulars 
For the year ended 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

I Accounting profit before income tax (14.35) (12.06) 

2 Corporate tax rate as per Income tax Act, 1961 25.168% 25.168% 

3 Tax on Accounting profit (3) :::: (1) * (2) - -

4 Effect of Tax Adjustments: 

(i) Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years - -

(ii) Utilisation of previousl~' unrecognised tax losses - -

(iii) Impact of Rate Difference -

(iv) Tax on Income exempt from tax -

(v) Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes: 

-Other country additional tax -
-Other non-deductible expenses - -

(vi) Tax effect of various other items 
5 

Income tax expense reponed in the Statement of Profit and Loss - -
6 Effective Tax Rate 

(c) Components of deferred tax assets and (liabilities) recognised in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit or Loss 

(Rs. in crore) 

Balance sheet as at Statement of profit or loss for the year 
S.No. Particulars ended 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 
I Property, Plant & Eguipmcnt (including intangible): Difference in book 

depreciation and income tax depreciation "" (91 .49) (114.110) 6.69 9.07 

2 Provisions 14.73 11 .04 (6.69) (5.40) 
3 Others"" 76.76 76.76 - (3.67) 
4 T tems disallowed 1I / S 43B of Income Tax Act. 1961 - - - -
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5 Impact of expenditure chatged to the statement of pro fi t and loss in the 
current year and earlier years but allowable for tax purposes on payment 
basis 

6 Fair valuation of financial instruments 

7 Unutilised gain/ loss on FVTOeI equity securities and FVTPL Mutual 
funds 

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 0.00 

AA Deftrred Tax .r1ssels misiJJg all nccou"t of Business lossn alld prollilioll! bas beelJ restridcd 10 Ibe Difel1"1!d Tax Ullbilit.y arising/rom PPE oud Intaugible Assets as (/ "'nller of C0l1se17l11lislJI. Deferred T(L~ 
(wei of Rs 9.49 Crores bas 1101 beell recogllised as a molter of pmt!ence, ill lille IINib ACCOlllllillg poliO' 2. , 7 

(d) Reflected in the balance sheet as follows: 

(Rs. in crore) 

S.No. Particulars 31 March 2023 I 31 March 2022 

1 Deferred tax assets 91.49 84.80 

2 Deferred tax liability (91.49) I (84.80) 

D eferred T ax Asset/(Liabilities) (Net) - -

Note: Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset as the)' relate to the same governing laws. 

(e) Reconciliation of deferred tax (liabilities)/asse ts: 

As at 31st Mar 2023 (Rs. in crore) 

N et balance 
Recognised in 

.. Net balance 
S.No. P articulars 

As at 1st April 2022 
statement of profit lecogrused In OC A 31 M 2023 

and loss 
sat st ar, 

Propert)" Plant & Equipment (including intangible): Difference in book 
I depreciation and income tax depreciation (84.80) 6.69 - (91.49) 

2 Provisions 8.04 (6.69) - 14.73 

3 Others 76.76 - 76.76 

4 Items disa llo\Ved u/ s 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961 - -
5 Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the 

current year and earlier years but allowable for tax purposes on payment - - - -
basis 

6 fair valuation of financia l instruments - - - -
7 Unutilised gain/loss on rVTOCl equity securities and rVTPL Ivlutual 

- - -
funds 

N et deferred tax asse ts / (li abili ties) - 0.00 

As a t 31st March 2022 (Rs. in crote) 

Net balance 
Recognised in Net balance 

S.No. P articulars 
As a t 1st April 2021 

statement of profit lecognised in OC As a t 31st March 
and loss 2022 

Property, Plant & Equipment (including intangible): Difference in book 
(75.73) 9.07 (84.80) 

depreciation and income tax depreciation 

2 Provisions 2.64 (5.40) 8.04 

3 Others 73.09 (3.67) 76.76 

4 Items disaUowed u/ s 43B o f Income Tax Act, 1961 
5 Impact of expenditure charged to the Sta tement of pro fit and loss in the 

current year and earlier years but allowable for tax purposes on payment 
basis 

6 Fair valuation of financial instruments 

7 Unutilised gain / loss on FVTOCI equity securities and FVTPL Mutual 
funds 

Net deferred tax assets/ (liabili ties) (0.00) 
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7 Other Non-Current Assets 

Particulars 

a) Capital Advances 

Capital Advance for Creation of Intangible Asset ( Stage II of 
Toll Road) 

Total - Capital Advances 
Considered Good: Unsecured 

Total 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

3.20 

3.20 

3.20 

3.20 

(Rs. in crore) 

As at 31st Mar, 2022 

13.37 

13.37 
13.37 

13.37 
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7 Other Non-Current Assets 

Particulars 

a) Capital Advances 

Capital Advance for Creation of Intangible Asset ( Stage II of 
Toll Road) 

Total- Capital Advances 
Considered Good: Unsecured 

Total 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

3.20 

3.20 

3.20 

3.20 

(Rs. in crore) 

As at 31st Mar, 2022 

13.37 

13.37 
13.37 

13.37 
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8.1 Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables 
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Particulars 

Unsecured considered good (Refer Note 34C) 

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 

Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) 

Unsecured. considered good 
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit Risk 

Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Total 

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule 

Particulars 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Total 
Less :Impairment Allowances (Refer note 14) 

Net Trade Receivables 

Particulars 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Total 

Less: Impairment Allowances 

Net Trade Receivables 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st M ar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.66 0.63 

(0.11 ) (0. 11) 

0.55 0.52 

Unbilled Not Due 

Unbilled Not Due 

Outstanding for the year ended Mar 31, 2023 from the due date of payment Total I 

Less than 6 
6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 

More than 3 
(Rs. in Crore) 

months years 

0.55 0.06 0.05 0.66 

-
-
-

-
-

0.55 - 0.06 0.05 - 0.66 

(0.06 (0.05) (0.11) 

0.55 - - 0.55 

Outstanding for the year ended Mar 31, 2022 from the due date of payment Total 

Less than 6 
6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 

More than 3 
(Rs. in Crore) 

months years 

0.52 0.06 0.05 0.63 

-
-

-
-

0.52 0.06 0.05 - - 0.63 

(0.06) (0.05) (0.11) 

0.52 - - - 0.52 
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8.1 Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables 
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Particulars 

Unsecured co nsidered good (Refer Note 34C) 

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 

Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
Impairm ent Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) 

Unsecured. considered good 
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit Risk 

Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Total 

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule 

Particulars 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
(i ii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have Significant increase in 
credit risk 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Total 
Less :Impairment Allowances (Refer note 14) 

Net Trade Receivables 

Particulars 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 
(ii) Undispu ted Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Total 

Less: Impairment Allowances 

Net Trade Receivables 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st M ar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.66 0.63 

(0.11 ) (0.11) 

0.55 0.52 

Unbilled Not Due 

Unbilled Not Due 

Outstanding for the year ended Mar 31 , 2023 from the due date of payment Total 

Less than 6 
6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 

More than 3 
(Rs. in Crore) 

months years 

0.55 0.06 0.05 0.66 

-
-
-

-
-

0.55 0.06 0.05 - 0.66 

jO.06 (0.05) {0.11 

0.55 - - 0.55 

Outstanding for the year ended Mar 31, 2022 from the due date of payment Total 

Less than 6 
6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 

More than 3 
(Rs. in Crore) 

months years 

0.52 0.06 0.05 0.63 

-

-

-
-

0.52 0.06 0.05 - - 0.63 

(0.06) (0.05) (0.11) 

0.52 - - - - 0.52 
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8.2 Current Financial Assets - Cash and Cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Cash on hand 

Balances }}Jith banks:* 

- On current accounts 

- Flexi Accounts 

- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

1.00 

59.73 

60.73 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.06 

1.53 

1.59 

* The above balance of Rs 60.73 Crom (previow )lear Rr 1.59 crore.r), pertain to ESCRO IV A/ C }}Jhic/J are eCir IIIClrk flmd CiS per 
concession agreemCllt elltered }}Jitb NHAI. Out of this, Iv 10 D'ores ( Previous )leal' N IL) has been earmCllked as Lien for IvJajor 
LVIaintenallce reserve Clccount as per terms of Loan Agreemellt }}litiJ S BI. 
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8.2 Current Financial Assets - Cash and Cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Cash on hand 

Balances )IJith bal1ks:* 

- On current accounts 

- Flexi Accounts 

- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

1.00 

59.73 

60.73 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.06 

1.53 

1.59 

* Tbe above balal1ce of Rs 60.73 Crom (previollJ )lear Rr 1.59 crore.r), pertail1 to ESCRO IV' A/ C ]JJiJic/J are ear mark fimd as per 
concessioll agree1l2ellt elltered ]JJitb NHAI. Ollt of tbis) Rs 10 CJ'ores ( heviotfs )leal' N IL) bas been eC/17l'Jalked as Lien for IVlajor 
l\IJ.aintenallce reserve account as per terms if Loall AgreeJ7Jm/ ]JJitb S BI. 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

8.3 Current Financial Assets - Loans 

Particulars 

A. Considered Good: Secured 

Staff Loans and Advances 

Total (A) - Considered Good: Secured 

A. Unsecured. considered good 

(i) Others: 
Staff Loans & Advances 

Total (B) - Considered Good: Unsecured 

Total 

8.4 Current Assets - Other Financial Assets 

Particulars 

A. Unsecured, considered good 

Interest Accrued on : 
- Advance to Staff 
- Deposits with Banks/Flexi Deposit 

Other Recoverable 

Total - Other Financial Assets - Good 

B) Considered Doubtful 

Total - Other Financial Assets - Doubtful 

Grand Total - Other Financial Others 

Details of amount due from Directors' , 

Particulars 

Amount due from directors included in interest accrued on staff 
loans and advances 

Total 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

As at 

1.41 
0.01 

1.42 

1.42 

31st Mar 2023 

-

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

(in Rs Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

-

160



9 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

Current Assets - Current Tax Assets (Net) 

Particulars 

Taxes Paid including TDS & Advance Tax (Net of Provision for 
Tax) 

Current tax Assets (Net) 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

0.30 

0.30 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.10 

0.10 

9 
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Current Assets - Current Tax Assets (Net) 

Particulars 

Taxes Paid including TDS & Advance Tax (Net of Provision for 
Tax) 

Current tax Assets (Net) 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

0.30 

0.30 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.10 

0.10 
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10 Other Current Assets 

Particulars 

Considered Good: Unsecured 

a) Advances Other than Capital Advances 

- Goods & Services Tax 

Prepaid Expenses 

Total - Others 

b) Considered Doubtful 

Less: Impairment allowance for doubtful advances 

Total- Considered Doubtful 

Grand Total 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

0.12 

0.12 

0.24 

0.24 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.21 

0.14 

0.35 

0.35 
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10 Other Current Assets 

Particulars 

Considered Good : Unsecured 

a) Advances Other than Capital Advances 

- Goods & Services Tax 

Prepaid Expenses 

Total - Others 

b) Considered Doubtful 

Less: Impairment allowance for doubtful advances 

Total- Considered Doubtful 

Grand Total 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

0.12 

0.12 

0.24 

0.24 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.21 

0.14 

0.35 

0.35 
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11 Equity Share capital 

Particulars 

Authorised share capital 
15,00,00,000 Equit), shares of Rs.IO each 

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up Capital 
15,00,00,000 Equity ~hares of R~ 10 each-fully paid 

Promoter's shareholding 

As at 31st Mar 
2023 

15(J.(JO 

150.00 

150.00 

150.00 

(in Rs. crore) 

As at 31st Mar 
2022 

ISO.ClO 
150.00 

150.00 

150.00 

Particulars Shares held by Promoter at the end of the period I year % change 
during the 

S.No Promoter Name No. of shares % of total shares period I year 

As at 31st Mar 2023 Ircon International Limited- Holding 
1 Company ( IRCON) 

15,00,00,000 100.00% NA 

Particulars Shares held by Promoter at the end of the period I year % change 

S.No Promoter Name 
No. of shares 

As at 31st Mar 2022 1 
Ircon International Limited- Holding 

15,00,00.000 
Company ( IRCON) 

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company 

Name of the shareholder 

ircon Intemational Limited- Holding Company ( 
IRCON) 

Details of shareholders holding in the company 

Name of the shareholder 

As 'It 31st Mar 2023 

No. of Share 

15,00,00,000 

<y., holding in the 
class 

100,00% 

hcon International Limited- Holding Company ( lRCON) 

Total 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

No. of Share 

15.00,00,000 

'X, holding in the 
class 

100.00% 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

No. of Share % holding in the 
class 

15,00,00,000 100.00 

15,00,00,000 100.00 

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and share capital oUlstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 

Particulars 
As at 31st Mar 2023 

No ofshares Rs in crore 

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up eguit), Capital outstanding at the beginning of the rear 15,00,00,000 150.00 

Add: Shares Issued during the ycar -

Less: Shares Buy Back during the year 

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equit), Capital outstanding at the end of the year 15,00,00,000 150.00 

during the 

% of total shares period I year 

100.00% NA 

As at 31 st March 2021 

No, of Share % holding in the 
class 

15,00,00,000 100.00% 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

N f 5h % holding in the 
o. 0 are class 

15,00,00,000 100.00 

15,00,00,000 100.00 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

No of shares Rs in crore 

15,00,00,000 150.00 

-

-

15,00,00,000 150.00 
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11 Equity Share capital 

Particulars 

Authorised share capital 
15,00,00,000 Equit)· shares of Rs.IO each 

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up Capital 
15,00,00,000 Equity ~hares of R~ 10 each-fully paid 

Promoter's shareholding 

As at 31st Mar 
2023 

150.00 
150.00 

150.00 

150.00 

Wfftl 
(in Rs. crore) 

As at 31st Mar 
2022 

ISO.ClO 
150.00 

150.00 

150.00 

Particulars Shares held by Promoter at the end of the period I year % change 
during the 

S .No Promoter Name No. of shares % of total shares period I year 

As at 31st Mar 2023 Ircon International Limited- Holding 
1 

Company ( IRCON) 
15,00,00,000 100.00% NA 

Particulars Shares held by Promoter at the end of the period I year % change 

S.No Promoter Name 
No. of shares 

As at 31st Mar 2022 1 
Ircon International Limited- Holding 

15,00.00,000 
Company ( IRCON) 

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company 

Name of the shareholder 

Ireol1 Intemational Limited- Holding Company ( 
IRCON) 

Details of shareholders holding in the company 

Name of the shareholder 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

No, of Share 

15,00,00,000 

<y., holding in the 
ctass 

100,00% 

!rcon International Limitcd- Holding Company ( IRCON) 

Total 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

No. of Share 

15.00.00,000 

'X, holding in the 
class 

100.00% 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

No. of Share % holding in the 
class 

15,00,00,000 100.00 

15,00,00,000 100.00 

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and share capital outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 

Particulars 
As at 31st Mar 2023 

No of shares Rs in crore 

Issued / Subscribed and Paid up equit), Capital oUlsranding at the beginning of the year 15,00,00,000 150.00 

Add: Shares Issued during the ycar -

Less: Shares Buy Back during the year 

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equit), Capital outstanding at the end of the year 15,00,00,000 150.00 

.' 

during the 

% of total shares period I year 

100.00% NA 

As at 31 st March 2021 

No, of Share % holding in the 
class 

15,00,00,000 100.00% 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

N f Sh % holding in the 
o. 0 are class 

15,00,00,000 100.00 

15,00,00,000 100.00 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

No of shares Rs in crore 

15,00,00,000 150.00 

-

15,00,00,000 150.00 
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12 Other Equity 

Particulars 

Retained Earnings 

General Reserve 

Capital Redemption Reserve 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Total 

Movement as per below: 
Retained Earnings 
Opening Balance 

Add: Transfer from surplus in statement of profit and loss 

Closing Balance 

Grand Total 

Nature and Purpose of Other Reserves: 

Retained Earnings 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022 

(102.64) (88.30) 

(102.64) 

(88.30) 

(14.34) 

(102.64) 

(102.64) 

(88.30) 

(76.25) 

(12.05) 

(88.30) 

(88.30) 

Retained Earnings represents the undistributed profits of the Company. 
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12 Other Equity 

Particulars 

Retained Earnings 

General Reserve 

Capital Redemption Reserve 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Total 

Movement as per below: 

Retained Earnings 

Opening Balance 
Add: Transfer from surplus in statement of profit and loss 

Closing Balance 

Grand Total 

Nature and Purpose of Other Reserves: 

Retained Earnings 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022 

(102.64) (88.30) 

(102.64) 

(88.30) 
(14.34) 

(102.64) 

(102.64) 

(88.30) 

(76.25) 
(12.05) 

(88.30) 

(88.30) 

Retained Earnings represents the undistributed profits of the Com pan)'. 

t.:, .'. 
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13 Non-Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities 

13.1 Non-Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings 

P a rticulars 

Secured: 

(a) Loan from State Bank of India ( Refer note below and note 15.1) 

Total 

Notes: 

(in Rs. Crore) (in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st M ar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

488.78 493.06 

488.78 493.06 

(a) Terms & Conditions 

i) t\ Term Loan from State Hank of India was taken in i\Iarch 2()22 by Loan agreement dated 17th February 2022 for Rs 501 crores. The opening balance as on 1-4 
22 was for Rs 499.86 crores . Our of this amount Rs 6.80 Crores was paid during the year Financial year 2022-23. Out of the closing balancet of Rs 49."1.06 crores as 
on 31 st March 2023, Rs 4.28 erores has been shown as current maturities of the Loan under Horrowings - Current( Refer Note 15.1) 

ii) Interest Terms 
The Applicable Interest rate is base rate of SBI 3 month MCLR plus spread of 0.25'10, w.e.f 28.0."1.2022. 

iii) Terms of Repayment 

Term Loan shall be repaid in 11 .5 years upto 30.09.2033, in quartcrly instalments as pcr rhe schedule mentioned in rhe I.oan agreeme nt. 

As per clause 12 of the Loan agreement, the securities for the Loan extended are mentioned in brief as uncleI' : 
(a) first charge on all the Borrower's tangible movable assets pertaining to the Project; 

(b) a first charge ove r all accounts of the Borrower pertaining to the Project including the Escrow Accounts and the sub-accounts (or any account in substitution 
thereof) or any other bank account that may be opened in accordance with this Agreement ; 

(c) a first charge on all intangibles assets pertaining to the Pwject including but not limited to goodwill, rights, undertaking and uncalled capital present and future; 
(d) Assignment/Charge b)" wa)" of Security in the following, both present and future: 
(i) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in the Project Documents; 
(ii) the right, title and interest of the Borrower in, to ,nd under all the Clearances; 

(iii) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in any letter of credit, guarantee including contractor guarantees and liquidated 
dam'ges and performance bond provided by 'ny party to the Borrower pursuant to the Project Documents; 
(iv) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borruwer under all Insurance Cumrac ts pertaining to the Project; 

(d) An unconditional corporate guarantee by the promoter in favour of the Security trustee and 'n irrevocab le and unconditional undertaking from the Promoter, to 
cover any shortfall in the loan and other conditions as mentioned in the Loan agreement dared 17.02.2022 

(e) The Company is not at default of either repayment of the loan or interest payment on the loans as on the Balance Sheet Date. 

(f) Rs 10 Crores h,s been earmarked as Lien for Major Maintenance reserve account as per terms of Loan Agreement with SRI 

13.2 Other Financial Liability 

(in Rs . crore) 

Particulars As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

Deposits and Retention money 0.03 0.03 

Total 0.03 0.03 
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13 Non-Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities 

13.1 Non-Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings 

Particulars 

Secured: 

Ca) Loan from State Bank of India ( Refer note below and note 15.1) 

Total 

Notes : 

(in Rs. Crore) (in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2023 As a t 31st Mar 2022 

488.78 493.06 

488.78 493.06 

(a) Terms & Conditions 

i) t\ Term Loan from State Bank of India was taken in i\Iarch 2()22 by Loan agreemen t dated 17th February 2022 for Rs SOl crores. The opening balance as on 1-4 
22 was for Rs 499.86 crores . Out of this amount Rs 6.80 Crores was paid during the year Financial year 2022-23. Out of the closing balancet of Rs 49.'l.06 crOres as 
on 31st March 2023, Rs 4.28 etOres ha" been "hown as current maturitie" of the Loan under Borrowings - Currem( Refer Note 15.1) 

ii) Interest Terms 
The Applicable Interest rate is base rate of SBI 3 month MCLR plus spread of 0.25'10, \V.e.f 28.0.'l.2022. 

iii) Terms of Repayment 
Term Loan shall be repaid in 11 .5 years upro .10.09.2033, in quarterly instalments as per the schedule mentioned in the) .oan agreement. 

As per clause 12 of the Loan agreement, the securities for the Loan extended are mentioned in brief as under: 
(a) first charge on all the Borrower's tangible movab le assets pertaining to the Project; 

(b) a first charge over all accounts of the Borrower pertaining to the Project including the Escrow Account" and the sub-account" (or any account in substitution 
thereof) or any other bank account that may be opened in accordance with this Agreement ; 

(c) a fim charge on all intangibles assets pertaining to the Pwjcct including but not limited to goodwill, rigb ts, undertaking and uncalled capital present and future; 
(d) Assignment/Charge b)' wa)' of Security in the followin):, both present and future: 
(i) all the tight, ririe, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in the Project Documents; 
(ii) the right, tirle and interest of the Borrower in, to ,nd under ,U the Clearances; 

(iii) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in an)' letter of credit, guarantee including contractor guarantees and liquidated 
damages and performance bond provided by 'n)' party to the Borrower pursuant to the Project Documents; 
(iv) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and (lemonds whatsoever of the B(lfJ'()wer under all Insurance Contracts pertaining to the Projecc; 

(d) An unconditional corporate guarantee b), the promoter in fa vour of the Seeurit), trustee and an irrevocab le and unconditional undertaking from the Promoter, to 

cover an)' shortfall in the loan and other conditions as mentioned in the Loan agreement dated 17.02.2022 

(e) The Company is not at default of either repayment of the loan or inter:est pa),l11ent on the loans as on the Balance Sheet Date. 

(f) Rs 10 Crores h" been earmarked as Lien for Major Maintenance reserve account as per terms of Loan Agreement with SBI 

13.2 Other Financial Liability 

(in Rs. crore) 

Particulars As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

Deposits and Retention money 0.03 0.03 

Total 0.03 0.03 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

14 Provisions (in Rs. crore) 

Particulars Foot Note As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

Provision for scheduled major maintenance of Toll Road 14.1 65.50 23.14 

65.50 23.14 

Current 65.50 

Non Current 23.14 

The disclosure of provisions movement as required under the requirements of Ind AS 37 is as follows: 

14.1 Other Provisions: 

Particulars 

As at 01-April-2022 

Non Current 

Provision made during the year for scheduled major 
maintenance"" 

Less: Utilization during the year 

Less: Write Back during the year 

Unwinding of discount 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

Current 

Non Current 

Maintenance 

23.14 

38.96 

3.40 

65.50 

65.50 

(in Rs. crore) 

Total 

23.14 

38.96 

3.40 

65.50 

65.50 

The Compm!)1 has a contmctl/al obligation to maintain, replace or restore infrastmctNl"ll , ext'ept for {If!} enhancement elelllef/t. Cost of sllch obligation is 
measured at the best estimate of the expenditure J"(ltjllil"lld to settle tbe obligation at tbe balance sheet d(/tf alld /"Iil'oglliJed Oller the period at the fIId of II/bicb 
olJellCljI is estimated to be canied out. Tbe estimate for lIIajor lIIaintMance is dam 0 tbe N[anc~gl'll/et/t and is relliewed Ji'om tillle to time baJed on updated data 
and reports available frOlll tbe Tolf Road Site. 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

14 Provisions (in Rs. crore) 

Particulars Foot Note As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

Provision for scheduled major maintenance of Toll Road 14.1 05.50 23.14 

65.50 23.14 

Current 65.50 

Non Current 23.14 

The disclosure of provisions movement as required under the requirements of Ind AS 37 is as follows: 

14.1 Other Provisions: 

Particulars 

As at 01-April-2022 

Non Current 

Provision made during the year for scheduled major 
maintenance"" 

Less: Utilization during the year 

Less: Write Back during the year 

Unwinding of discount 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

Current 

Non Current 

Maintenance 

23.14 

38.96 

3.40 

65.50 

65.50 

(in Rs. crore) 

Total 

23.14 

38.96 

3.40 

65.50 

65.50 

Tbe COlllpml)1 has a contmctllal obligation to maintain} replace. or restore in/rastmctNre } ext'ept for (It!} enbancement elellletlt. Cost of sllch obligation is 
lIIeasured at the best estimate of the expenditllre reqllired to settle tbe obligation al Ibe balance sheet date alld ruogllised Ol}p.r Ibe period al Ihe. md of JI}bicb 
overllljl is eslimaled to be cal7ied out. The eslimate for 1//ajor mainlmance is dom 0 tbe !V[anagl'll/et/t and is repiewed ./rom time 10 lillie based on updal/!d data 
and reports availab/e ./rom the Tolf Road Sile. 
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mCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities 

15.1 Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings 

Particulars 

Current Maturity of Long term Borrowings ( Refer note no. 13 .1) 

Total 

15.2 Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables 

Particulars 

Micro, Small & J\'fedium Emerprises 
Other than Micro, Small & Medium Emerpri,es 

(a) Comracror & Suppliers 
(b) Related Parties 

Total 

Notes: 

WGJ!i 
(in Rs . Crore) (in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

4.28 6.S0 

4.28 6.80 

(in Rs . Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

0.01 
:l2.11 6.40 

32.11 6.41 

aJ Disclosures as re'luired under Companies Acr. 20 13 / Micro, Small anJ Medium Emerprises Development Acr,20U(, (,VISMEDJ arc p),(lI'ided in Note :l6 . 

b) Terms and Conditions :lnd mhcr balances with related partics :lfC disclosed in Note 24. 

Trade payables Ageing Schedule 

Rs in Crores 
Particulars Unbilled Not due 

Outstanding for the year ended Mar 31 , 2023 from the due date of 
Total payment 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 3 years More than 3 years 
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 25.74 6.37 
enterprises 

32.11 
Disputed dues or micro enterprises and small enterprises -
Disputed dues or creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

-
Rs In Crores 

Particulars Outstanding for the year ended Mar 31, 2022 from the due date of 
Unbilled Not due payment Total 

Less than 1 year 1·2 years 3 years More than 3 years 
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 6.41 
enterprises 6.41 
Disputed dues or micro enterprises and small enterprises -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

-
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 
rj'tl 

15.3 Current Liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities (in Rs. crore) 

Particulars As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

Deposits, Retention money and Money Withheld 1.44 1.53 
Deposits, Retention money and Money Withheld- Related Party -
Holding Company 

Amount Payable to Client 

Other Payables (including Staff Payable) 

Total 

16 Other Current Liabilities 

Particulars 

a) Contract Liability 

b) Others 

Statutory dues 

Total 

Notes: 

1.85 

3.72 

7.01 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

0.38 

0.38 

a) Statutory dues includes liability for Goods and Service Tax (GST), TDS, Provident Fund 
and other statutory dues. 

0.04 

1.76 

8.53 

11.86 

(in Rs. crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

1.42 

1.42 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

15.3 Current Liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities (in Rs. crore) 

Particulars As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

Deposits, Retention money and Money Withheld 1.44 1.53 
Deposits, Retention money and Money Withheld- Related Party -
Holding Company 

Amount Payable to Client 

Other Payables (including Staff Payable) 

Total 

16 Other Current Liabilities 

Particulars 

a) Contract Liability 

b) Others 

Statutory dues 

Total 

Notes: 

1.85 

3.72 

7.01 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

0.38 

0.38 

a) Statutory dues includes liability for Goods and Service Tax (GST), TDS, Provident Fund 
and other statutory dues. 

0.04 

1.76 

8.53 

11.86 

(in Rs. crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

1.42 

1.42 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

17 Revenue from operations 

Construction Contract revenue 

Revenue from Toll Operations (Refer Note 25 & 34) 

Revenue from Construction service ( Change of Scope 
and other works) 

- Other Operating Revenue 

Total 

18 Other Income 

Interest Income: 
Bank Interest Gross 

Others: 
Miscellaneous Income 

Total 

For the year ended 31st 
Mar 2023 

33.07 

142.31 

0.38 

175.76 

For the year ended 31st 
Mar 2023 

1.58 

(in Rs. crore) 

For the year ended 31st 
Mar 2022 

20.69 

120.75 

2.07 

0.35 

143.86 

For the year ended 31st 
Mar 2022 

0.17 
1.58 ___ _ 0.17 

0.17 0.04 

1.75 0.21 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

17 Revenue from operations 

Construction Contract revenue 

Revenue from Toll Operations (Refer Note 25 & 34) 

Revenue from Construction service ( Change of Scope 
and other works) 

- Other Operating Revenue 

Total 

18 Other Income 

Interest Income: 
Bank Interest Gross 

For the year ended 31st 
Mar 2023 

33.07 

142.31 

0.38 

175.76 

For the year ended 31st 
Mar 2023 

1.58 

(in Rs. crore) 

For the year ended 31st 
Mar 2022 

20.69 

120.75 

2.07 

0.35 

143.86 

For the year ended 31st 
Mar 2022 

0.17 
1.58 ___ _ 0.17 

Others: 
Miscellaneous Income 0.17 

Total 1.75 

.-::?=~ 
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. >'d N v .,{hi ;: 1 
\ ...... ".:P.;i" :i:? ............ ~.t: 

"D 'ICCO 

0.04 

0.21 

169



~ ~ .:;:::0'\ "'-II'" .,) .. .'u ?,·~ ·1-; 
rio'"'- .... <0. 

"~~ 
'L' 
. O":i(;\' 

;/11 
~-

~ 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

19 Project and Other Expenses 

Particulars 

Work Expenses ( Construction of Stage II) 

Work Expenses ( Change of Scope Work) 

Work Expenses ( Other Works - Holding Company) 

Concession fees to NHAI 

Toll operation and maintenance expenses 
Inspection, Geo Technical Investigation & Survey Exp. Etc. 
Hire charges of machinery 

Renti Lease expenses - Non-residential ( refer note 35) 

Repairs and Maintenance 
- Office and Others 

Power, Electricity and Water charges 
Insurance 
Travelling & conveyance 
Printing & stationery 
Legal & Professional charges 
Auditors remuneration (Refer Note Below) 
Advertisement & publicity 
Bank Charges and Other financial charges 
Corporate social responsibility (Refer Note 38) 
Miscellaneous expenses 

Provisions (Addition - Write Back) for doubtful debt ( Note 8.1) 

Provisions (Addition - Write Back) 
(Refer Note 14)- For Major repair and maintenance 

Total 

(i) Payment to Statutory Auditors: 

Particulars 

(a) Audit Fee - current year 
(b) Tax Audit Fees - current year 
(e) Fee for quarterly limited review 
(c) Certification Fees 
(d) Travelling & out of pocket expenses: 

- Travelling Expenses 
- Out of Pocket Expenses 

Total 

Project Expenses 

For the year ended 
31 st Mar 2023 

33.07 

-

-

24.54 

7.36 
0.78 
-

0.03 

0.13 
0.98 
0.77 
0.03 
0.01 
0.11 
-
-
-
-

0.01 

-

38.96 

106.78 

For the year ended 
31 st Mar 2023 

0.020 
0.006 
0.005 
0.001 

0.03 

For the year ended 
31st Mar 2022 

20.69 

1.79 

0.28 

22.86 

10.52 
0.66 
-

0.03 

0.05 
0.70 
0.92 
0.02 
0.01 
0.17 
-
-
-
-

0.01 

0.11 

12.23 

71.05 

For the year ended 
31 st Mar 2022 

0.018 
0.005 
0.005 

0.028 

(in Rs. crere) 

Other Expenses 

For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st 
Mar 2023 Mar 2022 

- -

- -

- -
- -
- -

- -

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- 0.008 

0.03 0.028 
0.04 0.020 
0.00 0.027 
- -
- -

- -

0.07 0.08 
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20 Employee Remuneration and Benefits (Refer Note 28) (in Rs. crore) 

For the year ended 31st Mar 2023 For the year ended 31st Mar 2022 
Foot 

Particulars 
Note Other Other Operating 

(Administrative) 
Total Operating 

(Administrative) Total 

Salaries, wages and bonus 1.11 0.20 1.31 1.48 0.14 1.62 
Contribution to provident and other funds 0.09 - 0.09 0.10 0.10 
Retirement Benefits 0.17 - 0.17 0.22 - 0.22 

Total 1.37 0.20 1.57 1.80 0.14 1.94 

21 Finance Cost (in Rs . crore) 

Particulars 
Foot For the year ended 31st Mar For the year ended 31 st 
Note 2023 Mar 2022 

Interest Expense - 37.40 - 38.09 
Other Borrowing Cost 

- Other Charges pertaining to borrowings 0.06 2.96 

Unwinding of discount on provisions 3.41 0.44 
Total 40.87 41.49 

22 Depreciation, amortization (in Rs . crore) 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 31 st 

31st Mar 2023 Mar 2022 

Property, Plant and equipment 0.10 0.11 
Intangible Assets 42.46 41.45 

Total 42.56 41 .56 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for tho year onded 31s1 March 2023 
Note:-23 
A. FaIr Value Measuroments 
(I) Category wise classification of Financial Instruments 

ilifOO8jJtl 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured al fair value in these financial slatemanl and are grouped into three levels of a fair va lue hierarchy. The three l evels are defined based on the 
observabilily of significant inpuls to the measurement, as follows: 

Leve l 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
Level 2: Inpuls other than quoted prices included within Level 1 thai are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indiroclly 
Level 3: Unobservable inpuls for the assel or liability 
a)The carrying va lues and fair values of financial instruments by categories as at 31s t Mar 2023 are as follows: 

Particulars 
Carrying Value 

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and loss (,FVTPl') 
Investment in Mutual Funds 
Total 

Financial Assets al Amortized Cost 
(i) Investments 
(ii) Loans 
(iii) Other Financial Assets 1.55 
Total 1.55 

Particulars 
Carrying Value 

Financiatliabilities at Amortized Cost 
(i) Borrowings 493.06 
Ii) Other Financial liabilities 7.02 

Total 500.08 

b) The carrying values and fair values of financial instruments by categories as al31st Mar 2022 are as follows: 

Particulars 
CarrvinQ Value 

Financial Assets al Fair Value Through Profit and Loss ('FVTPL') 
Investment in Mutual Funds 
Total 

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost 
(i) Investments 
(ii) Loans 
iii) Other Financial Assets 0.13 

Total 0.13 

Particulars 
Carrying Value 

Financial liabilities at Amortized Cost 
(i) Borrowings 499.86 
(ii) Other Financial liabilities 11 .89 
Total 511 .75 

in Rs. crore 
Fair Value 

level 1 level 2 level 3 

1.55 
1.55 

(in Rs. crore 
Fair Va lue 

level 1 level 2 Level 3 

493.06 
7.02 

500.08 

(in Rs. crore 
Fair Value 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

0.14 
0.14 

(in Rs. crore 
Fair Value 

Level 1 level 2 level 3 

499.86 
11.89 

511.75 

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, bank overdrafts and other current finanCial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the 
short~term maturities of these ins truments. 

The fair va lues of the rinancial assets and rinancialliabili ties is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. Methods and 
assumptions used to estimate the fa ir values are consistent with those used for the financial year 2021 ~22. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values 

i) The fair value of investments in mutual fund units (if any) is based on the Net Asset Value ('NAV') as slated by the issuers of these mutual fund units in the published sta tements as at Balance 
Sheet date . NAV represenls the price at which the issuer will issue further units of mutual fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such unils from the investors. 

ii) The carrying amount of financial asse ts and financia l liabilities measured at amortized cost in these financial sta tements are at reasonab le approximation of their fair values since the Company 
does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventuall y be received or settled. 

iii) The carrying amounts of current financia l assets and current financialliabililies approximate the ir fa ir value mainly due to their short term nature . 

• During the financia l year 2022~23 and 2021~22, there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fa ir value measurements. 

B. Financial Risk Management 

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The Company's principal financial assets include loans to related parties, trade and other receivables, and 
cash and short~term deposi ts that derive directly from its opera tions. The Company's activities expose it to some of the financial risks : market risk, credit risk and liquidily risk. 

a) Markot Risk 
Market ri sk is the risk that the fai r va lue of future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk mainlybcomprises Inlerest rate ri sk. Financial 
instruments affected by market risk includes borrowings, trade receivables, trade payable and other non derivative financial instruments, 

(i) Foreign Currency Risk 
The company operates domestically and is exposed to insignificant foreign currency risk (since receipts & payments are received in Indian Rupees) . 

(ii) Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruments will flUctua te because of change in markot interest rate. The company manages its interest risk in accordance 
wi th the companies policies and risk objective. Financial instruments affected by interest rate ri sk includes depOSits with banks. Interest rate risk on these financial instruments are very low as interest rate 
is fix for the period ,of financial instruments. The Company has a floating interest rate bearing loan the interest sensi ti vity @ 50 basis points of the same is given below. 

Particulars For the year ended 31 st For the year ended 31st Mar 2022 
Mar 2023 

Rs in Croms Pre Tax Post Tax Pre Tax Post Tax 
Inlerest rates· Increase bv 50 basis ooints 50 bos 2.47 1.84 2.50 1.87 
Interest rates· Decrease bv 50 basis ooints 50 bos ·2.47 ·1.84 ·2.50 ·1.87 

b) Credit Risk 
Credit risk Is the riSK of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a fi nancia l instrument fails to meel its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables 
from customers and investment. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to clients, including outstanding accounts receivable. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counlerparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. currenlly company has dealt with NHAI 
(National Highway Au thority of India) only therefore company have minimal credit risk. 

Trade and other receivable 
The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in 
which the customer operates , also has an influence on credit risk assessment. 
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Exposure to Credit Risk 
In Rs. crore) 

Particulars As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 
Financial Assets for which allowanco Is measured using Lifetime Expected Credit Lassos (LECL) 

Other Non Current Financial Assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Current Loans 
Other CUrrent Financial Assets 

Financial Assets (or which allowance is measured using Simplified Approach 

Trade Receivables 
Contract Assets 

Summary of change in loss allowances measured using Simplified approach 

0.13 
60.73 

1.417 

0.66 

0.14 
1.59 

0.004 

0.63 

Particulars As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 
Opening Allowances 
Provided during the year 
Utilization during the year 
\mounl writlen-off 
CloslnQ Allowances 

During the year,the Company has recognised loss allowance of Rs.NtL (31 Mar, 2022 : Rs. 1146565). 

Summary of change in loss allowances measured using Lifetime Expected Credit Losses (LECL) approach 

0.11 
0.11 

0.11 0.11 

Particulars As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 
Opening Allowances 
Provided during the year 
Utilization during the year 
Amount wrilten-orr 
IExchanae Gain! I Loss 
Closino Allowances 

No significant changes in estimation techniques or assumptions were made during the reporting period. During the year. the Company has recognised loss allowance of Rs.NIL. 

c) Liquidity risk 

-

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and by having access to funding through an adequate amount of committed credit lines . The Finance department regularly monitors the 
position of Cash and Cash Equivalents vis·a·vis prOjections. Assessment of maturity profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities and maintenance of Balance Sheetliquidily ratios are considered 
while reviewing the liquidity position. 

The senior Management of the Company oversees its investmenl strategy and achieve its investment objectives. The Company typically invests in Bank Flex! accounts and Fixed deposits with Government 
Banks. The primary objective of minimising the potential risk of principal loss. 

The table below provides details regarding the significant financial liabilities as at 31st Mar 2023 and 31st Mar 2022 

Particulars 

Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 

Particulars 

Borrowings 
Trade pavables 
Other financial liabilities 

d) Excessive risk concentration 

less than 1 Year 
4.28 

25.75 
6.99 

Loss than 1 Year 
6.80 
6.42 

11.86 

As on 31st Mar 2023 
1-2 years 

4.28 
6.37 

As on 31st Mar 2022 
1·2 years 

4.28 

(In Rs. crore) 

2 Years and above 
484.50 

(Rs . in crore) 

2 Years and above 
486.78 

Concentrations arise when a number of counlerparties are engaged in similar business activities. or activities in the same geographical region. or have economic features Ihal would cause their ability to 
meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic. political or other conditions. Concentrat ions indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments 
affecting a particular industry. 

The following table gives details in respect of revenues generated from lop three revenue segments of construction revenue. construction under SCA and Toll receipts 

Particulars For the car ended 
31-Mar-23 

Revenue from the To three revenue streams 175.75 143.87 
175.75 143.87 

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio. Identified concentralions of credit 
risks are controlled and managed accordingly. 

C. Capital Management 

The objective of tho Company is to manage its capital in a manner to ensure and safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that company can continue to provide maximum returns to share 
holders and benefilto other stakaholders. Further. company manages its capital structure 10 make adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions and requirements of the financiat covenants. 

Company has taken a term loan from State Bank of tndia fo Rs 502.51 crores in March 2022.0utstanding as on 31st March 2023 is Rs 493.06 Crores (Previous year Rs 499.86 crams) 

Debt Eoulty Ratia :. fin Rs. crore 
PartIculars As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 
Borrowinqs Noto No. 13.1 & 15.1 493.06 499.86 
Debt 493.06 499.66 
Equily_ Nol. No. 11 150.00 150.00 
Olher ~ily Nole No. 12 102.64 68.30 
Total Equity 47.36 61.70 
Debt Eoulty Ratio 10.41 6.10 
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Note:- 24 (a)Details of Related Party Transactions during the year 
(Amt in INR) 

T ransaction (Rs.) Outstanding Amount 

Name of Rela ted 
Party 

Particular For the year 
ended 31st Mar 

For the year ended 
As at 31st Mar 2023 

As at 31st Mar 

2023 
31st Mar 2022 2022 

Im'estment in Equity 1,50,00,00,000 1,50,OO,OO,O()O 

Loans (5,26,00,00,000.00) 

Interest Payable on Loan -
Recou2able advance given (10,16,76,227) 13,.16,66,183 3,1 9,89,956 13,36,66,18.1 

Money wi thheld (4,34,334) - 4,34,334 

Ircon 
Other Payables 32,11,1 8,433 6,40,17,813 

International 
Interest Payable on Loan - -

Limi ted 
Rendering of services 

Works Contract * Excl GST as expense 28,47,770 
Works Contract ( COS) Esc l GST as expense 1,78,89,426 
\,(/orks Contract * Excl GST capitali sed 27,91,86,865 17,81,OI,R1R 

Rent Excluding GST as expense 2,54,R32 2,49,038 
Interest o n Loan as an expense 37,7 1,36,988 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Note:-

a) 

24 Related Party Transactions 

Disclosures in compliance with Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures" are as under: 

List of Related Parties where control exists and also related parties with whom transactions 
have taken place and relationships. 

(i) Holding Company 
Ircon International Limited 

(ii) Key Management Personnel (KMP) 
Board of Directors 
Name 
Shri A K Goyal 
Shri D K Sharma 
Shri Parag Verma 
Smt Ritu Arora 
Shri Masood Ahmad Najar 
Shri Mugunthan Boju Gowda 
Shri Rohit Parmar 

Designation 
Chairman upto 10.10.2022 
Chairman w.e.f. 10.10 . .2022 
Director upto 19.09.2022 
Director w.e.f 13.05.2021 
Director w.e.f 02.08.2021 
Director upto 01 .06.2022 
Director w.e.f. 01.06.2022 

Other Members identified as Key Management Personnel ( KMP) 
Name Designation 

Shri Atul Kumar Chief Executive Officer upto 28.12.2022 
Smt Rachna Tomar Chief Financial Officer w.e.f 01 .04.2022 
Shri Jitender Kumar Maurya Chief Executive Officer w.e.f. 28.12.2022 

Company Secretary 
Name 
Ms Iti Matta u to 17.02.2022 
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Note:-

a) 

24 Related Party Transactions 

Disclosures in compliance with Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures" are as under: 

List of Related Parties where control exists and also related parties with whom transactions 
have taken place and relationships. 

(i) Holding Company 
Ircon International Limited 

(ii) Key Management Personnel (KMP) 
Board of Directors 
Name 
Shri A K Goyal 
Shri D K Sharma 
Shri Parag Verma 
Smt Ritu Arora 
Shri Masood Ahmad Najar 
Shri Mu~unthan Boju Gowda 
Shri Rohit Parmar 

Designation 
Chairman upto 10.10.2022 
Chairman w.eJ. 10.10 . .2022 
Director upto 19.09.2022 
Director w.e.f 13.05.2021 
Director w.e.f 02.08.2021 
Director upto 01 .06 .2022 
Director w.e .f. 01 .06.2022 

Other Members identified as Key Management Personnel ( KMP) 
Name Designation 

Shri Atul Kumar Chief Executive Officer upto 28.12.2022 
Smt Rachna Tomar Chief Financial Officer w.e.f 01 .04.2022 
Shri Jitender Kumar Maurya Chief Executive Officer w.e. f. 28.12.2022 

Company Secretary 
Name 
Ms Iti Matta u to 17.02.2022 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

b) Transactions with Key Management Personnel (KMP) of the Company are as follows: (Rs. in crore) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
S.No. Particulars 

_31st March 2023 31st March 2022 

1 Short term employee benefits 0.92 0.95 
2 Post employment benefits 0.12 0.14 
3 Other long-term employee benefits 0.02 0.02 
4 Termination benefits 

5 Sitting fees 

Total 1.06 1.11 

Transactions with related parties are as follows : (Rs. in crore) 

--=:::::::. 
~\: J~:~::~-

S.No. Nature of transaction Name of related party 
Nature of For the year ended For the year ended I 

relationship 31st March 2023 31st March 2022 

1 Sale of goods and services 

~ 1.1 Contract Revenue Ireon International Limited Holding Company - -
1.2 Rent Income Ireon International Limited Holding Company - -

2 Purchase of goods and services 
Ireon International Limited 

Holding Company 27.92 19.88 
Work Expenses 

~ 
Reimbursement of Deputation Staff 

3 Expenses, Rent & Other Misc. Expenses Ireon International Limited Holding Company 0.03 0.02 
(Income) 

4 Interest Expense 
4.1 Interest Expense on Loan Ireon International Limited Holding Company - 37.71 
5 Repayment of Loans Ireon International Limited Holding Company - 526.00 
6 Advances! Loans Received Ircon International Limited Holding Company - -

7 Any Other transaction not covered above 
Ireon International Limited 

Holding Company (10.21) 13.37 
Recoupable Advance 
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c) Outstanding balances with the related parties are as follows' (Rs. in crore) 

S.No. Nature of transaction Name of related party Nature of relationship 
As at As at 

31 st March, 2023 31 st March, 2022 

1 Equity Received ( Liability) Ircon International Limited Holding Company 150.00 150.00 
2 Advance and Claims Recoverable Ircon International Limited Holding Company 3.20 13.37 
3 Borrowings Ircon International Limited Holding Company -
4 Amount Payable towards 

4.1 Trade Payables Ircon International Limited Holding Company 32.11 6.37 
4.2 Other Payables Ircon International Limited Holding Company 0.03 
4.3 Money withheld Ircon International Limited Holding Company - 0.04 

d) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 
(i) Transactions wilh related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. 

(ii) Outstanding balances of related parties at the year-end except borrowings are unsecured and settlement occurs through banking transactions. These 
balances other than loans and interest bearing advances are interest free . 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

Outstanding balances of related parties at the year-end except borrowings are unsecured and settlement occurs through banking transactions. These 
balances other than loans and interest bearing advances are interest free. 
The Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial 
year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. 

IrconSGTL had four Part-time Directors during the financial year 2022-23, nominated on the Board by the holding company. do not draw any remuneration 
from the Company. No sitting fee is paid to the Part-time Directors. 

, -:. ;.,\ .'. 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 

Note:-25 Service Concession Arrangements (SCA) 

Public-to-private service concession arrangements are recorded in accordance with Appendix "C"- Service Concession Arrangements to lnd AS-115-
"Revenue from Contract with customers" . This SeA is falling within this appendix's scope as both the conditions set out below are met: 

a) The Grantor controls or regulates which services the operator must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and at what 
price; and 

b) The grantor controls- through ownership, beneficial entitlement, or otherwise- any significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the 
term of the arrangement. 

An intangible asset is recognized to the extent that the operator receives the right [0 charge users of the public service, provided that these charges are 
conditional on the degree to which the service is used. 

These intangible assets are initially recognized at cost, which is understood as the fair value of the service provided plus other direct costs directly 
attributable to the operatioo. They are then amortized over the term of the concession. 

Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited (IrconSGTL) (the operator) has entered into a service concession arrangement with National Highway Authority of 
India (NHAT) dated 15th June 2015 in terms of which NHAT (the grantor) has authorized the company to develop, finance, design, engineer, procure, 
construct, operate and maintain the Project of four laning of Shivpuri Guna Section and to exercise and/or enjoy the rights, powers, henefits, privileges 
authorizations and entitlements upon its completion. In terms of the said agreement Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited has an obl igation to compiete 
construction of the project of four laning of Shivpuri Guna section and to keep the project assets in proper working condition including all projects assets 
whose lives have expired. 

The Concession period shall be 20 years commencing from the appointment date. At the end of the concession period, the assets wi ll be transferred back 
to National Highway Authority ofTndia (NHAT) . Tn case of material breach in terms of agreement the NHAI and IrconSGTJ. have right to terminate the 
agreement if the), are not able to cure the event of default in accordance with such agreement. 

The Com pan)' recognizes revenue and cost in accordance with I nd AS 115 by reference to the construction's stage of completion. The Com pan)' measures 
contract revenue at the fair value of rhe consideration receivable. During the arrangement's construction phase, the Company's assets of 725.90 crores 
(representing its accumulating right to be paid for providing construction services) is classified as an intangible assets (license to charge user of the 
infrsrructure), which was completed in 2018-19. The nnd Phase of the Toll Road started in Financial year 21-22 and provisional completion of the same 
was received in 17-12 2022. Consequently Rs 45.96 Crares were transferred from Intangible Assets under development to Intangible assets during the 
year. Toll collection from Phase II has also commenced. I\s on 31st March 2023, Rs 7.81 crores ( last year Rs 20.69 crores ) has been shown under 
Intangible Asset under development. The Company has recognized nil profit on construction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement 
.The Revenue recognized in relation to construction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement represents the fair value of services 
provided towards construction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement. The operation of toll road has commenced from 7th June 2018 
and that of Phase II from 19-12-2022 and the company has recognised usage fcc as revenue of Rs.142.31 Crores ( last year Rs 120.75 crores) from 
operation of toll road for the Year ended 31.03.2023. 

Concession fcc and its premium is seen as being paid for earning the revenue and is treated as a charge against revenue. During the period concession fees 
of Rs 24.54 Crares ( Last year Rs 22.86 Crares) to N HAL has been paid as per terms of the concession agreement. Usage fcc collected over and above the 
traffic cap as per the concession agreement is termed as excess fcc. This SCA is due to be n;negotiated as per clause number 28 and 29 of the 

concessionaire agreement. 

Major Maintenance Obligations 
'Major Maintenance Obligations' includes undertaking major maintenance such as resurfacing of pavements, repairs to structures, and repairs and 

refurbishment of tolling system and other equipment. These obligations arc recognized and measured at the best estimate of the expenditure retluired to 

settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. The provision for the resurfacing is built up in accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 37 . Timing 

and amount of such cost are estimated and recognised on straight line basis over the period at the end of which the overlay is estimated to be carried Ollt 

based on technical evaluation by independent experts. 

Construction Contracts 

In terms of the disclosure required in Ind AS -115 "Revenue from Contract with Customers" , the amount considered in the financial statements up to the 

balance sheet date arc as follows:-

Particulars 

Revenue recognized from construction services 

Revenue recognised from toll-Usage fee 

Aggregate amount of cost incurred and recognized in Profit/ Loss 

Gross amount due from Client for Contract Works 

As at 31st Mar 2023 

33.07 

142.31 

33.07 

Amount in Rs Crores 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

20.69 

120.75 

20.69 
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UiiOOGgtl 
Note:-

Note:-

26 Disclosure as required by Ind AS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" 

27 

During the year, the company has modified its significant accounting policies of Ind AS 16 , Property , Plant and 
Equipment. 
The aforementioned change has been incorporated into note 3 of property, plant and equipment (PPE) note of the 
financial statement. This adjustment has no financial impact on the financial statement. 

Disclosure as required by Ind AS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors" 

During the year the Company has changed the accounting policy related to "Property, plant and equipment" for uniformity 
with the Holding Company and improved disclosure . There is no impact on the profitability of the Company, and the 
revised accounting policy is as below and amendments are highlighted in Bold 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land and leasehold land acquired on perpetual 
lease is provided on straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as specified in schedule II of the 
Companies act, 2013. However, in case of certain class of assets, the Company uses different useful life than those 
prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. The useful life has been assessed based on technical 
evaluation, taking into account the nature of those classes of assets, the estimated usage of the asset on the basis 
of the management's best estimation of getting economic benefits from the asset. The estimated useful life as 
per the technical evaluation viz-a-viz Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 has been disclosed in the notes to 
accounts. 
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Note:-

Note:-

28 Employee Benefits 

29 

The employees working for rreon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited (rSGTL) "the company" are posted on deputation I 
seeondment and are on the rolls of Treon International Limited, the Holding Company. Their PF con tributions, pension 
contributions, gratuity, leave encashment and other retirement benefits have been accoLlnted for on the basis of invoices I 
debit advises from its holding company. The provision for gratuity and other retirement benefits of employees on 
deputation in terms of Ind AS-19 is being made by its Holding Company as per its accounting policies. 

Provident fund contribution and pension contribution of the employees on deputation has been regularly deposited by the 
holding company with its P. F. Trust. 

Foreign exchange recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss: 

NIL 

..--.;,. 

-, 
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meON SHIVPU1U GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financhll S',llcmc:nui for the: year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Notc:- 30 Earnings Pcr Share 
I)j ~cI(lsu rr.: as pcr Ind /\S 3) 'Earnings per ~h a rc' 

llasic EPS is calcuhllcd br dividing the profit for the rcar .mribul':lblc ro equit}" holders br the \V(,:igh!cd :l\'cr.lgc number of c(luiry shan.::- o Ul'!'I:lOding ~Iuring lill' yl'a r. 

Diluled EPS is c,llcuhm:d by di"iding the profit fo r the ~·I.!ilr :mribumblc to the Ctluil)' hoJdcr~ after considcrin~ the dfc(\ of dilution b~' \\'cighu.:d ;wemgc nUmUtT flf cllui , ), sh;m:s olll~larHlillg during the ),l'a r plus till' 
weighted average number of C'lui!), shares that would be iSH1Cd on conl'ersion of all the diluli\'l! pmcnual C(lu il), ~ han:~ inlO Cl1uity ~ h;lrl·~. 

ti) D:llde and diluted e:lrnill ~s per share (in Rs,) 

Particulars Note 
For the yeOlr ended Por the: year ended 

31s1 Mluch 2023 JIs t March 2022 

Pruli! auribllt;lhle (I) E( ui!\' hulders (Rs, in crore) ii) 14 .. 141 (IU151 
Wei ,h{cd avcr;! 'e number uf et ui~' shares fur Iirlsic and Dill1lcd EPS jij l 5,f"1l) 15,(Ill 

Earnin 'S ler share (Basic) (I,Wl) (I,HII) 

E.'\rnin 'S Jcr sharc ([ il lHCd 11.% ((URI) 

10,UO 10,no 

ii) Profit :utribut;lblc.: to equit, sh:trcholders (used as Illllllcr:llor) (Rs. ill t.:rorc) 

P :l.ftiCIII'lfS 
Por Ihe year ended Por the yelu ended 

31st March 2023 J1ta March 2022 

Pru lit (or the ,"c;l.r :IS pcr St;uemcllI of Profit and Luss ·14.34 -12,05 

Prulit :utribulablc to E,< uil\' holders ul the CUOlpanr used lor cumputin .. EPS: (14.34 (12.05) 

iii) Wei lltt!d :I\'ecolge nllmber of equity sh:lres (used as denominator) (Nos.) 

PartiCIII:ICI; For Ihe year ended Por the year cndcd 
JIst l\'l:lrch 2023 Jist M:lrch 2022 

Onenin~ balance of issucd e( uit\' shares 15 15 

ElLLill' sharc~ ;~sucd durin!.! thc ,"car 

Weighted a\'er~'C nlJlllber of equity shares for com Juling D,lSic EPS IS IS 
Dihuioll Effect: 

Add: \'1cil!hted :1"Cr.1 c numbcrs of pOIenria l e{ uin' shares outstand i n~ durinl! the vear 

\'(Ieigjncd average number of cquit 'shares for computing Diluted EPS 15 15 

Note:- 31 Impairment of Assets 

In compliance of Inti /\ S 36 "I mpair men l oi As!'el~", thl! Company hl:i reviewed the aSSetS:u year-cnd 1'111' indicatilHl ot' illlp:lirmC'llt 1II :O:~, if an)" a:i per .he aCC<lunring 

polic}' of the CompallY. As there is no indication of imp:\irment, nn imp:linllcnt lo:o:!' h:l !' heen recogni!'ed durin~ (he rcar, 

Notc:- 32 "ro\'isio ns, Contingencies ~Ild Commilml.!nts 

(i) Provisions 

"'he n:nu rt.· of pro\' isions pnwidcd and 11lIl\'Cllll'n! ill provisions during till' rear:ls per Ind J\ S ."\7 'Provisions, CuntingclU l.i:tbil itic)i and Conti ngt.'n t :\:..~ct:;· arl' d isdnSl·d in :--Jlltc- I-I 

(ii) Conting-em Liabilities 

DisdusureofComin 'em Liabiliti es as ncr Ind AS:\7 'Provisions , Cumin 'em Liabilitit.,s and Contin 'Cf1( As scts ' is as undcr: 

Claims scttlcd during the yc;tr 

P,nticul :'lrs 

a) CI:'lims :.tgainst the Comp.m)' nOI acknowledged as debts : 

b) Guarantees (excluding fin:mcial guar,lIces) issllcd by the comp:my on beh.lif of 

c) Othcr money for which cornpau)' is contingcnlliablc (Rs in Crures) " " 

,," CIII;'lli illlifl/lIlf(II!)' IIIf/tpt'IIdtlll EI!~i1/rt'r o/NI-LAI 011 (/,(0111/1 of /klii/Itiri. T hr COlllp,l/!)' iJ i lf 

{nlJlIlJllllifllli fl ll with i\'IL·11 jhl' rfllll/mll!f !/x,It' f'hlilllJ, (1$ il i.r filii!)' IIx G1IIIplll!Y 1""1 f11!1' ddt!)'; drjilllli iJ 

"';'{~ illlpn.rrrl iJ Ilfll fill (If('fllml of fb, C(JIllPtII!)'. 

(iii) Commitments 

Foot As at Ji s t 
Note March 2022 

Addition during the 
)'ear 

12.55 

12.55 

Out of the opcning 

balancc 

Outor 
addition 

during the 
year 

Total Chtims 
Sellled during 

the year 

As atJIst 

March 2023 

12.55 

12.55 

P:trticul:trs Foot NOIt: As at Jl!;t M;lr 2023 As III Jist M:tr 2022 

a) Capitlll Commitments 
E~,im:1It.:d ~mllum nf cnn.r:lCI~ remainin~ rn be ~·)(ccu ll·d nn c"pilal :lC(!1u m (nci flf ;J( iI-:lncc) :lntl nnt prll\,jd t' ~1 fflr: 

b) Other Commitments 

C()nccs~:l in ;t re fees pa~':lhle to N I-I /\I till end ofCnncr..:~~jon(l.jrr..: perind of .he T,,11 RO;'ld (refer Nllt l: 2S SeA) 
(il 

Foot Note: 

S.No Capital Commitments 

Estimaled amount of ContractS rcmilining lel be cxcculCd fin Propcre)" PI:mt and E(luipmcm 

Estimatcd amOunt of c<,mraCfS remaining (II be t.'xecutec\ Pil Im'cstIIle.:11t ProperlY 

El' tim:Hed amount of Ctllltr:ICfS rctll:linin)..: Itl be.: exec uted nn Inr:lIlgible :\ ~sers under dt.'\'c!(lplllel1l 

Total 

r) 

f';(­
,.te," ,I 

As at 31st Mllr 2023 

4.11 37.18 

448,72 483.112 

452.83 520.20 

(Its. in crorc 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

4.11 37.lti 

4.11 37.18 
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N()1c:- 30 Earnings Per Share 
Dj ~d(lsu n::ts per Ind /\S 33 'Earnings per ~harc' 

lh:;ic EPS is clilcut:lIcd br tli,'jding the profit for lhe p..:ar :tmibul':lblc 10 equitr holders br the w(:ighu:d ,H"cragc number of ('(Iuicy :;han::o olll!'l:lOd ing during !Ill' yea r. 

Diluled EPS is c:llcuhltl.:d by di\'iding the profit for the ~'c:lr :mribumblc: 10 the ct1uil)' hoJdcr~ "fIef con:;idcrin~ the: cffcCI of dilutiun b~' \\'ciglw..:d a\'erage nUlllbn of t.:t1uily :;h;m:s outstanding during Ihe )'I.':1r plus thl' 
weighted ,1\'cragc number of Ct1uit)· sh;\rcs lh:u would be iSH1Cd on COlll'crsion of :llllhc diluli\'c pcnclllial C(luit)' ~h;\n:~ into Cl1uity ~ h:lrl·~. 

:i) Basic and diluted e:lminlS per share (in Rs,) 

Particulars Note 
For the year ended Por the year ended 

31st M:uch 2023 JIst March 2022 

Pruli! attrihut;lhlc I!l El uin' hulders (It s, in crure ii } 14 .. 141 (12.05) 

Wei ·blcd avcm 'e number of el uirv shares fur Brtsie and Dill1lcd EPS iii 15,nl.l 15,(UI 

E;lrnin·s ler share Basic) (11,%) (iI.AU) 
Earnin·s )cr sharc Diluted ~1.'!6) (O,SU) 

10,110 10.00 

(ii) Prufit attribut:lblc.: to eQuit · shareholders (used as Ill1l1ler:ItOr) (Rs, ill I.:rorc) 

Parlicul:lrS For Ihe )'car endcd Por the yc~tr ended 
31st March 2023 J1st March 2022 

Pru lit fur thc ,'car as per S!:uemcllI of Profi t and Loss -14.34 -12,(15 

Pru lit attributable IU Ec Uil\' hulders 01 the CUOlpanr used fur cum JUlint( EPS; 14.3. 12.05 

(iii) Weighted :lVcr:lgc number or equit, slwrcs (used as denominator) (Nos,) 

l':lfticlIl:lrI:; For the ycar ended For thc year endcd 
JIst ~1;arch 202J Jhn M:lrch 2022 

Opcnin~ balance or issued C( uit \' shares 15 15 

Et ui!,' ~harc~ issued durir1L! the rcar 

Weighted a"cr~'C number or equity shares ror complitinj:t O:\sic EPS 15 15 

Dihuioll Effcct: 

Atld : \X'ei ,hted ;avera 'I.' numbers of potential e{ uirr shares outstandinl!, durin~ the vear 

Wei,::htcd average number or equity shares ror computing Diluted EPS 15 15 

NOle:- 31 Impairment of Assets 
In compliance of Ind 1\ 5 3() "Impairment of A!'!'cl!'''. the Company ha:; re viewed the :l sse.:tS al ycar-cnd fllr indicatillil of imp:\irmC'111 III): ): , if all y, as pC'r tilC' acCtJlIlHin).! 

polic}' or the Company, As there is no indication o f imp:\irmenl, no imp:li rmcnr lo):s ha l' been recognised dllrin~ the rcar. 

Note:- 32 Provisions, Contingencies and COmmillnl.!nlS 
(i) Provisions 

The.: nature or pro\' isions prov ided and 1llll\'Cllll'nt in provisions during Ih{' rear liS per Inti I\S .'\7 ·Provi:; iuns. Cun rin,!;cllI l .iahil irie!' ami ContinJ;l'nt :h :-'cI:;' arl' d isdnst'd in ~l'll' - I-I 

(ii) Contingem Liabilities 

Disclusure ufContin 'em Liabilities as_1?_er Inti /\5 :\7 'Provisions, Cumin 'ent Liabilities and Cumin 'CIH Assets' is as undcl~ 

Claims sC ltlcd during the ycar 

PotrticUhtfS 

a) CI:.,ims ;'gainst the COlnpanr nOI acknowlcdgcd as dcbts : 

b) Guarantecs (c",cluding financial guar.uccs) iss lied by the comp.m)' on bell4llr or 

c) Othcr money for which comp.lIl), is contingcOl liable (Rs in Crares) .... .... 

"' .. CllIillIl illlill/lIlnl l!), IlIrlr/k,lItlrlll EI!~ifJ(t'I ' t!lNI-LAI nIl (1((olml nf /klllillirl. 'fix Com P'li! ), ;1 ilf 
mlJllJllllliflllif)l1 /t'i," i\'H~'IJ jill' 1\'11/11/'(" l!f Ib.'" t' rI,,;,m, III il i.r filii!)' IIx ('f)IIIP,,,!y Ihlll til!)' dt/,!}'/ dr/III'" iJ 

"(;'{~ ifllpoml iJ 11M flll (/({,(Jlm' r:f /In ('f)/IIPIII!)'. 

(iii) CommitmCllts 

Foot As at 31st 
Notc March 2022 

Addicion during the 

)'ear 

12.55 

12.55 

Out orthc opening 
balancc 

Outor 
addition 

during the 
ycar 

Tot~1 Claims 

Settlcd during 
the ycar 

As 313151 

March 2023 

12.55 

12.55 

P:lrticul:trs Foot NOle As at Jl!:;t M:1r 2023 As lit Jist M:'lr 2022 

<1) C:\pit:d Commitments 
Esnmllcd lmnunt n( cnntr:\C!s rcm:t inin~ III b<: ~'xccul~'d nn c:\pil:\1 :\ccnum (ncr .. ( :lth':lnce) :\J'ul nor prlll' idel l fllr: 4.11 37.18 

b) Other Commitmcnts 

C(lnce:\~:1in;lre rees parahle 10 NH/\ I till end IIrCnncr..:~~ionajre perind (If the Toll R(I;\d (refn NOle 25 SCA) 
(il 448,72 483.112 

452.83 520.20 

foot Note: 

(Rs. in crore 

S.No Capital Commitments As 111 31st M:lr 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022 

Estimated amnum of contracts rcmilining tn be cxecutcd pn IJrnpcrf)" Pbnt and E(luipmcllC 

E:aim:Hcd arlloulII or CIlmraCts rem:lin ; n~ til be I..'xl'cutec! till Im'esunelll Property 

tluim:'lted amnUIlI of Cn!ltmns rCnl:linin).! ro be.: e.:xccufcd on Inrrtn~iblc l\~s cr s undcr dl.'\'cloPIlll'1lI 4.11 37.1~ 

Total 4.11 37.18 
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IRe ON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Note:- 33 Segment Reporting 

The Company is operating in only one operating Segment and hence disclosure as per Ind As 108 " Operating Segment" is not applicable 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes (0 Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Note:- 33 Segment Reporting 

The Company is operating in only one operating Segment and hence disclosure as per Incl As 108 " Operating Segment" is not applicable 
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meON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes 10 Financial Statements for the year cnded 31s1 Mar 2023 iIilOOSJltl 
N01C:- 34 Revenue from comr:'lCI with customers 

A. Dis<tggrcg:uion of Revenue 

SCt out belli\\' i~ Ihe di~agg(cg;llioll of the Companr's cncl1m: (rim) contracts with CUS[(Jmccl' imn opcr:ning sq.;mcllI and (ype of product or sen-iccs: 

Type of Product or Services 
Revenue :15 per lnd AS 115 

Dosmcs tic Total 

Railw:l 's 

Hit.!.hw:'l' 175.76 

Eleclric:'!1 

nuiklin~ 

Others 
TOlal 175.76 

For the year ended 31st M:.trch 2023 

175.76 

175.76 

Method for measuring 
performance obliga tion 

Input Method Output Method 

175.76 

175.76 

(Rs. in crocc) 

Total as per Statement 
Other Revenue of Profit and Loss 

IScgmcm Reporting 

1.75 177.51 

1.75 177.51 

Om of the tura l revenue recognised under Ind AS 115 during: tht: rc;u , Rs .1.1.07 Crofe is rec(I~nbed o\'Cr:t pt:riml oftimt: :lOd R ~. 144 .... 4 crore n:cogni~t:tl ppinl in time. 

Type of Product or Services 
Revenue as per I nd AS 115 

Dosmcstic Total 

lbiIW:l's 
14.1H6 

Elt::clric:l1 

Bujldjn~ 

Others 

Total 143.86 

For the year ended 31st M:1rch 2022 

143.8(, 

143.86 

Method for measuring 
performance obJigadon 

Input Method Output Method 

143.86 

143.86 

(Rs. in crore) 

Total as per SHucment 
Other Revenue of Profit and Loss 

/Segment Reporting 

0.21 144.07 

0.21 144.07 

Out of [he total revenue recognised under I nd /\5 115 during the re:u. Rs 22.76 crorcs is recognised over :l period uf time.:: :lnd R~ . 121 . .1 I crore n:cogllised pllint in time. 

D, Rcvenue from Monthl}' passes issued for Toll to Vehicles :lfe issucd as per rc.'<'luirc:ment (If the custom<.' rs. th~ cllIirc :lIllOUIll nf which is hooked as rcvcnuc on the d:uc of such lr;lnsacrion. Such 

mOlllhl)' p3SS~S :tH! non rc::fundablc:: in n:tt\lrc:: . 

C. Contract balances 

Particulars 

Trade Receivablc!i (Note 8,1) 

COlHmet Assets 

Contract Liabilities 

As:" 
31st l\'larch, 2023 

0.55 

(Rs. in crore) 

Asat 
31st M:\reh, 2022 

0.52 

(i) Trade receiv:lbles arc non-interest hcaring and the ClIstomer pwli lc includc$ ~:lti()rl:\1 Highw~)r Authority of India ( NHA T) :lnd Toll ColleClinn /\gene)'. The C/JIllj1:1ny's avcr:lge project t:xt:cution 

c)'clc.: is around 24 (U )6 motllils. General pa),llll.·nt terms includ!.: payments for ulilit)' shifring rcimhursl:nlellls :lnd chang!.: ill scope of work nlulu:tll~' !lgrc:!..'d upon if an)'. wirh :l credir pe riod 
rangmg from 60 to lHO d:trs or whcl1lhc work is cc.:rlific.:d.P:l),me:nrs also includc::sTolI recl!'i p' s for usc ot'Toll (nlkelt'd by the Toll C(lllt:cfilln Agt:nc), tor (he: Company. Project cxecutcd hy Ihe 

Comp:1I1)' is under BOT (built 0per:uc rr:lIls ft:r) modd !lnti rhe payments are on :tCCOUIH 01''1"0 11 Collection and :lddilional works br NHA I. it' :lny, 

OJ) COIllr:lel Asscts :lre recognised over the perind in which services ;ICC pcrformed to represent the Companr's right to comider:u.ion in exch:lnge for goods or ~ervices transferred to thc customer. It 
includes blll:lnccs due from custOmers under construcuon conlr:lClS Ih:lt arise when the Company recei\'es p:'l ymcms from custOmers :'IS per terms of the contracts however the re\'Cnlle is 
recognised o\'er the period under input method, Any :tmOUllt pre"iously recogni$ed:'ls:l. ((Intract :'I sse I is reci:l$silied to lr:lde recei\'ahles on S~llisf:lcU()1l of the conditilln :m:lchcd i.e, rlltufe ser\'ice 

which is necess'1I)· to achieve the hilling milestone. 

Movement in comract b:llanees during the yc;tr (Rs. in crare) 

As ~t 
31st Mmch, 2022 

Particulars 
As at 

31st March, 2023 

Co nU':'ICt :'ISSCl:H the Beginning of the ~'car 

Contract :'ISset:H the end of the yC:11' 

Net increasc/dccrc:Ise 

(iU) COl1trilct u:'Ibili[ies relating to construction contr:lcts !Ire b~l:mces due 10 customers, these arise when a p'lfIicul:tr milestone p:lrmellt exceeds the revenue recognised to dale under the input 

method and ad,',mce recei,'ed in long term consuucLion cnlllr3ClS. The amount of Ad\,:lnce received gets adjusted onr the Cnll$truction period a$ :lnd when invojcin~ i$ made 10 the 

customer. 

P<lrticulars 

COntr:lct liabiJjcies at [hl! bl!j.~il\ning of tbe yt:ar 

Comr:1Clliabilicics at the end of the ye:lr 

Net il1cre:,sc/dccrc~lse 

D. Set out bdow is [he :'mount of revenue reeo 7niscu [rom: 

P:trticul:lrs 

Amount included in CUntr:lCI liabilities :ll lhe beginning of Ihl.: 

rear 
Performance oulig:Hion s:nisficd ill previous yea rl' 

E, J'crform:tncc oblig:ltiun 

(Rs. in I.:rurc) 

As;tt As at 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

(ns. in crore) 

As at As :'It 

31st M:lfCh, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Inform:Hioll abour the Comp:IIlY's perform:tncc oblig;\ uoll ~ ar<.· su mm:lri~ed below: 

The tr:llls:lCUOtl price:: alloclltcd HJ ehe remaining perform:locc obligonions (tlm:lci~fied or pnrti:llly ull ~a tislied) 
;"Is:lt 31 i'hrch :'Ire, as fo llows: 

\'\lj[hin one rear 

l\lorl.: Ihan om: p.:ar 10 2 )'l.:ars 

i\lorc th:'lll 2 years 

TOI~I 

(Rli. ill ccore) 

As at Ali at 

31st March, 2023 31s1 March, 2022 
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Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 iliiollA rill! 
Note:- 35 Leases 

a) Company as a Lessee 

The Company as a lessee has entered into lease contracts, for office space. Before the adoption of lnd AS 116, the Company classified 
each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as either a finance lease or an operating lease. 
These leases arc in nature o f short term leases or low value leases and arc operating leases. 

Right of Use Assets 

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year is Nil. 

Lease Liabilities 

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognised and the movemcnts during the year: 

(Rs. in crore) 

As at 31st March, 2023 

Balance at April 1, 2022 

Addition 

Accredition of interest 

Payments 

Balance at March 31, 2023 

Current 

Non-current 

Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 

Interest expense on lease liabilities 
Expense relating to short-term and low value leases (Refer Note 19) 

b) Company as a Lessor 

0.00 

0.00 

(Rs . in crore) 

For the year 
ended 31st 

March 2023 

0.03 

0.03 

For the year 
ended 31st 
March 2022 

0.Q3 

0.03 

The Company has given a demarcated area adjacent to the Toll Road, within the terms of the Service Concession Arrangement with 
NHAI, on Lease for a Petrol Pump to be operated by Hindustan Petroleum Company Limited ( HPCL) and Lease and operations of 
Rest Area to Synergy Engineers Group Private Limited . An amount of Rs 0.18 Crores ( Rs 0.17 Crores) had accrued from HPCL and Rs 
0.20 Crores (Rs 0.18 Crores) from Synergy as Lease rentals. 

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows: 

As at 
31st March, 2023 

Within one year 

After one year but not more than five years 

More than five years 

0.41 

0.91 

2.17 

3.49 

(Rs. in crore) 

As at 
31st March, 

2022 

0.38 

1.08 

2.40 

3.86 
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lrcon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Note:- 36 Information in respect of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as required by Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) 

S.No. Particulars 

The principal amount and the inrcrcst due thereon rcmajning unpaid. to any supplier;ls at the end of cilch accounting },e,u: 

Principii I amount due to micro ilnd small enterprises 

Interest due on above 

The amount of interest paid by [he buyer in terms of Section I (, of the MSMED Act 200(, along with the amounts of the 

2 payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accouncing year 

4 

The amount of interest due and PilYilblt.: for the period of del;IY in milking p;tymcnr (\vhich h;'lvC bcc.::n p:lid but beyond the 
appointed day during thc ),ea r) but without adding the interest specified Linder the J'v[SMED /\ct 200(, 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the cnd of each accounting year 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until slich cbrc when rhe interest 
dues as above are actually paid to the small entcrprise for thc purpose of disallowance ::I.S :l deductihle expenditure under 

Seerion 23 of tbe tvlSMED Act 2006 

As at 31st Mar 
2023 

(Rs. in crore) 

As at 31st Mar 

2022 

Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Note:- 36 Information in respect of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as required by Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) 

S.No. Particulars 

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier;ls at the end of each accounting re,u: 

Princip(l] amount due to micro rind smal1enrcrpriscs 

IntC!res[ due on above 

The amount of interest paid by ,he buyer in term, of Section I (, of the MSMED Act 200(, along with the amountS of the 

2 payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accouncing year 

4 

The amount o f interest due rind p(lyablt: for the period of deb y in making p;tYlllcnr (\vhich h;tvc bcc.::n p:1id but beyond the 
appointed day during thc ),ea r) but without adding the interest specified uncleI' the MSMED I\ct 200(, 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting yea r 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding ycars, until slich cbrc when rhe inrcrest 
dues as ahove are actually paid ro the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance ilS :l deductihle expcndirurc under 

Seerion 23 of tbe !\,!SMED Act 2006 

As at 31st Mar 
2023 

(Rs . in crore) 

As at 31st Mar 

2022 
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Notc:-37 
(rcon Shivpuri Guna TolI\\'ay Limited 

Additiunnl re~ulatory information 

Disclosure of ratios 

Particulars 
Curn:nt ratio 

Debt-equity ratio 

Debt service coverage ralio 

Return on equity ratio 

Invcntory turnover ratio 

Trade receiva bles turnover ratio 

Trade paY<lble turnov~r ratio 

Net capital turnover ratio 

Net profit ratio 

Return on capital employed 

Retun 011 investment 

Numerator Denominator 
Current Assets Current Liabilities 

Total Debt Shareholder ' s Eq uity 

Earnings for debt Debt service - Interest 

service::: Net protil & Lease Payments + 
aflcr taxes + NOIl- Principal Repayments 
cash operating 

expenses 

Net Profits "ncr AVl':ragc Sharchollh:r's 
laxes - Preference Equity 
Dividend 

Cost of goods sold Average InvclllOry 

Net credit sales - Average 
Gross credit sa les - Reccivnble 
sa les return 
Nel credit Ave rage: 
pun;hases -= Gross Payab lcs 
credit purchases 
purchn5c return 

Trade 

Trade 

Net sa les - Total Working capitDI 
sales - sa lcs return Current asse ts 

Nct Profil 

E;unings 

Current liabilities 

Net solles - Total sales 
sa lc !'i rdurn 

before Capilal Employed -
interest uno taxes Tangible Nel Worth + 

Total Debt + Deferred 

TJX LiabililY 

(nterest (Finance Investmcnt 
Income) 

March 31<12023 

0.58 

10.4 I 

2.59 

-0.26 

NA 

1.6S 

I.n 

-3 .H2 

-0.OX2 

0.05 

NA 

Ma reh 3 I ,I 2022 

0.10 

8. 10 

1. 85 

-0.18 

NA 

1.60 

6.34 

-6.01 

-0.OH4 

0.05 

NA 

499.20% 

:!8.52% 

39.8 1% 

-47.87% 

NA 

3.03'Y. 

-n.Y2% 

36.49% 

2.55% 

6.38% 

NA 

Reason for Ch ;Hl2,C more than 25cVu 
The reason for incrcas..: is un account of 

highc.:!" CBsh gcm:rulcd fi'Glll toll upl!ralions 
rcsuliil1g in Illuch higher ctlrrcnl i.lssc ls in 
comparison 10 current liabilities 
Company's cquilY has reduced on aceounl of 
lower retained carnings due to higher 
provision for maintenance. resu lting in a 
higher Debt Equily ratio 

The ilH.:rcasc ill Ihe DSCR is all account of 
improvcJ eilshnows being cameo from the 
toll roa~ 

Thc decn:ase in the ratio is on account of 
high !.!r pruvision for major maintcnatH.:e 
resulting in lowering of this r!.!tllrn in the 
immcdhHc shOl'l term 

NA 

NA 

Tht: decrease is due to amounts pending to ht.! 
paid to Holding Compuny-IRCON, for stllge 

2 works ortbe Compul1Y which has rec~n tly 

been provisionDlly completed. 

The increase in the ratio is on account of 
commt.!ncernent of toll from stage 11 resulting 
in hi ·Iler sa les nnd imnrovin 1 the rDtio. 

NA 

NA 

NA 

The duration and impact of the COVID-1 9 pandemic especially on account of second wave of the pandemic. remnil15 unclenr at prl!51!nt as 011 r~portil1g date. Helice. it is not possible 10 reliably 
estimate the duration and severity of these cOl1 st.!qucllces. as wdl .15 their impact on the Iin~lI1cial position ;111<.1 results of Ihe ('olllpnny for futlu'e periods. However. the com[l:lny is protected by the 
clauses 29.6 of the Concession Agreement 10 claim such loss under force majeure ~vcnt in the form of revenue loss compensation by wily of I!xtension of the concl!ssion period . The impact of the 
lockdown disruption! COVID-19 pandemic will have to be ilssesscd Ii'olll time to timc ~lI1d communicated <IS we progress during tht: current linullci;)1 year. A lot dt!pends on (he success or the various 
pandemic cont~inll1ellt etlorts being undertaken by the Stnte ;)ud Central Govemmcnts nnd Henlth authoriti es. It is there fore premn tufc to forecast tile future impact with credibility at this stage. 

iii The Company h:Js not tf:Jded or invested in Cr)'pto Currcncy or Virtual CllITency during the financial year ending 31s1 Mnfch 2023 and 31st Mnrch 2022. 
iv The Company has no transactions with companies struck ofT under section 248 of the Companies ACI, 2013 or Section 560 afCompanies Act . 1956 during lhe finnllcial yenr ending 31st March 2023 

and 3 1.1 March 2022. 

During the finnncial year 2022-23 and 2021-22. the Company h:wc not ndvanccd or loancd or inves ted funds 10 any other person(s) or I!ntily(is). including foreign entities (Intennediaries) with the 

understanding that the Illtcnnedinry shall: 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or cntiti l!s identified in any m<lllner whatsoevcr by or all behalf orthe company (Ultimate DCIlt!liciaril!s) or 

(b) provide any guarantce, security or the like 10 or on behalfofthe Ultimate l3eneJiciaries 

vi During Ihe Jinullcini ye:Jr 2022-23 and 2021-22. the Company have nol received any fund from .my person{s) or ell tity(is) . including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the undcrst:mding (whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Compnny shaH: 

vii 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 011 beha lf orthe Funding Party (Ultimate Bencliciarics) or 
(b) provide any guarantec. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

The Company docs not have any loans and advances in the nature or loans 10 promoters, directors. KMP nnd other relclled p:Jrtiesin the !inanei,,1 yenr I!l1ding 31 st March 2023 and Jis t March 2022. 

viii The Company do nol have any Bcnami property as on 31 st Mnrch 2023 and] I sl March 2022, where .1I1Y proceeding has been initi:lIecl or pending against the Co mj:l.my for holding nny 8cl1Cnni 
properly. 

ix Thc Company docs not havc any title deeds of immovable properties nol held in the namc orthe company :IS at 31 st March 2023 and) I st March 2022. 
Company is not required to submit slatcment of current assets with the bank and thcrefore rcconcil.llion orthe statemenl !iled by the eOIll I>any with bank .md the books ofaccounlS is not applicable. 

xi The Company docs not hilVC ilny invcsuncllI property ilS at 31 st March. 2023 and :\ I st March, 2022. 
xii During the yenr 2022-23 and 2021-22, the company has 110t revalued any item of Propcrty,plant and equipment and intangible asse!. 
xiii Thc Comprmy docs 1101 have any transactions in financial year 2022-23 and 2021-22, where the camp.my has notllsed the borrowings froln banks and iin[lncial institutions for the specific purpose 

for which it wos tnken at the balancc sheet date. 

xiv The Company has not cntered in any transaction nol recorded in the books or accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as incolllc during the year in (he tax <Jssessments lInder the Income Tax 
Act. 1961 (such as search or surveyor any other rclev<Jllt provisions or the Income T<Jx Act, 1961 .) 

xv Company has 110t received any grants and donations during the year cnding 31 st March 2023 and period ending 31 st March 2022. 
xvi The Company has not been occlafl.:d as wi lti.ll defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority in the lill<Hlcial year 2022·23 and 2021-22. 
xvii The Company hilS complied with the numbl.!r of laYl.!rs presl.:ribl.!d under the Companies Act, 2013. 
xviii Thcre arc no churges or satisfaction of chargc yet to be regish.: reu with the R!.!gistrar of Companies beyond the Statutory Period in Ihe finilncial year !.!nding 31 sl Murch 2023 am] 31 st March 2022. 

xix The Company hav\! 110t cntcred into any sche1l1c(s) of alT<lngC1l1Cllts during Ihe year el1dil1g 31 sl March 2023 ul1d pl.!riud ending 31 s( M;m:h 2022 .&-."':. -:=-~ 

xx Smce Company have no Lease III the books threfore 110 disclosure IS reqUIred , ~¥--\ ~ ~ ~,!:, f? ~ 
xxi The Company do nol havc any pnor pl.!nod crrors In tinanclUl year endmg on 31 st March 2023~~~ I~~t MarcJ:i 2,2 ~ be dl>cJo,cd ,epar,tldy III Statel1lel1tl~;?g· III equ,/1,},: ,,~~ 

~~-,~ r ~ ;=/) 1 I ,'r [ " Delhi L,. 
'-; './ .: . . . I \:--.... .:.:i 

.~ " ........... ~~ 
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Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Note:-

Note :-

Note :-

38 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (CSR) 

The applicability of CSR under section 135 (5) of the Companies /\ct, 2013 is not applicable as its average net profit of the Company is Nil due to 

continuing losses for three years. Hence no CSR expenditure has been incurred during the period. 

39 Other disclosures 

The company has a s),stem of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from banks and other parties. Sofar as trade/other payables and loans and 
acivnnces are concerned, the balance confirmation lettcrs wcrc sent to the partics. l3alanccs of some of the Trade Receivables, Othcr assets, Trade 

a) and 'other payables are subject to confirmation/reconciliations and consequential adjustment, if an)'. Reconciliations are carried out on an on-going 
basis. However, management docs not expect to have an)' material financial impact of such pending confirmations / reconciliations. 

b) In the opinion of the management, the value of current assets, loans and advances on reali zation in the ordinary course of business, will not be less 
than the value at which these are stated in the balance sheet. 

c) Certain prior periods amnunts hnve been reclassified for cnnsistency with the current period presentations. These recl'lssifications have no effect' on 
the reported results of operntions. Also, previous year fil,'Ures nre shown under bracket 0 to differentiate from current year fib'ures. 

40 Recent accounting pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifics new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (I ndian Accounting Standards) 
Rules as issued from time to time on March 31,2023,I\1C/\ amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Ruics,2023 as below: 

Ind AS1- Presentation of Financial Statements -
This amcndment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for 
adoption of this amendment is an annual periods beginning on or after April 'I, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the 
amendment is insignificant in the standalone financial statements. 

Ind AS 8- Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Error-
This amendment has introduced a detinition of 'accounting estimates' and included amendments to lnd AS R to help entities distinguish changes in 
accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 
2023. The Compan), has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its stanualone financial statements. 

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes -
This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that is does not apply to transactions tbat give rise to equal and offsetting 
temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April1, 2023. The Company has evaluated 
the amendment and there is no impact on its standalone financia l statement. 

For P. R. Kumar & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 31m'd) 
Dire~tor 

o it Parmar) 

(CA Deepak Srivastava) 

Partner 

M . No. 501615 

Place : New Delhi 

Date: 12/05/2023 

UDIN: 2.1 J.oIGI S:-/1C:t'-1 P TOCf fjJ 

DIN-09008SS3 

1l~!!:!: ' 
Chief Executive Officer 
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Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2023 

Note:-

Note :-

Note :-

38 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (CSR) 

The applicability of CSR under section 135 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable as its average net profit of the Company is Ni l due to 

continuing losses for three years. Hence no CSR expenditure has been incurred during the period. 

39 Other disclosures 

The company has a s),stem of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from banks and other parties. Sofar as trade/other payables and loans and 
aciV<lnces are concerned, the balance confi rmation letters were sent to the parties. !:lalances of some of the Trade Receivables, Other assets, Trade 

a) and other payables are subject to eonfirmatio n/ reconciliations and consequentia l adjustment, if an)'. Reconciliations arc carried out on an on-going 
basis. However, management docs not expect to have an)' material financia l impact of such pending confirmations / reconciliations. 

b) 10 the opinion of the management, the value of current assets, loans and advances on reali zation in the ordinary course of business, will not be less 
than the value at which these are stated in the balance sheet. 

c) Certain prior periods amounts h;1 ve been reclassified for consistenc), with the current period presentations. These rechlssifieations have no effect on 
the reported results of operations. Also, previous ),ear fil,'Ures are shown under bracket 0 to diffe rentiate from current year fii,'Ures. 

40 Recent accounting pronouncements 

Nli ni stry of Corporate Affairs ("MeA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Compan ies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules as issued from time to time on March 31,2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,2023 as below: 

lnd AS1- Presentation of Financial Statements -
This amendment reguires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significanr accounting policies. The effective date for 
adoption of this amendment is an annual periods heginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the 
amendment is insignificant in the standalone financial statements. 

lnd AS 8- Accollnting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Error-
This amendment has introduced a detinition of 'accounting estimates' and included amendments to ]nd AS R to help entities distinguish changes in 
accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 
2023. The Compan), has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its srandalone financial Statements. 

lnd AS 12 - Income Taxes -
This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemptioo so that is does not appl)' to transactions that give rise to egual and offse tting 
temporary differences. The effective oate for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginoing on or after April1, 2023. The Company has evaluated 
the amendment and there is no impact o n its stanoalone financial statement. 

For P. R. Kumar & Co. 

Chartered Accountants ~tm"d) 
Dire~tor 

DIN-09008553 

o it Parmar) 

(CA Deepak Srivastava) 

Partner 

M . No. 501615 

Plaee : New Delhi 

Date: 12/05/2023 

UDIN: 2JJ.O(G'~/19'-IPTOCffjJ 

;J1I:~!:!: . 
Chief Executive Offieer 
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER

sEcTroN 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANTES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS OF IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The preparation of financial statements of lrcon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

for the year ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the financial reporting framework

prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management

of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General

of lndia under Section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the

financial statements under Section '143 of the Act based on independent audit in

accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Act.

This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 12 May 2023.

l, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a

supplementary audit of the financial statements of lrcon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

for the year ended 31 March 2023 under Section 143(6) (a) of the Act. This supplementary

audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the

Statutory Auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditor and company

personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my

knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to Statutory

Auditor's report under Section 143(6) (b) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of lndia

Place: New Delhi
Oated'o7.08.2023

Dr. Nilot G wamr
Director G er I of Audit

Railway Commercial, New Delhi

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER 

SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS OF IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

The preparation of financial statements of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

for the year ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the financial reporting framework 

prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management 

of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General 

of India under Section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the 

financial statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in 

accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Act. 

This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 12 May 2023. 

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a 

supplementary audit of the financial statements of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

for the year ended 31 March 2023 under Section 143(6) (a) of the Act. This supplementary 

audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the 

Statutory Auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditor and company 

personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records . 

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my 

knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to Statutory 

Auditor's report under Section 143(6) (b) of the Act. 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated:01.08.2023 

For and on the behalf of the 
Comptroller & Auditor General of India 

swami 
Director G er I of Audit 

Railway Commercial, New Delhi 

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER 

SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS OF IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

The preparation of financial statements of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

for the year ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the financial reporting framework 

prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management 

of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General 

of India under Section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the 

financial statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in 

accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Act. 

This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 12 May 2023. 

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a 

supplementary audit of the financial statements of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

for the year ended 31 March 2023 under Section 143(6) (a) of the Act. This supplementary 

audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the 

Statutory Auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditor and company 

personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records . 

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my 

knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to Statutory 

Auditor's report under Section 143(6) (b) of the Act. 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated:o].08.2023 

For and on the behalf of the 
Comptroller & Auditor General of India 

swami 
Director G er I of Audit 

Railway Commercial, New Delhi 
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 IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
(‘IrconSGTL’) 

------------------------------------------------------------------ 

Registered & Corporate Office: 
C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi -110017, India 

Tel.: +91-11-29565666 | Fax: +91-11-26522000, 26854000 
E-mail id: cs.irconsgtl@gmail.com 
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